
   
 
 

 
 
 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 855 W. BASE LINE ROAD, RIALTO, CA 92376 

PH: (909) 875-1804   FAX: (909) 875-1849 
  
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 AGENDA 
  

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2021 
CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 PM ● OPEN SESSION – 6:30 PM 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Channing Hawkins, President 
Vacant, Vice President 
Dr. Michael Taylor, Director 
Greg Young, Director 
Dr. Clifford Young, Director 

 

"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed 
with the District Secretary's office by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following 
Thursday meeting, not requiring departmental investigation, will be considered by the 
Board of Directors." 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency resulting from the 
threat of COVID-19. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill No. 
361 into law. Assembly Bill No. 361 amends Government Code section 54953(e) by adding 
provisions for remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative 
body, without the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the 
existence of certain conditions. The West Valley Water District adopted a resolution 
determining, by majority vote, that, as a result of the declared State of Emergency, a 
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 
Accordingly, it has been determined that all Board and Workshop meetings of the West 
Valley Water District will be held pursuant to Assembly Bill No. 361, the Brown Act and will 
be conducted via teleconference. There will be no public access to the meeting venue. 
Members of the public may listen and provide public comment via telephone by calling the 
following number and access code: Dial: (888) 475-4499, Access Code: 840-293-7790 or you 
may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public comment may also be submitted via email 
to the Board Secretary, Peggy Asche at peggy@wvwd.org. If you require additional 
assistance, please contact peggy@wvwd.org. 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:peggy@wvwd.org
mailto:peggy@wvwd.org


OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Opening Prayer 
Roll Call of Board Members 

ADOPT AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the agenda, within its 
jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the District Clerk.  Each speaker is limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of Directors is prohibited from discussing or 
taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda.  Comments related to noticed Public Hearing(s) and 
Business Matters will be heard during the occurrence of the item. 
 

Public communication is the time for anyone to address the Board on any agenda item or 

anything under the jurisdiction of the District. Also, please remember that no disruptions from 

the crowd will be tolerated. If someone disrupts the meeting, they will be removed. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

• Website Update 

 

• 2021 Recap 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one vote.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Board of Directors, Staff Member, or any member of the 
public request a specific item(s) be removed for separate action.  
 
Consideration of:  

1. November 18, 2021, Regular Board Meeting Minutes.  (Page No. 6) 

2. December 2, 2021, Regular Board Meeting Minutes.  (Page No. 12) 

3. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports for November 2021 (PO, Treasurer, Cash 
Disbursement, Revenues & Expenditures).  (Page No. 18) 

4. Receive and File - Settlement Agreement and General Mutual Release.  (Page No. 48) 

 

5. Dispose of Old Surplus Items and Materials.  (Page No. 54) 

6. Agreement for Professional Services to Develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater 
Management Plan.  (Page No. 80) 

7. Grant of Easement from HD04, LLC for Ventana PA6.  (Page No. 158) 



8. I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project: Professional Engineering Services 
Amendment No. 3.  (Page No. 170) 

9. Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International, Inc. for Design of Pump Station 7-
2.  Page No. 180) 

10. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement and an Easement 
with MV AMCV, LLC for Tract 20294 Cedar Villas.  (Page No. 190) 

11. Approval of Payment to Ivie McNeill Wyatt Purcell & Diggs, for Professional Services 
rendered in October 2021, Davis v. WVWD, Invoice No. 745500; $3,646.66.  (Page 
No. 218) 

12. Approval of Payment to Ivie McNeill Wyatt Purcell & Diggs, for Professional Services 
rendered in October 2021, Romero v. WVWD, Invoice No. 745501; $1,547.85.  (Page 
No. 219) 

13. Approval of Payment to Ivie McNeill Wyatt Purcell & Diggs, for Professional Services 
rendered in September 2021, Loukeh v. WVWD, Invoice No. 745502; $3,240.00.  (Page 
No. 220) 

14. Approval of Payment to Ivie McNeill Wyatt Purcell & Diggs, for Professional Services 
rendered in October 2021, Loukeh v. WVWD, Invoice No. 745503; $675.00.  (Page 
No. 221) 

15. Approval of Payment to Reed & Davidson, LLP, for Professional Services rendered in 
November 2021, Invoice No. 42882-1; $11,028.00.   (Page No. 222) 

16. Approval of Payment to Law Offices of Julia Sylva, for Professional Services rendered 
from October 1, 2021, to November 30, 2021, Invoice No. 21-04; $3,295.84.  (Page 
No. 223) 

BUSINESS MATTERS  
    Consideration of:  
 

17. Annual Board Reorganization Per Board of Directors Policies and Procedures Manual, 
Adopted October 20, 2020, Section 7.4 Annual Reorganization Meeting for Vice 
President position.  (Page No. 224) 
 

18. Reschedule the January 6, 2022, Board Meeting.  (Page No. 227) 
 
REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 
 

1. Board Members 

2. General Manager 

3. Legal Counsel 



 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

1. December 21, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board 
Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408. 

2. December 23, 2021 through January 2, 2022, District Office CLOSED for the Holidays. 

3. January 4, 2022 - San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board Meeting 
at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408. 

4. January 6, 2022 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 6:45 
p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters. 

5. January 10, 2022 - West Valley Water District Human Resources Committee Meeting at 
6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

6. January 11, 2022 – West Valley Water District Safety & Technology Committee Meeting 
at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

7. January 12, 2022 - West Valley Water District Finance Committee Meeting at 1:00 p.m., 
at District Headquarters. 

8. January 12, 2022 - West Valley Water District Engineering, Operations & Planning 
Committee at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

9. January 13, 2022 – West Valley Water District External Affairs Committee Meeting at 
6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

10. January 17, 2022 – District office CLOSED in observance of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 
Day. 

11. January 20, 2022 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 
6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters. 

12. January 25, 2022 - West Valley Water District Policy Review & Oversight Committee 
Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Three (3). 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - Naisha 
Davis v. West Valley Water District et al. Case No. 20STCV0323. 



• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION - Pursuant 
to Paragraph One (1) of Subdivision (d) of the Government Code Section 54956.9 Case 
Name:  Nadia Loukeh. vs West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVSB2116242. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION - Pursuant 
to Paragraph One (1) of Subdivision (d) of the Government Code Section 54956.9 Case 
Name:  Diana Gunn. vs West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVSB2117195. 

 

ADJOURN 

 
DECLARATION OF POSTING:  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and 
posted the foregoing Agenda at the District Offices on December 13, 2021. 

 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
  
Please Note: 
 
Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 855 W. 
Baseline, Rialto, during normal business hours.  Also, such documents are available on the 
District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before 
the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or 
participate in the above-agendized public meeting should be directed to Peggy Asche, at 
least 72 hours in advance of the meeting to ensure availability of the requested service or 
accommodation.  Ms. Asche may be contacted by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 703, or in 
writing at the West Valley Water District, P.O. Box 920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920.  
 

 

http://www.wvwd.org/


WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

November 18, 2021 

                  Attendee 
Name 

Present Excused Absent 

Board of Directors    

Channing Hawkins     

Michael Taylor remote   

Kyle Crowther remote   

  Clifford Young   remote    

Gregory Young    

Staff    

Shamindra Manbahal    

Van Jew    

Naseem Farooqi     

Haydee Sainz remote   

Peggy Asche    

Linda Jadeski     

Jon Stephenson    

Joanne Chan remote   

Albert Clinger    

Jose Velasquez    

Legal Counsel    

Robert Tafoya    
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Director Greg Young 
Opening Prayer - Led by Elder Townsend, Sunrise Church 
Call to Order 
Roll Call of Board Members 

ADOPT AGENDA 

Director Greg Young motioned to adopt the agenda as is and Director Dr. Michael Taylor 
second the motion.  Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 6



WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Michael Taylor, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young, Kyle Crowther, Clifford 
Young 

NAYS: None 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

Peggy Asche, Board Secretary, stated that no requests were received to speak via email. 
President Channing Hawkins inquired if anyone from the public would like to speak. There 
were no comments. 

PRESENTATION 

• Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Expansion Financing Options. 

Mr. Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager, reported that the Oliver P. Roemer Water 
Filtration Facility Expansion is one of the largest investment projects that the district has 
embarked on for quite some time.  Tonight, he has asked Carollo Engineers to assist him 
in preparing a financial analysis of several funding scenarios that will provide the 
cheapest financing tool for our ratepayers.  Mr. Manbahal introduced Cody Berg and 
Seema Chavin to share the financial analysis. Cody Berg provided a PowerPoint 
presentation with three different scenarios: (1) Combination of WIFIA and SRF 
Funding; (2) Combination of Revenue Bonds and SRF Financing; and (3) $11.233M 
Cash Reserves plus SRF Financing.  Mr. Manbahal reported that not all the $11.233M 
will be drawn from the district’s unrestricted cash reserves as there are capacity charges 
which this project qualifies for and a blend of capacity charges as well as cash reserves.   
Discussion ensued and the Board thanked them for their time and presenting the 
different options.  

PUBLIC HEARING 

President Hawkins opened the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m., stating that this is the time and 
place set for a duly noticed Public Hearing regarding the 2021 Redistricting. 
 
Board Secretary Asche certified that all notices for the above hearing have been in the Inland 
Empire Community Newspaper and El Chicano Newspapers on November 18, 2021, in 
accordance with California Law.  No written responses have been received. 
 
President Hawkins requested information leading up to the Public Hearing and the purposed 
of this meeting.  Mr. Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager, stated that this Redistricting 
process is required by law.   
 
At this time, President Hawkins asked are there any speakers who wish to speak for or 
against the matter.  Hearing none.  The Public Hearing was closed at 7:20 p.m.  
 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 7



WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Director Dr. Michael Taylor motioned to adopt the Consent Calendar and Director Greg 
Young second the motion.  Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

RESULT: ADOPTED [4 to 1] 

MOVER: Michael Taylor, Director 

SECONDER: Gregory Young, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Kyle Crowther, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

NAYS: Clifford Young 

 

1. REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES - OCTOBER 21, 2021. 

2. APPROVAL OF MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR OCTOBER 2021 (PO, 
TREASURER, CASH DISBURSEMENT, REVENUES & EXPENDITURES, FUNDS 
TRANSFER). 

3. STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER FILTRATION 
FACILITY EXPANSION FINANCING. 

4. APPROVAL OF DISTRICT HOLIDAY CLOSURE FOR 2021. 

5. APPROVAL OF SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY. 

6. EMERGENCY PURCHASE FOR IRON FENCING AT WELL NO. 18A SITE. 

7. WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE 
AGREEMENT WITH HDO 4, LLC FOR VENTANA PA6. 

8. GRANT OF EASEMENT FROM LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC. FOR 
RIVER RACH TRACT 20208. 

9. AMENDMENT TO TASKS ORDER NO. 2 WITH GHD INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY EXPANSION PROJECT. 

10. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO REED & DAVIDSON, LLP, FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES RENDERED IN OCTOBER 2021, INVOICE NO. 427781; $480.00. 

11. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO IVIE MCNEILL WYATT PURCELL & DIGGS, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN SEPTEMBER 2021, DAVIS V. 
WVWD, INVOICE NO. 745400; $14,192.55.   

12. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO IVIE MCNEILL WYATT PURCELL & DIGGS, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN SEPTEMBER 2021, ROMERO V. 
WVWD, INVOICE NO. 745401; $8,392.50. 

13. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN AUGUST 2021, INVOICE NO. 21-
1008; $19,863.00.   

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 8



WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

14. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN SEPTEMBER 2021, INVOICE NO. 
21-1009; $28,930.00.   

15. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN OCTOBER 2021, INVOICE NO. 21-
1010; $17,796.60. 

16. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES DARLING & 
MAH, INC., FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN OCTOBER 2021, 
INVOICE NO. 90352; $33,470.50.   

BUSINESS MATTERS 

17. NOW IS THE TIME AND PLACE AS SPECIFIED IN THE NOTICE DATED 
NOVEMBER 18, 2021, IN THE INLAND EMPIRE COMMUNITY NEWSPAPER 
AND EL CHICANO NEWSPAPERS, TO HOLD THE PUBLIC MEETING 
CONCERNING THE 2021 REDISTRICTING. 

Mr. Darryl Lucien, Lucien Partners, reported on the 2021 Redistricting process and 
introduced Christopher Skinnell, Legal Counsel, who was virtually present.  Mr. Lucien 
stated that he did speak to most of the Board members and had the opportunity to attend all 
five community hearings that were publicly noticed and were held in various locations 
throughout the district.  In gathering all the information from Board members, constituents 
and staff, the maps were put together to harmonize what the Board members had conveyed.  
Mr. Lucien provided two maps to best facilitate those preferences.  After the presentation, 
the Board members requested that Mr. Lucien present another map with streets showing, 
population, and Director Greg Young’s request.   No action was taken. 
 

RESULT: INFORMATION ITEM 

 

 No vote was taken. 

 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Members 

o Vice President Kyle Crowther reported that he will be resigning as a Board member effective 
November 19, 2021.  He stated that it has been a pleasure serving the ratepayers since 
December 2017, and he hoped for continued success.  Thanked all Board members and staff 
for everything.  

o Director Greg Young thanked Kyle Crowther for his service to the community and Water 
Board and he will be missed. 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 9



WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

o Director Dr. Michael Taylor also thanked Kyle Crowther for his time and service to the 
community. 

o President Hawkins congratulated Kyle Crowther on his new chapter of life and for what he 
has done with the district and his steadfast leadership.   

2. General Manager 

O Shamindra Manbahal also stated that he will miss Kyle Crowther and all he has done for the 
district and wished him well.  There was a wonderful Thanksgiving luncheon hosted 
yesterday by our Human Resources Department for all employees. 

3. Legal Counsel 

O Mr. Robert Tafoya echoed the comments of the Board members regarding Kyle Crowther’s 
resignation and stated that he was professional in the way he handled the ratepayer’s 
business, and he feels very fortunate to have worked with him. 

CLOSED SESSION 

O Mr. Robert Tafoya reported out of Closed Session stating that several items were considered, 
but only two items were finalized: 

1. The Board voted 5 to 0 – To accept an offer from Pinnacle Realty and Holding 
Company to purchase district property located at 17567 Slover Avenue, Bloomington, 
CA, in the amount of one hundred million and 55 dollars. 

2. The Board voted 4 to 1 (President Channing Hawkins abstained) – To appeal the case 
entitled “San Bernardino County vs. West Valley Water District et al. Case No. 
CIVSB2113136”. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Three (3). 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – San 
Bernardino County vs. West Valley Water District et al. Case No. CIV SB 2113136. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - Naisha Davis 
v. West Valley Water District et al. Case No. 20STCV0323. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION - Pursuant to 
Paragraph One (1) of Subdivision (d) of the Government Code Section 54956.9 Case Name: 
Patricia Romero v. West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVDS2024402. 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 10



WVWD 

Minutes: 11/18/21 

• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (54956.8) – Potential 
Property Sale for Well No. 20 Property, 17553 Slover Ave., and 17567 Slover Ave., 
Bloomington, CA - APN NO’s 0256-021-03 and 0256-021-04. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (GC 
§54956.9[d][1]) Case Number RCV 51010, CBMWD v. City of Chino et al. 

ADJOURN 

 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 

 
____________________________ 

Channing Hawkins 
President of the Board of Directors 

of West Valley Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 11



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

December 2, 2021 

                  Attendee 
Name 

Present Excused Absent 

Board of Directors    

Channing Hawkins     

Michael Taylor remote   

  Clifford Young       

Gregory Young    

Staff    

Shamindra Manbahal    

Van Jew remote   

Naseem Farooqi     

Haydee Sainz    

Peggy Asche    

Linda Jadeski     

Jon Stephenson    

Joanne Chan remote   

Albert Clinger     

Jose Velasquez    

Legal Counsel    

Robert Tafoya    
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Director Greg Young 
Opening Prayer - Led by Pastor Bratton, Greater Faith Bible Church 
Call to Order 
Roll Call of Board Members 

ADOPT AGENDA 

Director Greg Young motioned to adopt the agenda amending Item No. 3, Holiday 
Schedule for 2022, to include December 31, 2022, as a holiday.  Director Dr. Michael Taylor 
second the motion.  Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 12



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Michael Taylor, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Clifford Young 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

Peggy Asche, Board Secretary, stated that no requests were received to speak via email. 
President Channing Hawkins inquired if anyone from the public would like to speak. There 
were no comments. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

President Hawkins opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m., stating that this is the time and 
place set for the second duly noticed Public Hearing regarding the 2021 Redistricting. 
 
Board Secretary Asche certified that all notices for the above hearing have been in the Inland 
Empire Community Newspaper and El Chicano Newspapers on November 18, 2021, and 
November 30, 2021, in accordance with California Law.  No written responses have been 
received. 
 
President Hawkins requested information leading up to the Public Hearing and the purposed 
of this meeting.  Mr. Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager, stated that this Redistricting 
process is required by law.   
 
At this time, President Hawkins asked are there any speakers who wish to speak for or 
against the matter.  Hearing none.  The Public Hearing was closed at 6:42 p.m.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Director Greg Young motioned to adopt the Consent Calendar and Director Dr. Michael Taylor 
second the motion.  Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Michael Taylor, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Clifford Young 

1. NOVEMBER 4, 2021 - REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES. 

2. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2021-31 – PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, 
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY 
GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 13



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 14, 2021, 
THROUGH JANUARY 14, 2022, PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISONS. 

3. HOLIDAY SCHEDULE FOR 2022. 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

4. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2021-29 – REDISTRICTING. 

 Mr. Darryl Lucien, Lucien Partners, reported that it has been a pleasure to guide the Board 
members through the process of the 2021 Redistricting.  In summarizing the process, he stated 
that several steps were made to maximize public engagement, invitation of public participation 
and to dialogue perspective lines candidly and openly in hopes of satisfying all statutory 
constitutional requirements related to this process.  This includes Public Hearings, online 
redistricting tools for the public, it was noticed in the local newspapers and there were 
community meetings across the various divisions within the district.  A demographic analysis of 
two plans “D” and “E”, pursuant to the last Board meeting, were presented.  In discussion with 
Director Greg Young, two slight variations were made to the Plan “E” map, which are now 
entitled Plan “E-2” and Plan “E-2-2” map, both of which do not substantively change any 
population numbers.  After further discussion, Director Greg Young motioned to adopt Plan 
“E-2” map and Director Dr. Michael Taylor second the motion.  Hearing no further discussion, 
the following vote was taken: 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Michael Taylor, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Clifford Young 

  
5.  ANNUAL BOARD REORGANIZATION PER BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICIES 

AND PROCEDURES MANUAL, ADOPTED OCTOBER 20, 2020, SECTION 7.4 
ANNUAL REORGANIZATION MEETING. 

 
 The Board of Directors began discussion of appointing the President and Vice President 

positions.  It was discussed to remain the President as Channing Hawkins and to re-visit the 
Vice President position once there is a full Board. After further discussion, it was recommended 
to re-visit the appointment of Vice President at the next regular scheduled Board meeting. 

 
 Director Dr. Michael Taylor motioned to appoint Channing Hawkins as President and to 

continue the appointment of Vice President at the next regular scheduled Board meeting.  
Director Greg Young second the motion.  Hearing no further discussion, the following vote was 
taken: 

 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 14



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Michael Taylor, Director 

SECONDER: Greg Young, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Clifford Young 

 

6. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2021-30, AMENDING SCHEDULE “B” STANDING 
COMMITTEES AND SCHEDULE “C” OUTSIDE MEETINGS OF ORDINANCE 
NO. 86, COMPENSATION AND POLICIES RELATED TO BOARD ACTIVITIES. 

 

 The Board of Directors began discussion on the committee assignments and agreed that there 
would be no changes; however, replacing Director Kyle Crowther’s positions will need to be 
made.  Listed below are the agreed committee assignments with the first name indicating the 
Chair of the committee:  

 Executive Committee     Human Resources Committee 

 Channing Hawkins, Dr. Michael Taylor    Dr. Michael Taylor, Channing Hawkins  

 Finance Committee    Engineering, Opr. & Planning Committee 

 Dr. Clifford Young, Dr. Michael Taylor    Greg Young, Dr. Michael Taylor 

 Safety and Technology Committee  External Affairs Committee 

 Dr. Michael Taylor, Greg Young   Dr. Clifford Young, Channing Hawkins 

 Rialto Basin Groundwater Council  Bloomington MAC 

 Greg Young, Dr. Michael Taylor   Greg Young, Dr. Michael Taylor 

 Policy Review & Oversight Committee  SB Valley Municipal Water Board Mtgs.  

 Greg Young, Dr. Michael Taylor   Dr. Clifford Young, Dr. Michael Taylor 

 ACWA/JPIA     ACWA 

 Channing Hawkins, Dr. Michael Taylor  All Directors 

 

 Director Dr. Michael Taylor motioned to adopt amending Schedule “B” Standing Committees 
and Schedule “C” Outside Meetings with the above designated committee representatives, as 
discussed.  Director Greg Young second the motion which passed as follows: 

  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Michael Taylor, Director 

SECONDER: Greg Young, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Clifford Young 

 
7. DISCUSSION OF FILLING BOARD OF DIRECTOR VACANCY.  

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 15



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

 Mr. Robert Tafoya, Legal Counsel, reported that a procedure for filling the Board vacancy was 
previously provided to the Board members.  The Board has the opportunity to fill the vacancy; 
however, if the Board cannot fill the vacancy under the Government Code 1780(f)(1) it would 
go to the County Board of Supervisors.  The posting of Board Vacancy will be posted in three 
(3) conspicuous places within the district tomorrow as well as in the local newspaper.  The 
Board has up to 60 days to make an appointment. The deadline for submitting a letter of interest 
and resume to the district will be no later than 5:00 p.m. on January 7, 2022.  Discussion ensued 
and general direction was given. 

 

RESULT: DISCUSSION ITEM 

 

 No vote was taken. 

 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Members 

o Director Greg Young congratulated Channing Hawkins on his appointment as President.  
Today marks the 6-year anniversary of the terrorist attack at the Inland Regional Center in 
San Bernardino and his thoughts and prayers go out to those still struggling from the 
aftermath and the families who lost their loved ones.  Director Young would like to adjourn 
the meeting tonight in honor of those victims. 

o Director Dr. Michael Taylor also congratulated Channing Hawkins on his appointment as 
President and stated that his leadership has helped the Board come together as a team. 

2. General Manager 

O Shamindra Manbahal also congratulated Channing Hawkins on his appointment.  He 
reported that he attended the ACWA 2021 Conference this week and enjoyed his time with 
his colleagues from other water agencies.   

3. Legal Counsel 

o Mr. Robert Tafoya reported out of Closed Session stating that several items were considered; 
however, no action was taken. 

 CLOSED SESSION 
 

 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Five (5). 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - San 
Bernardino County vs. West Valley Water District et al. Case No. CIV SB 2113136.a 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 16



WVWD 

Minutes: 12/2/21 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m., in honor of the mass 
shooting victims from the Inland Regional Center in San Bernardino who lost their lives on 
December 2, 2015. 

 
____________________________ 

Channing Hawkins 
President of the Board of Directors 

of West Valley Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 17



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) generated twenty-nine (29) Purchase Orders (“PO”) in 
the month of November 2021 to various vendors that provide supplies and services to the District.  
The total amount issued to PO’s for the month of November 2021 was $219,829.04.  A table listing 
all PO’s for November 2021 is shown in Exhibit A. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2021 Purchase Order Report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Receive and file the November 2021 Purchase Order Report. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
SM;ar 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. November 2021 Purchase Order Report 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: NOVEMBER 2021 - PURCHASE ORDER REPORT 

2.3

Packet Pg. 18



12/08/21 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

2.3

Packet Pg. 19



Exhibit A 

2.3.a

Packet Pg. 20



12/2/2021 10:27:02 AM Page 1 of 2

Purchase Order Summary Report
West Valley Water District, CA Purchase Order Detail

Issued Date Range 11/01/2021 - 11/30/2021

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

Roemer Plant meter calibrations 11/2/2021Outstanding

11/16/2021West Valley Water District01476 - GOLDEN METERS SERVICE INC.

1,800.0022-0185 0.00

Pre-Treatment AC 11/2/2021Completed

11/16/2021West Valley Water District00828 - CONTROL TEMP INC

1,242.8422-0186 0.00

Test roof material on 2-1 Reservoir for asbestos 11/2/2021Outstanding

11/16/2021West Valley Water District01554 - EXECUTIVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CO

1,200.0022-0187 0.00

Painting Bertha's Office 11/4/2021Completed

11/18/2021West Valley Water District02418 - ARNOLD FIELDS PAINTING

500.0022-0188 0.00

Computer Parts NOV 2021 11/4/2021Outstanding

11/18/2021West Valley Water District02325 - AMAZON.COM SALES INC

1,901.3022-0189 0.00

Pull and inspect Well 41 11/4/2021Completed

11/18/2021West Valley Water District01124 - GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC

15,624.0022-0190 0.00

14 inch full circle repair clamp 11/8/2021Completed

11/22/2021West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

1,346.8822-0191 0.00

90 Day Inspection Commercial Vehicle 11/8/2021Completed

11/22/2021West Valley Water District01700 - PG MECHANICAL

690.0022-0192 0.00

Repair to CAT 420 F Backhoe 11/8/2021Completed

11/22/2021West Valley Water District01700 - PG MECHANICAL

850.0022-0193 0.00

Parts for CAT 420 F 11/8/2021Completed

11/22/2021West Valley Water District01528 - QUINN COMPANY

976.0722-0194 0.00

Repair Blower at Roemer 11/9/2021Outstanding

11/23/2021West Valley Water District01707 - Q AIR-CALIFORNIA

760.5022-0195 0.00

Smoke Detector 11/9/2021Completed

11/23/2021West Valley Water District02416 - RIVER FIRE & SECURITY

1,481.0022-0196 0.00

Replacement seat cushions for CAT 420 E & F 11/15/2021Completed

11/29/2021West Valley Water District01528 - QUINN COMPANY

622.7322-0197 0.00

Brass Parts 11/16/21 11/16/2021Outstanding

11/16/2021West Valley Water District00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677

286.2422-0199 0.00

Repair blower system 11/16/2021Outstanding

11/30/2021West Valley Water District01707 - Q AIR-CALIFORNIA

1,876.2722-0200 0.00

Roemer painting project 11/16/2021Outstanding

11/30/2021West Valley Water District02419 - COMPETITIVE PAINTING

8,770.0022-0201 0.00

Access Control System Expansion 11/16/2021Partially Received

11/30/2021West Valley Water District01470 - CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS

15,487.0622-0202 0.00

Remove & disposal of GAC 11/16/2021Outstanding

11/30/2021West Valley Water District00739 - EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

18,171.0722-0203 0.00

2.3.a

Packet Pg. 21



Purchase Order Summary Report Issued Date Range 11/01/2021 - 11/30/2021

12/2/2021 10:27:02 AM Page 2 of 2

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

Motor drive replacement, pump # 1 at 7-1 Pump Sta. 11/18/2021Outstanding

12/2/2021West Valley Water District01764 - SULZER ELECTRO-MECHANICAL SERVICES

18,509.2522-0204 0.00

Two 16 inch backwash valve 11/18/2021Outstanding

12/2/2021West Valley Water District00729 - SOUTHWEST VALVE & EQUIPMENT

23,705.0022-0205 0.00

Tesco FBR and Well 6 Repair 11/18/2021Completed

12/2/2021West Valley Water District00097 - TESCO CONTROLS INC

2,032.0022-0206 0.00

Gasoline Order 11/18/21 11/18/2021Received

12/2/2021West Valley Water District01783 - SC COMMERCIAL LLC

13,962.8822-0207 0.00

Network Fleet Service 11/16/21 11/22/2021Received

12/6/2021West Valley Water District01514 - NETWORK

1,982.8922-0208 0.00

HVAC Repairs 11/04/21 11/22/2021Received

12/6/2021West Valley Water District00828 - CONTROL TEMP INC

850.8522-0209 0.00

Pull motor at Well 5 and replace with spare. 11/23/2021Outstanding

12/7/2021West Valley Water District01124 - GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC

3,655.7722-0210 0.00

Replace existing fencing with rot iron fencing. 11/24/2021Outstanding

12/8/2021West Valley Water District01745 - WESTBROOK FENCE INC

66,385.0022-0211 0.00

Red Dye Diesel 11/24/21 11/30/2021Outstanding

12/14/2021West Valley Water District01783 - SC COMMERCIAL LLC

13,242.2822-0212 0.00

Rekey Locks for Quite Room 11/30/2021Received

12/14/2021West Valley Water District01526 - SO CAL LOCKSMITH / MARY K DUNSMORE

517.1322-0213 0.00

Repairs to Unit 221 11/30/2021Partially Received

12/14/2021West Valley Water District02255 - LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTERS OF CENTRAL CALIFO

1,400.0322-0214 0.00

219,829.040.00Purchase Order Count: (29) Total:Total Trade Discount:

2.3.a

Packet Pg. 22



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
West Valley Water District (“District”) engaged the Clifton Larson Allen LLP to prepare West 
Valley Water District’s (WVWD) Investment report on a monthly basis. The District’s investment 
policy is in uniformity with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines 
(Government Code Section 53601(b)). Report for the Month of November 2021 is presented to the 
Finance Committee for discussion.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Monthly Cost of $2,625 was included in the FY 2021-22 annual budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
SM:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 2022 November Treasurer Report 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: TREASURER'S REPORT - NOVEMBER 2021 

2.4

Packet Pg. 23



 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

2.4

Packet Pg. 24



West Valley Water District
Cash, Investment & Reserve Balances - November 30, 2021

October 2021 November 2021 RESERVE Minimum Target Maximum
Institution/Investment Type Balance Balance ACCOUNT Balance Balance Balance
Funds Under Control of the District: RESTRICTED FUNDS

2016A Bond 0.14$                    0.14$                   0.14$                   
District Cash Drawers 4,300.00$              4,300.00$              Customer Deposit Accounts 3,469,962.57$      3,469,962.57$     3,469,962.57$     

4,300.00$              4,300.00$              Capacity Charge Acct Balance 21,195,893.84$    21,195,893.84$   21,195,893.84$   
CIP account in LAIF for capital purposes 3,000,000.00$      3,000,000.00$     3,000,000.00$     

Checking and Savings:
   Chase - General Government Checking 2,208,124.00$       7,888,987.47$       27,665,856.55$    27,665,856.55$   27,665,856.55$   
   Chase - Special Rebate Checking -$                       -$                       CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS
   Chase - UTC Routine Checking 5,000.56$              5,000.56$              Capital Project Account - 100% FY 21-22 10,627,040.00$    10,627,040.00$   10,627,040.00$   
   Chase - UTC Non-Routine Checking 48,636.50$            48,636.50$            Capital Project Account-80% FY 22-23 10,996,133.60$    10,996,133.60$   10,996,133.60$   

2,261,761.06$       7,942,624.53$       Administrative & General Account 1,402,067.10$      1,402,067.10$     1,402,067.10$     
23,025,240.70$    23,025,240.70$   23,025,240.70$   

LIQUIDITY FUNDS
State of California, Local Agency Investment Fund 26,389,535.99$     26,389,535.99$     Rate Stabilization Account 919,399.80$         2,758,199.40$     4,596,999.00$     
US Bank - Chandler Asset Mgmt 24,348,380.71$     24,340,059.76$     Operating Reserve Account 4,673,557.00$      9,347,114.00$     14,020,671.00$   
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Short Term 16,772,079.54$     16,774,345.99$     Emergency Account 1,286,887.73$      2,573,775.47$     3,860,663.20$     
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Medium Term -$                       -$                       Water Banking Account 125,000.00$         625,000.00$        1,250,000.00$     

7,004,844.53$      15,304,088.87$   23,728,333.20$   
U. S. Treasury Bills OTHER RESERVES
Government Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank) -$                       -$                       Self-Insurance Reserve 5,000,000.00$      5,000,000.00$     5,000,000.00$     

5,000,000.00$      5,000,000.00$     5,000,000.00$     
Total 69,776,057.30$     75,450,866.27$     
Funds Under Control of Fiscal Agents: OPERATING CASH
US BANK Balance Available for Daily Operations 12,754,924.63$    4,455,680.29$     (3,968,564.04)$    
   2016A Bond - Principal & Payment Funds 0.14$                     0.14$                     12,754,924.63$    4,455,680.29$     (3,968,564.04)$    
   2016A Bond - Interest Fund -$                       -$                       
Total 0.14$                     0.14$                     Grand Total 75,450,866.41$    75,450,866.41$   75,450,866.41$   
Grand Total 69,776,057.44$     75,450,866.41$     UNRESTRICTED RESERVES 47,785,009.86$    

I hereby certify that the investment activity for this reporting period conforms with the investment policy adopted by the West Valley Water District
Board of Directors and the California Government Code Section 53601 

 I also certify that there are adequate funds available to meet the District's Budget.

General Manager

2.4.a

Packet Pg. 25



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Cash Disbursements Report to be presented to the 
Finance Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of 
Directors. The reports are being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) 
and will be presented to the Finance Committee on a monthly basis. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Each month, the Accounting Department provides a complete listing of all disbursements for the 
previous month in an effort to promote fiscal responsibility and accountability over the expenditure 
of public funds.  This process includes providing the Finance Committee, Board of Directors and 
ratepayers the opportunity to review expenses for supplies, materials, services, and payroll 
Disbursements.  Payroll is processed bi-weekly and accounts payable is processed weekly. 
Information to justify each payment is available through the Accounting Department. For reference, 
Customer Refunds are credits due as a result of closing a water account. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2021 Cash Disbursement Reports. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CASH DISBURSEMENTS REPORT - NOVEMBER 2021 

2.5

Packet Pg. 26



 
 
 
 
 
SM:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 2021 November Cash Disbursements Board Report 
2. 2021 November Payroll Cash Disbursement Board Report 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

2.5

Packet Pg. 27



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5728 APPRAISAL COMMERCIAL INC 17553 SLOVER AVE FONTANA CA 1,750.00$            

5729 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC. Blanket PO for Landscape Services for 47 Sites/HQ 5,760.00$            

5729 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC. Blanket PO for Landscape Services for 47 Sites/HQ 1,540.00$            

5730 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC SRF Loan Application - Roemer Expansion 1,806.50$         

5731 CDW GOVERNMENT INC CDWG Computer supplies AUG2021 4,426.95$            

5732 CED CREDIT OFFICE Hubbell Pulling Sock 1,155.08$            

5732 CED CREDIT OFFICE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 17.32$                 

5733 CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT SEPT 2021 SERVICES 2,049.55$            

5733 CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT OCTOBER 2021 SERVICES 2,041.40$            

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 1,760.75$            

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 36.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 36.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 13.50$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 13.50$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 6.75$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 6.75$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 1,047.75$            

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 706.75$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 48.50$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 89.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 39.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 69.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 39.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 69.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 293.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 56.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 56.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 182.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 6.75$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 67.50$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 6.75$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 44.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 44.25$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 60.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 720.00$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 182.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 128.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PECHLORATE 211.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PECHLORATE 70.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PECHLORATE 70.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PECHLORATE 6.00$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PECHLORATE 211.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 6 258.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 11 258.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 337.75$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 36.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 36.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 11 7.50$                    

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 249.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 167.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 249.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 167.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 169.25$               

Page 1 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 28



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 274.50$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 113.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 30.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ARSENIC 66.75$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 497.75$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 113.25$               

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 15.00$                 

5734 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 30.00$                 

5736 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-10272 CEDAR 119.12$               

5736 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-18451 VINEYARD 119.12$               

5737 DYER, JUNE J MEDICARE PART B REIMB-JULY-SEPT 2021 445.50$               

5738 EL-CO CONTRACTORS INC RETENTION-W19040 (10,733.65)$     

5738 EL-CO CONTRACTORS INC Well 18A Pipe Blending 214,672.94$    

5739 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINT SUPPLIES 415.72$               

5740 INFOSEND INC Postage & Printing Fiscal Yr 21-22 2,650.98$            

5740 INFOSEND INC Postage & Printing Fiscal Yr 21-22 8,812.75$            

5740 INFOSEND INC DEC 2020 INSERT 1,890.43$            

5740 INFOSEND INC MAY 2021 INSERT 1,890.43$            

5740 INFOSEND INC JUNE 2021 INSERT 1,890.43$            

5740 INFOSEND INC AUG 2021 NEWSLETTER 1,931.52$            

5740 INFOSEND INC SEPT 2021 NEWSLETTER 1,931.52$            

5740 INFOSEND INC OCT 2021 NEWSLETTER 1,767.14$            

5741 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 90.77$                 

5742 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS Blanket PO Type 2 Base For Backfill 40.19$                 

5742 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS Blanket PO Disposal of Excavated Materials 125.00$               

5743 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT BRIAN GRUBERT 225.00$               

5744 SHARP EXTERMINATOR COMPANY DIST MAINT-OCT 2021 SVCS 185.00$               

5745 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES Lytle Creek Environmental Services 2,488.50$         

5745 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES Bio Study for Pepper Railway crossing 4,075.30$         

5745 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS-W19008 922.50$            

5745 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS-W19008 1,305.00$         

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 6.05$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 6.78$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 5.55$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 5.17$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 4.62$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 5.29$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 71.12$                 

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 5.54$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 4.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WTR QLTY DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR DEPT 5.39$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION ROEMER JANIT SVCS 124.55$               

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION DEPT 5.23$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER DEPT 5.62$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER DEPT 4.84$                    

Page 2 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 29



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.27$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.17$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.52$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.70$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.72$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.20$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.82$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.27$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINT DEPT 5.50$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 6.34$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 5.92$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 5.64$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 5.27$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 5.24$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 4.74$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SVCS 301.09$               

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS- ENG DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS- ENG DEPT 4.66$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS- ENG DEPT 4.84$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING DEPT 5.40$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING DEPT 3.00$                    

5746 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING DEPT 6.78$                    

5748 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY Blanket PO Temporary Asphalt 804.07$               

5748 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY Blanket PO Temporary Asphalt 726.27$               

5748 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY Blanket PO Temporary Asphalt 746.89$               

5749 BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC Acetic Acid for FBR Plant 30,246.89$          

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 344.00$               

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 448.50$               

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 172.50$               

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 204.50$               

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 827.50$               

5750 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5751 DAVID N M TURCH LOBBYIST SERVICES-10/09/21-11/08/21 12,500.00$          

5751 DAVID N M TURCH LOBBYIST SERVICES-70921-80821 12,500.00$          

5751 DAVID N M TURCH LOBBYIST SERVIVCES-80921-90821 12,500.00$          

5751 DAVID N M TURCH LOBBYIST SERVICES-09/09/21-10/08/22 12,500.00$          

5752 EL-CO CONTRACTORS INC RETENTION PAYMENT-W17035 51,745.62$      

5753 GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC Pull and inspect Well 41 15,624.00$          

5754 HACH COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 168.36$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#4 211.96$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#5 264.95$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 176.63$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 176.63$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 258.62$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 264.95$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 226.09$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 174.87$               

Page 3 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 30



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 132.47$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-BLF 2,508.19$            

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 247.29$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 150.14$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#5 353.27$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 176.63$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 132.47$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 152.13$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 349.90$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 512.24$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 282.61$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 229.62$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 220.79$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#5 264.95$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 182.55$               

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 88.32$                 

5755 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-ROEMER 3,498.97$            

5756 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 340.45$               

5757 OFFICE SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PRODUCTS OFFICE SUPPLIES 497.87$               

5758 SUEZ WTS ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS INC PM Contract for online analyzer 5,666.58$            

5759 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC WIFIA and SRF Loan Application - Roemer Expansion 11,284.00$      

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS ON SITE REPAIR WELL#42 278.10$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 448.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 204.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 344.00$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 827.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 172.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS ON SITE REPAIR HQ 180.00$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 344.00$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 204.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 172.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 34.50$                 

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 448.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 827.50$               

5760 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security alarm monitoring for all District sites 69.00$                 

5761 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE VENDING SUPPLIES 421.73$               

5761 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE VENDING SUPPLIES 391.39$               

5761 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 54.39$                 

5761 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SAFETY SUPPLIES 319.47$               

5761 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE-SAFETY SUPPLIES 363.89$               

5762 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS FBR SUPPLIES 245.18$               

5762 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS 3/8" Chemical Tubing 2,016.06$            

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 176.63$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 141.31$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 309.11$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#4 137.77$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 333.84$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 273.78$               

Page 4 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 31



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 176.63$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 228.19$               

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-BLF 2,243.24$            

5763 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-FBR 3,042.58$            

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 142.80$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 193.51$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 486.02$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 455.91$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 464.35$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 101.97$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 402.97$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 410.48$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 402.97$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 367.71$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 160.41$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 455.11$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 121.55$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 457.06$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 457.06$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 137.32$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 464.35$               

5764 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 464.35$               

5765 Q AIR-CALIFORNIA Pm Contract for Compressors & Blowers 996.47$               

5766 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS SHOP SUPPLIES 287.97$               

5766 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS SHOP SUPPLIES 21.55$                 

5766 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS Disposal of Excavated Materials 225.00$               

5766 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS Disposal of Excavated Materials 1,375.00$            

5766 RAMCO RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS Disposal of Excavated Materials 250.00$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.05$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.55$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.29$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.05$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.55$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.29$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.23$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.29$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.55$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.05$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.54$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 4.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 3.00$                    

Page 5 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 32



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.54$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 4.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 4.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.54$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.39$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.39$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.39$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION ROEMER JANITORIAL SVCS 124.55$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION ROEMER JANITORIAL SVCS 124.55$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 36.67$                 

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.23$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.62$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.82$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.20$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.50$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.52$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.70$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.82$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.20$                    

Page 6 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 33



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.70$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.52$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.50$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.50$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.17$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.20$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.52$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.70$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.72$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 5.82$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.64$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.24$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.74$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.92$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.34$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.64$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.34$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.74$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.24$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.92$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.74$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.24$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.64$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.27$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.92$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.34$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION HQ JANITORIAL SVCS 301.09$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION HQ JANITORIAL SVCS 301.09$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION HQ JANITORIAL SVCS 301.09$               

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.66$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.66$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.84$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 4.66$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 5.40$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 3.00$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 5.40$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 3.00$                    

Page 7 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 34



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.78$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 5.40$                    

5768 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 3.00$                    

5773 ARROWHEAD UNITED WAY Gina Bertoline 5.00$                    

5773 ARROWHEAD UNITED WAY Gina Bertoline 5.00$                    

5774 BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC Acetic Acid for FBR Plant 25,272.35$          

5775 COMPUTERIZED EMBROIDERY COMPANY INC WVWD CAPS 336.18$               

5776 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Access Control System Expansion 7,786.74$         

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 114.68$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 73.51$                 

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 300.28$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#4 141.31$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 353.27$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 317.94$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 123.64$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 141.31$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#33 304.26$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 300.28$               

5777 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 282.61$               

5778 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 432.61$               

5778 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 358.36$               

5778 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 371.72$               

5778 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 398.88$               

5779 OFFICE SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PRODUCTS OFFICE SUPPLIES 274.54$               

5780 PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC PLANTS MAINTENANCE-OCT 2021 424.00$               

5781 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT SAFETY BOOTS-MATT LEWIS 169.70$               

5782 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MTG-10/26/21 225.00$               

5782 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MTG-11/9/21 225.00$               

5782 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY OFFICE SAFETY MTG-11/9/21 200.00$               

5782 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MTG-11/23/21 225.00$               

5783 SAMBA HOLDINGS INC HR SERVICES OCT 2021 105.31$               

5784 SB VALLEY MUNICIPAL BLF ELECTRIC-SEPT 2021 47,122.06$          

5785 SMILE AMERICA ABDI FOUNDATION THANKSGIVING SPONSORSHIP 2,500.00$            

80943 360CIVIC Website Redesign 2021 Project 17,250.00$      

80944 ALLIANCE 2020 INC HR RECRUITMENT SVCS 370.90$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Dewatering Pump for Maintenance 1,053.80$            

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 200.48$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 188.50$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 193.84$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 21.47$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 178.76$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 140.76$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 86.16$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 150.84$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 39.84$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 79.62$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 43.09$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 103.42$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 113.70$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 86.18$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 21.50$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Computer Supplies 50.30$                 

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 274.01$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 241.84$               

Page 8 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 35



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 430.98$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 721.79$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 840.42$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 147.05$               

80945 AMAZON.COM SALES INC IT Computer Supplies AMAZON 107.64$               

80946 AT&T ROEMER FIRE SVC-10/22/21-11/21/21 396.25$               

80947 AT&T LONG DISTANCE ROEMER LONG DISTANCE 23.66$                 

80948 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC TRASH SVCS-ROEMER OCT 2021 262.86$               

80948 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC HQ DOSPOSAL FEES 911.88$               

80949 CEMEX INC Blanket PO Sand For Backfill 112.54$               

80950 CHR SERVICES CPR TRAINING-10/28/20 1,080.00$            

80951 CITY OF RIALTO UUTAX OCT 2021 53,471.64$          

80951 CITY OF RIALTO UUTAX OCT 2021 (179.81)$              

80952 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN CLA Treasurer Service-AUG 2021 2,625.00$            

80953 EL ROD FENCE CO, INC GATE INSTALLATION 1,398.00$            

80954 FAST SERVICE CUST SVCS-OCT 2021 249.00$               

80955 FONTANA UNION WATER CO STOCK SHARES 5,200.00$            

80955 FONTANA UNION WATER CO STOCK SHARES 320.00$               

80955 FONTANA UNION WATER CO STOCK SHARES 1,600.00$            

80955 FONTANA UNION WATER CO STOCK SHARES 1,200.00$            

80955 FONTANA UNION WATER CO STOCK SHARES 160.00$               

80956 GHD INC Professional Engineering Services Roemer Expansion 31,223.65$      

80957 GOUIN, JOHN P REPLACE STALE DATED CK#74328 18.00$                 

80958 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 100.77$               

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 13,203.00$      

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 1,049.55$         

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 11.20$              

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 51,563.80$      

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 10,595.00$      

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC Developement of Construction WaterMain I10 & Cedar 6,565.00$         

80959 MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC TO2 MBI Const.Mngmnt Santa Ana Main Phase 1 4,356.50$         

80960 MINUTEMAN PRESS OF RANCHO CUCAMONGA CERTIFICATE-CESAR QUEZADA PRADO 52.69$                 

80961 PACK N MAIL CUST SVCS-OCT 2021 206.00$               

80962 QUINN COMPANY Ps 6-2 Emergency Generator 469,306.48$    

80963 RIALTO WATER SERVICES ROEMER-SEWER SVC 08/31/21-09/30/21 67.17$                 

80964 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER LIEN RELEASE 20.00$                 

80964 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER LIEN RELEASE 20.00$                 

80965 SANTA ANA WATERSHED ASSOCIATION Herbicide Treatment 4,391.73$            

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON BLF ELECTRICITY 119.00$               

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 51,798.92$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 17,148.92$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 76,291.27$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 19,339.43$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 1,075.09$            

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 18,450.23$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ROEMER ELECTRICITY 29,942.45$          

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 2,473.04$            

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 146.99$               

80966 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS-ELECTRICITY 4,467.00$            

80967 SOUTH COAST AQMD PERMIT FEES 440.15$               

80967 SOUTH COAST AQMD EMISSIONS FEES 142.59$               

80968 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON PROJECT DESIGN SUPPORT SERVICES 1,546.21$         

80969 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC TCP Impact Fee and Study Project 12,572.12$      

80970 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD D2 CERTIFICATION-JANET WILLIAMS-HARMON 60.00$                 

Page 9 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 36



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

80971 SULZER ELECTRO-MECHANICAL SERVICES VDF and Keypad Kit 3,534.20$            

80971 SULZER ELECTRO-MECHANICAL SERVICES VDF and Keypad Kit 421.84$               

80972 THERMO FISHER SCIENTIFIC (ASHVILLE) LLC FBR SUPPLIES 1,413.08$            

80972 THERMO FISHER SCIENTIFIC (ASHVILLE) LLC FBR SUPPLIES 2,447.15$            

80973 TIME WARNER CABLE TELEPHONE 2,075.96$            

80973 TIME WARNER CABLE CABLE/INTERNET 325.15$               

80974 TKE ENGINEERING INC Bid Docs for Well 54 Discharge to Waste Drain Line 11,070.00$      

80975 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC Tyler Incode 10 - Implementation 260.00$            

80975 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC Tyler Incode 10 - Implementation 520.00$            

80975 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC Tyler Incode 10 - Implementation 65.00$              

80976 USA BLUEBOOK ROEMER SUPPLIES 103.90$               

80977 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES-9/23/21-10/22/21 4,735.04$            

80977 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES-9/23/21-10/22/21 2,134.23$            

80977 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES-9/23/21-10/22/21 1,272.48$            

80978 YO FIRE ROEMER SUPPLIES 6.47$                    

80978 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 129.30$               

80978 YO FIRE 100 foot roll of 1" copper 1,971.83$            

80996 ARNOLD FIELDS PAINTING Painting Bertha's Office 500.00$               

80997 CEMEX INC Blanket PO Sand For Backfill 862.81$               

80998 CHAMBERLAYNEPR SERVICES-AUGUST 2021 7,500.00$            

80999 CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO LYTLE CREEK STREAMFLOW 23,267.97$          

81000 COLTON PUBLIC UTILITIES WELL 18A ELECTRIC 369.40$               

81001 CONTROL TEMP INC Pre-Treatment AC 1,242.84$            

81002 COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO PERMIT FEES 1,041.25$            

81003 GHD INC Professional Engineering Services Roemer Expansion 60,340.38$      

81004 GOVERNMENT BUSINESS INTERIORS LLC Reconfiguration of Billing Work Stations 150.00$               

81004 GOVERNMENT BUSINESS INTERIORS LLC Reconfiguration of Billing Work Stations 150.00$               

81004 GOVERNMENT BUSINESS INTERIORS LLC Reconfiguration of Billing Work Stations 296.44$               

81004 GOVERNMENT BUSINESS INTERIORS LLC Reconfiguration of Billing Work Stations 1,400.00$            

81005 HARMSCO INC Cartridge filters for IX systems 8,094.00$            

81005 HARMSCO INC Cartridge filters for IX systems 8,094.00$            

81006 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 45.23$                 

81006 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 10.76$                 

81006 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 27.97$                 

81007 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS USA INC COPIER MAINT-9/28/21-10/28/21 329.95$               

81008 LUCIEN PARTNERS Redistricting for West Valley Water District 2020 25,000.00$          

81009 MARK WILEY AWWA Water Loss Audit Validation 2020 1,500.00$            

81010 NED'S OIL SALES INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 16.98$                 

81011 PG MECHANICAL Repair to CAT 420 F Backhoe 850.00$               

81011 PG MECHANICAL 90 Day Inspection Commercial Vehicle 690.00$               

81012 QUINN COMPANY Parts for CAT 420 F 976.07$               

81013 RIALTO WATER SERVICES FBR DISCHARGE-09/13/21-10/18/21 67.17$                 

81013 RIALTO WATER SERVICES HQ WATER 120.58$               

81014 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 122.50$               

81014 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 3,547.50$            

81015 TRES ES INC CONSULTING SVCS-NOV 2021 7,500.00$            

81016 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT Blanket PO for USA Ticket Fees 457.15$               

81016 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT Blanket PO for USA Ticket Fees 233.11$               

81017 USA BLUEBOOK ROEMER SUPPLIES 209.28$               

81018 YO FIRE Copper Order 10/27/21 11,927.93$          

81018 YO FIRE Hydrants 10/27/21 18,802.38$          

81018 YO FIRE 14 inch full circle repair clamp 1,346.88$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA COBRA PAYMENTS DEC 2021 3,204.31$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 481.42$               

Page 10 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 37



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

81027 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 6,555.02$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA VISION 84.72$                 

81027 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL HMO 631.33$               

81027 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 8,242.20$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 178.50$               

81027 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 123,275.78$       

81027 ACWA /JPIA VISION 1,588.50$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA EE ADJUSTMENTS DEC 2021 2,011.44$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA RETIREE - HEALTH 24,315.34$          

81027 ACWA /JPIA RETIREE - DENTAL 2,119.94$            

81027 ACWA /JPIA RETIREE - VISION 635.40$               

81027 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 697.92$               

81027 ACWA /JPIA DELTA CARE DENTAL PPO 47.86$                 

81027 ACWA /JPIA VISION 21.18$                 

81028 AMAZON FBR SUPPLIES 32.30$                 

81028 AMAZON ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 159.62$               

81028 AMAZON ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 119.54$               

81029 AMAZON.COM SALES INC METERS SUPPLIES 313.68$               

81029 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 395.14$               

81030 AT&T TELEMETRY LINE-11/7/21-12/6/21 67.70$                 

81031 AT&T MOBILITY CELL PHONES-10/02/21-11/01/21 23.64$                 

81032 BAVCO WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 118.30$               

81033 CHAMBERLAYNEPR SEPTEMBER 2021 SERVICES 9,000.00$            

81034 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SVCS 107.44$               

81035 CONVERGEONE, INC CIsco VOIP phone systems script update 249.96$               

81035 CONVERGEONE, INC CIsco VOIP phone systems script update 1,345.04$            

81036 D & H WATER SYSTEMS, INC. FBR SUPPLIES 207.49$               

81037 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-10/04/21-11/03/21 164.24$               

81037 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINT-10/05/21-11/04/21 152.68$               

81038 FISH WINDOW CLEANING JANITORIAL SVCS 175.00$               

81039 GARDA CL WEST INC ARMORED TRANSPORTATION SVCS 242.87$               

81040 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 257.30$               

81041 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 102.19$               

81042 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 223.29$               

81043 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY SEPTEMBER 2021 SERVICES 5,527.54$            

81044 INNOVYZE INC CONTRACTS/LICENSING 1,782.00$            

81045 ISMAEL IBARRA PICTURE FRAME-JOSE'S OFFICE 300.00$               

81046 JIMENEZ, GARY R SAFETY BOOTS 215.99$               

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 102.31$               

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 9.22$                    

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 33.94$                 

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 257.27$               

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 68.91$                 

81047 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 159.39$               

81048 JON'S FLAGS & POLES WTR QLTY SUPPLIES 31.54$                 

81049 LOWES MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 127.53$               

81050 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 10,023.14$          

81051 QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC POSTAGE METER RENTAL 651.96$               

81052 QUINN COMPANY Replacement seat cushions for CAT 420 E & F 622.73$               

81053 RIALTO WATER SERVICES WELL#16 WATER-09/30/21-10/27/21 30.42$                 

81054 RIVER FIRE & SECURITY Smoke Detector 525.00$               

81054 RIVER FIRE & SECURITY Smoke Detector 431.00$               

81054 RIVER FIRE & SECURITY Smoke Detector 525.00$               

81055 ROYAL INDUSTRIAL SOLUTIONS PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 13.58$                 

Page 11 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 38



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL#22 ELECTRICITY-10/13/21-11/11/21 17.74$                 

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL#17/19920 COUNTRY CLUB ELECTRICITY 2,460.16$            

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON SOUTH END SHOP 92.81$                 

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL#17/19920 COUNTRY CLUB ELECTRICITY 3,063.76$            

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL#6 ELECTRICITY-10/12/21-11/09/21 18,153.88$          

81056 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL#11X ELECTRICITY-10/13/21-11/11/21 56.37$                 

81057 THE GAS COMPANY ROEMER GAS 21.43$                 

81057 THE GAS COMPANY HQ GAS SERVICE-10/08/21-11/09/21 24.15$                 

81058 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC AR INCODE 62.50$              

81058 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC AR INCODE CREDIT (62.50)$             

81058 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC SOFTWARE LICENSE 14,000.00$      

81059 UNIVAR USA INC Phosphoric Acid 3,771.68$            

81060 VERIZON CONNECT NWF INC CONTRACTS/LICENSES 679.98$               

81061 WATER EDUCATION FOR LATINO LEADERS WELL WEBINAR SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 7,500.00$            

81062 WHITE CAP CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 76.01$                 

81062 WHITE CAP CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 100.06$               

81063 ZWEIBACK FISET & COLEMAN LLP PMT IN FULL SATISFACTION OF SETTLEMENT 16,800.00$          

81076 AIRGAS USA LLC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 54.78$                 

81077 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Monthly Janitorial Services-NOV 2021 350.00$               

81077 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Monthly Janitorial Services-NOV 2021 2,797.24$            

81077 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Monthly Janitorial Services-NOV 2021 1,283.04$            

81078 ALLIANCE 2020 INC HR RECRUIT SERVICES 221.60$               

81079 AMAZON WTR QLTY SUPPLIES 332.41$               

81079 AMAZON WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 99.01$                 

81079 AMAZON ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 42.66$                 

81080 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 367.21$               

81080 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 494.11$               

81081 AT&T INTERNET INTERNET 11/07/21-12/06/21 90.95$                 

81082 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE LOWER CACTUS BASIN 2 MAINT PROJECT 63,270.00$          

81083 CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 2021-2022 POOL ASSESSMENT 4,397.29$            

81084 CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO BLF WATER-10/12/21-11/08/21 40.98$                 

81085 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 786.67$               

81085 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 263.77$               

81085 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 786.56$               

81085 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 263.71$               

81086 D & H WATER SYSTEMS, INC. FBR SUPPLIES 499.49$               

81087 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-10/14/21-11/13/21 5.38$                    

81088 EL CHICANO NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING SPANISH 11/18/21 68.00$                 

81089 FISH WINDOW CLEANING JANITORIAL SVCS-WINDOWS 45.00$                 

81090 HIDALGO, ALLAN B SAFETY GLASSES 141.97$               

81091 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 139.42$               

81092 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 10.75$                 

81092 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 23.66$                 

81093 JVS UTILITIES INTERNSHIP 7,070.15$            

81094 LEGAL SHIELD LEGALSHIELD 300.99$               

81094 LEGAL SHIELD LEGALSHIELD 300.96$               

81095 LOWES MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 78.26$                 

81095 LOWES MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 47.03$                 

81096 MACKAMUL, ROBERT SAFETY GLASSES 95.91$                 

81097 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Blanket Po For Street Paving 17,317.80$          

81097 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Blanket Po For Street Paving 24,502.50$          

81098 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA, A MEDICALHR SERVICES 67.00$                 

81099 OLGUIN, RUDY MEALS FOR OVERTIME CREW 146.38$               

81100 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 200.98$               

Page 12 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 39



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2021

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

81101 OSTS INC HR TRAFFIC CONTROL TRAINING 1,875.00$            

81102 RIALTO RECORD NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 11/18/21 80.00$                 

81103 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER LIEN RELEASE 20.00$                 

81104 SILVERSKY EMAIL SERVICES 2,158.97$            

81105 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC TCP Impact Fee and Study Project 9,822.29$         

81106 TESCO CONTROLS INC Tesco FBR and Well 6 Repair 2,032.00$            

81107 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 2,965.00$            

81107 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 300.00$               

81107 THE STANDARD AD&D 75.60$                 

81107 THE STANDARD DEPENDENT LIFE 14.76$                 

81107 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 318.00$               

81107 THE STANDARD LONG TERM DISABILITY 64.98$                 

81107 THE STANDARD AD&D 963.61$               

81107 THE STANDARD DEPENDENT LIFE 280.44$               

81107 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 4,138.86$            

81107 THE STANDARD LONG TERM DISABILITY 6,223.59$            

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 573.20$               

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 573.15$               

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 573.20$               

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 573.15$               

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 485.77$               

81107 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 487.22$               

81107 THE STANDARD EE ADJUSTMENTS SEPT/ OCT/ NOV 1.41$                    

81108 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC CONTRACTS/LICENSES 2,625.00$            

81109 USA BLUEBOOK FBR SUPPLIES 493.82$               

81110 WIENHOFF DRUG TESTING HR SERVICES 640.00$               

81111 HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES DARLING & MAH INCLEGAL FEES 33,470.50$          

81112 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 14,192.55$          

81112 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 8,392.50$            

81113 REED & DAVIDSON LLP LEGAL FEES 480.00$               

81114 SANDRA FAVELA TURF REBATE 3,089.00$            

81115 TAFOYA LAW GROUP APC LEGAL FEES-OCT 2021 17,796.60$          

81116 TAFOYA LAW GROUP APC LEGAL FEES-AUG 2021 19,863.00$          

81117 TAFOYA LAW GROUP APC LEGAL FEES-SEPT 2021 28,930.00$          

SUBTOTALS 1,272,246.35      1,000,673.63   

GRAND TOTAL 2,272,919.98   

Page 13 of 13

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 40



Report Month       Description From To Gross Wages Paid

July 2021 Pay Period #13 06/11/21 06/25/21 269,046.46                    

July 2021 Monthly Pay Period #7 06/01/21 06/30/21 6,961.39                        

July 2021 Manual Check 06/26/21 06/28/21 8,291.28                        

July 2021 Pay Period #14 06/25/21 07/09/21 258,949.72                    

July 2021 Pay Period #15 07/09/21 07/23/21 272,029.81                    

Total for July 2021 815,278.66                    

August 2021 Monthly Pay Period #8 07/01/21 07/31/21 7,640.55                        

August 2021 Pay Period #16 07/23/21 08/06/21 261,100.42                    

August 2021 Pay Period #17 08/06/21 08/20/21 273,961.88                    

Total for August 2021 542,677.04                    

 September 2021 Monthly Pay Period #9 08/01/21 08/30/21 6,935.94                        

 September 2021 Pay Period #18 08/20/21 09/03/21 271,715.40                    

 September 2021 Pay Period #19 09/03/21 09/17/21 314,831.83                    

Total for September 2021 593,483.17                    

October 2021 Monthly Pay Period #10 09/01/21 09/30/21 6,337.81                        

October 2021 Pay Period #20 09/17/21 10/01/21 272,577.37                    

October 2021 Pay Period #23 Direct Deposits 10/01/21 10/15/21 280,962.78                    

Total for October 2021 05/20/59 559,877.96                    

 November 2021 Monthly Pay Period #11 11/01/21 11/30/21 6,177.27                        

 November 2021 Pay Period #22 10/15/21 10/30/21 289,417.84                    

 November 2021 Pay Period #23 10/30/21 11/12/21 363,550.44                    

Total for November 2021 659,145.55                    

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PAYROLL GROSS WAGES

FISCAL YEAR 2021 - 2022

EFT Payroll Items for Board Approval

Payroll Gross Wages

2.5.b

Packet Pg. 41



Date Item
Check No. or 

EFT
Amount

11/04/21 Pay Period #22 none 0.00

11/04/21 Monthly Pay Period #11 none 0.00

11/18/21 Pay Period #23 none 0.00

   Total Checks 0.00

11/04/21 Pay Period #22 Direct Deposits EFT 197,782.81

11/04/21 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 69,701.33

11/04/21 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 15,657.76

11/04/21 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 12,620.05

11/04/21 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,025.00

11/04/21 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 3,143.22

11/04/21 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 750.00

11/04/21 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 27,252.89

11/04/21 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 14,573.65

11/04/21 California State Disbursement / EDD EFT 1,551.24

11/04/21 Monthly Pay Period #11 Direct Deposits EFT 5,396.52

11/04/21 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 1,378.44

11/04/21 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 65.86

11/18/21 Pay Period #23 Direct Deposits EFT 246,952.52

11/18/21 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 91,866.17

11/18/21 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 21,690.94

11/18/21 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,023.76

11/18/21 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,025.00

11/18/21 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 3,143.22

11/18/21 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 750.00

11/18/21 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 29,147.10

11/18/21 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 14,791.67

11/18/21 California State Disbursement / EDD EFT 1,224.73

11/24/21 EDD Unemployment Benefit Charge EFT 3,559.00

   Total EFT 783,072.88

Grand Total Payroll Cash 783,072.88

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

EFT AND PAYROLL ITEMS

  NOVEMBER 2021

EFT Payroll Items for Board Approval

Nov

2.5.b

Packet Pg. 42



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Financial Status Report to be presented to the 
Finance Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of 
Directors. The reports are being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) 
and will be presented on a monthly basis. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Monthly Financial Status Reports summarizes the District’s revenue categories as well as 
expenditures for all Departments. The original total budget includes the adopted budget. Current 
total budget includes the adopted budget plus any budget amendments or adjustments made during 
the year. Period activity column represents activity for the reporting periods. Fiscal activity column 
represents the year-to-date activity or transactions that have been recorded in the general ledger 
from the beginning of the fiscal year July 1 through November 30. The encumbrance column 
represents funds encumbered with a purchase order that’s not spent but committed. The percent 
column represents the percentage of the current budget that has been received (Revenue) or utilized 
(Expenditure).   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2021 Monthly Revenue & Expenditure 
Report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY REVENUE & EXPENDITURES REPORT - NOVEMBER 2021 

2.6

Packet Pg. 43



 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
SM:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 2021 November Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

2.6

Packet Pg. 44



12/6/2021 4:43:54 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Report
West Valley Water District, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 11/30/2021

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

UsedDepartmen…

Revenue

9,758,729.021,658,776.8218,387,996.00 18,387,996.00 0.00 -8,629,266.984000 - Water consumption sales 53.07 %

3,281,384.28733,998.987,525,545.00 7,525,545.00 0.00 -4,244,160.724010 - Water service charges 43.60 %

799,138.6435,724.154,134,968.00 4,134,968.00 0.00 -3,335,829.364020 - Other operating revenue 19.33 %

82,130.5682,130.562,340,807.00 2,340,807.00 0.00 -2,258,676.444030 - Property Taxes 3.51 %

-128,754.88-5,851.60350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00 -478,754.884040 - Interest & Investment Earnings 36.79 %

15,068.553,013.7135,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 -19,931.454050 - Rental Revenue 43.05 %

28,795.220.0050,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 -21,204.784060 - Grants and Reimbursements 57.59 %

28,485.9620,046.4419,000.00 19,000.00 0.00 9,485.964080 - Other Non-Operating Revenue 149.93 %

13,864,977.352,527,839.0632,843,316.00 32,843,316.00 0.00 -18,978,338.65Revenue Total: 42.22 %

2.6.a

Packet Pg. 45



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 11/30/2021

12/6/2021 4:43:54 PM Page 2 of 3

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

UsedDepartmen…

Expense

338,469.3141,672.801,406,000.00 1,406,000.00 0.00 1,067,530.695110 - Source Of Supply 24.07 %

1,241,300.80348,679.733,593,450.00 3,593,450.00 73,198.30 2,278,950.905210 - Production 36.58 %

181,629.7734,818.10643,130.00 643,130.00 16,782.44 444,717.795310 - Water Quality 30.85 %

92,131.9922,403.19280,000.00 280,000.00 23,653.03 164,214.985320 - Water Treatment - Perchlorate 41.35 %

696,322.29208,365.561,824,240.00 1,824,240.00 77,134.23 1,050,783.485350 - Water Treatment - FBR/FXB 42.40 %

830,518.38124,234.502,121,850.00 2,121,850.00 201,115.42 1,090,216.205390 - Water Treatment - Roemer/Arsenic 48.62 %

847,051.07179,306.162,490,500.00 2,490,500.00 176,590.63 1,466,858.305410 - Maintenance - T & D 41.10 %

427,394.9785,953.721,236,300.00 1,236,300.00 0.00 808,905.035510 - Customer Service 34.57 %

398,742.8766,599.071,049,700.00 1,049,700.00 0.00 650,957.135520 - Meter Reading 37.99 %

182,240.7739,483.60498,100.00 498,100.00 103,228.60 212,630.635530 - Billing 57.31 %

675,768.00222,015.552,305,325.00 2,305,325.00 50,000.00 1,579,557.005610 - Administration 31.48 %

1,675,928.6960,379.213,446,536.00 3,446,536.00 120,522.09 1,650,085.225615 - General Operations 52.12 %

328,768.6273,378.59877,035.00 877,035.00 47,250.00 501,016.385620 - Accounting 42.87 %

508,007.45122,024.731,688,985.00 1,688,985.00 495.00 1,180,482.555630 - Engineering 30.11 %

357,543.2787,313.281,204,675.00 1,204,675.00 19,655.50 827,476.235640 - Business Systems 31.31 %

90,457.7912,701.59252,550.00 252,550.00 0.00 162,092.215645 - GIS 35.82 %

70,231.8417,827.28282,300.00 282,300.00 23,625.00 188,443.165650 - Board Of Directors 33.25 %

257,456.4759,111.321,019,030.00 1,019,030.00 128,031.21 633,542.325660 - Human Resources/Risk Management 37.83 %

202,662.5241,831.33541,400.00 541,400.00 0.00 338,737.485680 - Purchasing 37.43 %

261,736.00118,986.581,255,136.00 1,255,136.00 265,580.00 727,820.005710 - Public Affairs 42.01 %

3,389.003,089.0030,500.00 30,500.00 0.00 27,111.005720 - Grants & Rebates 11.11 %

216,577.540.00951,350.00 951,350.00 0.00 734,772.466200 - Interest Expense 22.77 %

16,800.0016,800.000.00 0.00 0.00 -16,800.006800 - Other Non-Operating Expense 0.00 %

9,901,129.411,986,974.8928,998,092.00 28,998,092.00 1,326,861.45 17,770,101.14Expense Total: 38.72 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): 540,864.17 3,963,847.943,845,224.00 3,845,224.00 -1,326,861.45 -1,208,237.51 68.58 %

2.6.a

Packet Pg. 46



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 11/30/2021

12/6/2021 4:43:54 PM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - Water Operations Fund 3,963,847.94540,864.173,845,224.00 3,845,224.00 -1,326,861.45 -1,208,237.51

Report Surplus (Deficit): 540,864.17 3,963,847.943,845,224.00 3,845,224.00 -1,326,861.45 -1,208,237.51

2.6.a

Packet Pg. 47



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Receive and File: 
 
Attached is the Settlement Agreement and General Mutual Release for Director Dr. Clifford 
Young’s claim for attorney fees. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) will be paid to Dr. Young’s lawyer. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Board has already approved this settlement amount. Staff recommends the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SM:pa 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Young - WVWD Settlement (Final) copy 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: YOUNG SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

2.7

Packet Pg. 48



������������	
�����������	���
����������
�������

� ���������	�
��������
��������������	������	���	���������������
����������������������
���������������
����������� ! "�������#���$�����%�������&��������'��������(����)�		�&�(�����
%�����$����������������()(%�������������������������%�*�+	�������,�����������������������������
����%�*�,�����������������������*��()(%�����,��������$�		�$����	&���������������������������
�-������*��


��������

�*� (.#�#����%�*�,�����������	�$����/�������
������������(����)�		�&�(�����
%�����$�*�

/*� (.#�#����������������0����1�� ! !����������&��2����$����33-�������������*�
����&��� #�4*� �$�		�$����	&� ���� �����&�� -��������� ��	��� �� 	�'����� ������� %�*�,���� ��� ���� 3���
���	�����5������+����������%�$	������&���	���������&��2����$���33-�����	*��*�%�*�+	�������,�����
+������*�"6��+)7 681��������$������*�

+*� (.#�#��������������������
����9!�� ! !������&��-���������	�������4���������
%��
����	����������$������'��$��'��������������������
�������

%*� (.#�#����%�*�,����������$�������������&:����������������	����������$����������
����
��������4������������
�����
���������������&�:��������$���������5��5���������������������������
�$����*�

#*� (.#�#���������5������������������'��������()(%��������������������������%�*�
,�����������������������������'��������������%�*�,������������	���������
�����
�������������
�������&�:��������$��������������'�����
�����������%��5�����*�

;*� (.#�#���������������������������
���������������
��������������$��������%��5�����
�������������������������������	�$��������������$�������&����	��������������-���������������������	���
��&������		�$	��
�����'�������
����	�������������$���������%��5�����������������������<�$���������
���������
��������������	��������������������
���&������		�$	��
����	������������%��5���*�

�*� (.#�#���� ���� -������� '���� ��� ����	�� �		� ��� ������ $	��
�� ���� ��������$��� '����
���5�$���������%��5���*�

� �=(��.#�#;=�#����������������	���	��$����������������$	���������
����	�$���������
$����������������������������������		�'�>�

"*� �������&�-�&
���*������()(%����		�5�&��������,����������
����;�������������
%�		�����?@�!!!������������������������	�
�����
�������������		���������	��������$���������		�$	��
��
��	������������%��5���*����������	�
�����
��������		����5�������%�*�,����'������������@�����������
��&�������		�'�������	��55����	������������	�
�����&�����()(%�%���*���

 *� �����	���	����*�

2.7.a

Packet Pg. 49



���� A5�����		�5�&
���������������	�
�����
����������()(%�����������������������
����%�*�,�������������������������������
��	��������������&�������������������������&�
����		&�
��	������ ���$����� ���� �������� �$4���� ���� �������� ���� ������ ��5�������������� ������� ����������
�<�$���������
���������������$$�����������������������
������������$�������5����������
5	�&�����
�
5	�&�����5��������$�
5�������������������������	�����������$���������$�������������	������
�
������
�$$������������������������������&�������������
���&�$	��
����	������������%��5���*�;����������$��
��� ������� ���� ��	����� ���� ������ ������� ��� 	�
����� ��� $	��
�� ������� ���� ��� ���� ���5���� �����
���
�����
��������������&�:��������$�������&�%�*�,���������'��	�����������
5�$�������&�������
$	��
��%�*�,����
�&������������� ����%�����$��� ����������
�
�������
5	�&����������������&�
������������5�������

���� ���� -������� �$B��'	���� ���� ����� ����� ���� $	��
�� ��	������ ������� ��$	���� �		�
$	��
���'�������B��'�������B��'������5�$������������5�$������	������������%��5�����������$�����
���
� �������� �$B��'	����� ����� ���� ���� ��� ���
�&����������� ���$����� ��$��� ���������� ���
���� ���
�������������������'��$������������������'�B��'��������	������������������'�������5�$���������%��5���*��
��������	����� ���� -������� ����� ����� ���� �������� ��	����� ���		� ��� ���� ��
���� ����$����� ��� �		�
���5�$�������'�������������$������������������������	���$��������������$����&�������������������$���
���&��<5����	&�'�������&������		� ������5�������� �������������	��
��	����	��$�����"@7 �'��$��
5�������������		�'�>�

��	���
���
�����������������������������������������
�����
�
�
�
�������	���
������������������
�������������������������
�
��
�����
�����������������������	�����
��������������������

��������������
���
�����������������
�������������������
���
�
�������������������������
��
�
����������
����

9*� ����$B��'	��
�������3����	��&*�����������
����$���������������$�
5��
��������
����	�
����������5�����$	��
�*���������$���������������������
�������		�$��������������$���������
�������������
��������������
�������������	���	����	��&����'���������������5���������&�-���&*���

7*� #������ ����
���*� � ����� ����
���� $�������� ���� ������� ����
���� ����
������������� $��$������ ���� ����	�
���� ��� ���� %��5���� ���$���� ���'���� ���� -�������� ����
��5��������������5	�$����		�5������������������5��5���������
���������'�������������	�����
�����
�������������$��������C���%��5���*��#�$���������-���������������$B��'	�������������������-���&��
���� ��&� ����� ��� �������&� ��� ��&� -���&�� ���� 
���� ��&� 5��
����� ��5������������� ��� '������&�
'������������<5�����������
5	���������$����������������$��$�������������D�$��
�����������������
����$���������<�$�������������
���������$B��'	����������������������<�$��������������
�������
��	���$�������&���$��5��
�������5���������������'������&�����$���������������*�

@*� ��$$������� ���� ������*� � ����� ����
���� ���		� ������ ��� ���� �������� ��� ���� ���
������������$���������-�����������������������������$$������������������������*�

E*� ����$�� ��� +�����	*� � ���� -������� ��5������� ����� 5����� ��� ���� �<�$������ ��� �����
����
������$�����������55�������&�������B��������������������5�������	��	�$�����	���������'��
��	�$������������������������$��������������
���*��

2.7.a

Packet Pg. 50



8*� ��5������������+�5�$��&*��#�$�����������	��<�$��������������
�����������	�����
��&�-���&��<5����	&���5������������'���������������C���C���������������&�����<�$��������������&������
����-���&��������	�����'��$����C���C����<�$��������������
��������������
��������������
��������
�������������
���&�������	�����
	������$��������-���&����
���&�$	��
��������$����������&���������
�<���*�

1*� ;�������%�$�
��������*��#�$���������-�����������������		�����		��$��������<�$�����		�
��$�
�������$�����&��������$�������������
������5����������������������
���*���

6*� ���������3�'*� ����������
���� ���
���� ������ ���� ���		� ��� ���������&� ����
$�������������$$�����$��'��������	�'������������������+�	�������*��F����&��$����������	�����������$��
��������5������&�����������
�����5����������������������
�������������'���������-�����������������
�����55��5���������������		���������������������	�$��������$�
5������D������$�����	�$������������������
���+�	���������+����&����3������	��*�

"!*� ������$�����*�����������
����
�&���	&����
���������&��������4�������$�
�������
'��������������&�����-���&�������$����������������*���

""*� +������5����G�;�$��
�	��*�����������
����
�&�����<�$��������$������5����������&�
��$��
�	�����-%;�������������$�����'��$�����		�������
������������	�������		����'��$����������
���		�$������������������������
��������
���*���

" *� +������$����*������5�����������������������
�������		������		�5��5��������$���������
�$$��������������������
������������������$�	&�����������������&�-���&������������'�������������
���'��$��-���&������������
����$����������		������&�5�������������������
���*�

"9*� ��������	��&*� � F�� ��&� 5��������� ��� ����� ����
���� ��� �����
����� �&� �� $����� ���
$�
5������ ��������&� ��� ��� �������$���	��� ���� ��&� �������� ���� ��
������ 5���������� ���		�
��������	������������		����$����������$�*�

"7*� #����$����	��&�A�������$�����EE7*E*��F���������������		�������������������
������
����	��	�����������������
��������������������������&�����������
��������������
��������
������		&�
����$�����&���&�-���&������������-���&�$��������$���������
��������������
����5�����������+����
���+���	�-��$��������$�����EE7*E����������������	����-���&*�

"@*� +����*������-�������������������
������������������������'��$����������������&�:�
��������$����$�����'�������������
�������������$����*�

"E*� �������&�:�;����A5���/���$�*��F����&��$��������	�'��������4���&�������&�
����������
������� ��� �����$�� ����� ����
����� ���� 5�����	��� -���&� ���		� ��� �����	��� ��� �		� ��� ���� $����� ���
�����������5����$�����������$��������
���������$	�������������	���������&�:�����*�

"8*� (���������*� �����-��������������$����� ���
��'������>� ����� ��������������5���������
�����&���������������$	��
�����&���������������&��������$	��
�����
������$����������$�����������
����
$������� ��� ���������
���G� ����� ����� ���&�� ���� ��$����� ���
�� ����� ���� ��	�� ����� ���� �<$	������
��������&� ��� �<�$���� ����� ����
���G� ���� ������ ����� ���&� ����� ���� ��	��� ��������� �������������
$����&�����������'�������5�������� ��&�$	��
����
����� $�������� �$��������	����������
������
	����	��&�$�������������������
���*�

2.7.a

Packet Pg. 51



"1*� %����	�*� � F�� ��&� -���&� �����	��� ������ ��&� ��� ���� ��	�������� ���� ������ ��� �����
����
������������H�����	����-���&����		���������������	����-���&���
�������'��������$	�����
���������	�*����$����
�������		�������
�����������������
�����
��	��*��F��'������"!���������&������
�����	���� -���&� ����� ���� $���� ���� $	��
��� �����	��� ���� ���H�����	���� -���&� 
�&� 5������ ��&�
��
����������	��	����������$	��������������	�
���������������
������$������������-�����5��"7������*���

"6*� .������*����������������$	�����������������
������������$��������$����	&�����
��� ���� 	�
���� �	����� ��� ����$�� ���� 
������� $��������� ��� ����� ����
���� ��� ���� 5�����5��� ���&�
��$�5����*�

�

�

��	����	����	��	���	���������	�����			

� �

2.7.a

Packet Pg. 52



F��(F��#���(.#�#=;�� ����-��������<�$���� ���������	�
��������
��������������	������	�
��	������'��$��$�������������������������5����������		�'�>�

�

�

� � � � � � � �(#���)�33#,�(��#��%F���F+���

�

/&>����������������������������������

��
�>��������������������������������

F��>����������������������������������

�

�

�

�%�*�+3F;;=�%�,=A����

�

/&>����������������������������������

�

�

�

2.7.a

Packet Pg. 53



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
During the normal course of operations, personal property owned by the West Valley Water District 
(“District”) becomes surplus, unusable or no longer needed and in order to promote uniformity and 
transparency in the procedures for the disposal, sale, or transfer of surplus personal property the 
District has adopted a Surplus Personal Property Policy.  The Surplus Personal Property Policy was 
last updated June 17, 2021. Exhibit A is a copy of the Surplus Personal Property Policy. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
After completion of the Customer Service Lobby and Board Room A/V renovation project, there 
were many items that became Surplus stored in the Warehouse taking up much valuable needed 
space.  There are also many items and materials at Zone 6 Reservoir Complex and in Inventory that 
will no longer be used.   
 
These Surplus items are many years old and through assessment of their present condition have no 
inherent value.  In addition, donating these Surplus items is not recommended due to their 
condition, age and possible liability to the District. Section 11 of the Surplus Policy allows 
appropriate disposal or recycling of Surplus items of no inherent value such as these.  Exhibit B is a 
list of Surplus items and associated pictures.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The cost to appropriately dispose of these Surplus items will be approximately offset from the 
money generated from the weight of the metal being recycled. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration and the Board of Directors approve 
this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: DISPOSE OF OLD SURPLUS ITEMS AND MATERIALS 

2.8

Packet Pg. 54



 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
SM;ar 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibits for Surplus 2021 Staff Report 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

2.8

Packet Pg. 55



Exhibit A 

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 56



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AMENDING

SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY POLICY
RESOLUTION NO. 748

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3. 

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 57



Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

Section 10.

Section 11.

Section 12.

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 58



Exhibit B 

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 59



Quantity Item Condition Value Disposal Method

Printers

2 HP OFFICE JET PRO 6230 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET 600 M602 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 HP LASER JET CP1525nwcolor Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET CM353ofs MFP Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET color m451dn Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET 3390 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET PRO 200 color M251nw Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP LASER JET PRO 500 color MFP M570dn Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 HP color laser jet pro MFP M477fnw Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Ithaca POS Jet 1500 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Monitors

3 Acer Monitor Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Monitor  Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

21 Dell Model W04C Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Samsung 523C200 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Acer V2464QC Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Ultra Sharp Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell 1703FPI Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Acer V223W Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Asus VS238 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Dell 2408 WFFb Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 HP 24oh Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell 2311Hf Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 LG 1PS LED Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Acer 32" Monitor Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Optiplex 9030 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Optiplex 9031 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Telephones

4 Cisco IP Phone 7911 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Cisco IP Phone 7914 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

23 Cisco IP Phone 7941 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Cisco IP Phone 7942 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

7 Cisco IP Phone 7961 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Cisco IP Phone 7965 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

3 Cisco IP Phone 7970 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Cisco Station Model 7936 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Computers

1 Surface Laptop Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Thinkpad/Lenova Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Epson Powerlite 477ow Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

4 Think Centre M Series Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 MP Ellite Desk  Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Vostro 220a  Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Optiplex 390 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Dell Optiplex 6x260 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Miscellaneaous IT Equipment

1 Brother Intellifax 5750e Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 IBM Wheelwriter Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Panasonic Omnivision (VCR) Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron Quick Media Switch Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Fellowes Orion e 500 Damaged/Poor No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Board Room A/V Equipment

15 Crestron QM‐WMC Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron QM‐RX Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron QM‐AE Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

3 Crestron CN‐PWS Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron CN‐HBLOCK Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 JTS‐US‐800ID Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

13 JTS‐ST‐5030 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron TPMC‐8X (Main Controller) Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Crestron TPMC‐8X‐DS (Telephone) Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 AMIS 480P (Power Amp) Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Drawer/Rack (Black) Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron Quick Media Switch QM‐MD‐16x16 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 60



Quantity Item Condition Value Disposal Method

1 Small Drawer/Rack (Black) Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron DVPHD Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 AQUOS BD PLAYER (Sharp) BD‐HP20 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron AV2 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

2 Clear One PSR 122 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Baseline Switch 3C16470 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron (QMS) QM‐MD5X1 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 Crestron C2N‐HBLOCK Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

1 NADY 1R‐200 Damaged/Poor/Obsolete No Inherent Value E‐Waste Recycle

Furniture

1 4 Drawer Light Grey Cabinet‐ VICTOR Dark Grey Cabinet Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 HON Black 4 Drawer‐VICTOR Beige 4 Drawer Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Large 2 Piece Brown Desk Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Large 2 Piece Maroon Desk Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Large Brown Desk with Overhead Storage Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Large Brown Wood Cabinet Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Small Brown 4 Drawer Cabinet Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

1 Large Brown 2 Drawer Hutch Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Waste Disposal

Zone 6 Reservoir Complex Items

1 30" X 4' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 30" X 7' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 30" X 5' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 30" X 2' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 30"X 16' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 30" X 26' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 8" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 24" X 27' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 12' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 30" X 6' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 18" X 30' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 18" X 18' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 4' X 30" Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 6" X 5' Double Flange Elbow Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 6' Flanged Tee Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 2' X 1' X 5' Long Reducer Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

4 18" X 2' (45 Degree) Elbow Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 2' (45 Degree) Elbow Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

10 30" X 10' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 18" X 24' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

12 18" x 18' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 48" X 8' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 3' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 2' Tee Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 32" X 16' White Rings Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 3' Green Ring Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

4 32" White Flange Rings Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 36" Green Flange Rings Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 2' X 1' Flange Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 28" X 1' Green Flange  Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 1' X 1' Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 8" X 1' Elbow Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 8" Flange/Propellers Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 8" White Gate Valve Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 8" X 18" Cross Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 3' Repair Equip. Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 5' Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 32" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 27" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 24" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 19" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 17" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 8" Blind Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 Jones Hydrants Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

4 30" Dome Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 36" Dome Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" Dome Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 61



Quantity Item Condition Value Disposal Method

1 16" Dome Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" Dome Flange Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 5' X 3' X 2' Enclosure Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 350 Gallon Chemical Container White Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 300 Gallon Chemical Container Black Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 32" X 16' Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 8' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 10" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 10' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 5' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 18' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 14" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 21' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 19' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 17' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 14' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 18' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 18" X 18' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 14" X 12' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 13' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 12' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 16' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 12" X 20' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 16" X 12' Steel Pipe Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

10 6' X 6' Chain Link Panels Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

4 6' X 10' Chain Link Panels Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 Rolls Chain Link Wire Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Roll Barb Wire Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

16 Rolls of Chain Link Fence Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Crate of Misc Fence Parts Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

66 6'‐8' Fence Poles Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

16 16'‐20' Fence Poles Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

5 Miscellaneaous Water Treatment/Production Parts Damaged/Poor/Unusable No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

Inventory Items

1 Full Circle Clamp    4.74‐5.14 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp    3.00‐4.25 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp    4.71‐5.14 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp    4.75‐5.14 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp    4.95‐5.35 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp     Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp     Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp     Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp     Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp     Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 Snap Clamp     Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp  Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp  Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Missing Bolts/Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 6" Mechanical Joint x FLG Obsolete No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 4" Mechanical Joint x FLG Obsolete/Missing Rubber No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 4" Mechanical Joint x FLG Obsolete/Missing Rubber No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp    19.50‐20.70 Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Full Circle Clamp  Damaged/Bent/Missing Hardware No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Mechanical Joint Obsolete No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 62



Quantity Item Condition Value Disposal Method

10 3" Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 4" Snap Clamp  Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

1 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 Snap Clamp Obsolete Replaced with Full Circle Clamp No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

16 Slip Cans Obsolete Replaced with a Thicker Walled Slip Can No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

7 Slip Cans Obsolete Replaced with a Thicker Walled Slip Can No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

5 Slip Cans Obsolete Replaced with a Thicker Walled Slip Can No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

4 Slip Cans Obsolete Replaced with a Thicker Walled Slip Can No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

3 Slip Cans Obsolete Replaced with a Thicker Walled Slip Can No Inherent Value Metal Recycle

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 63



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 64



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 65



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 66



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 67



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 68



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 69



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 70



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 71



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 72



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 73



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 74



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 75



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 76



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 77



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 78



2.8.a

Packet Pg. 79



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement in the lawsuit against Fontana Union Water Company 
(FUWC) et al by the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, City of Rialto, City of Colton, 
and West Valley Water District (District), the latter three (3) entities and Fontana Union Water 
Company are required to form what is now known as the Rialto Basin Groundwater Council 
(RBGC) to promote sustainable groundwater management, including developing a groundwater 
management plan (GWMP). 
 
The GWMP will provide important insight into how to optimally manage the basin and to preserve 
groundwater as an important local and reliable water supply source. It will implement a coordinated 
strategy of extraction and recharge activities so groundwater levels in the Rialto Basin can be 
sustainably managed without overdraft conditions occurring and will address improving and 
mitigating low groundwater levels and other impacts. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
To facilitate the development of the GWMP, the RBGC Technical Advisory Committee (RBGC 
TAC), consisting of staff from the 4 agencies, prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) to retain an 
engineering-hydrogeologist professional services consultant to assist with the work. The RFP was 
received by 6 qualified firms and in response the following three proposals (listed alphabetically) 
were received: 
 

Firm 
 

Proposed Cost for Non-Optional  
 

Scope of Work 

Proposed Cost with Optional  
 

Work Items 

Geoscience $519,236 $519,236 

Geosyntec Consultants $212,513 $287,092 

Stetson Engineers $176,600 $197,600 

 
After a thorough and deliberate evaluation of the proposals, the members of the RBGC TAC are 
unanimously recommending Stetson Engineers be awarded the work to develop the GWMP. 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO 
DEVELOP THE RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 

2.9

Packet Pg. 80



Stetson is already familiar with the Rialto Basin, is proposing a very efficient scope of work, and has 
demonstrated themselves to be highly successfully in providing engineering and hydrogeological 
groundwater consulting services for the nearby Main San Gabriel Basin. In addition to the core 
scope of services (i.e., non-optional scope of work), Stetson’s proposal included two optional items: 
stakeholder and legal coordination and engagement and a data gap evaluation. The RBGC TAC 
opines these additional work items will add value to the development of the GWMP and is 
recommending they be included as part of a contract award. 
 
A fuller description of Pros and Cons of each team’s proposal is attached as Exhibit A. Stetson’s 
proposal is attached as Exhibit B. 
 
The RBGC scheduled to meet on December 9, 2021 to discuss the GWMP proposals and the 
RBGC TAC is recommending the following actions: 
 

1. Approved a budget item titled, “Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater 
Management Plan,” funded it in the amount of $215,000 (which includes contingency), and 
assigned a 25% cost share responsibility to each RBGC member agency; and 

 
2. Approved the selection of Stetson Engineers to develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater 

Management Plan per its proposal; and 
 

3. Appointed, solely for the “Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management 
Plan,” West Valley Water District to be responsible for the accounting and revenue 
collection, securing the funding from the RBGC members, and administer, on behalf of the 
RBGC, the contract with Stetson Engineers to develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater 
Management Plan.  

 
In response to the above listed potential RBGC actions, WVWD staff recommends the District 
retain Stetson Engineers to perform the GWMP on behalf of the parties and accept the 
responsibilities to administer the contract with Stetson Engineers and invoice the other three RBGC 
parties a 25% cost share each for Stetson Engineer’s work performed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The District’s cost share will be up to 25% of the $215,000, which equals $53,750. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 

2.9

Packet Pg. 81



 
 
 
 
VJ;ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. EXHIBIT A- Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (RBGC) Technical Evaluation 
Committee’s Evaluation of the Proposals for the RBGC Groundwater Management Plan 
Project 

2. Exhibit B 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

2.9

Packet Pg. 82



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

2.9.a

Packet Pg. 83



Rialto Basin Groundwater 

Council (RBGC) Technical Evaluation Committee’s 

Evaluation of the Proposals for the 

RBGC Groundwater Management Plan Project 

 

Proposal from: Geoscience 

Total Proposal Cost: $519,236 (no optional work proposed) 

 

PROS • Local firm and expert in groundwater; been in business since 1978 

• Experience working in the Rialto Basin, hence familiarity; built the existing 
Rialto-   Colton Basin Model 

• Understanding of downstream impacts, Orange County Judgment, and 1961 
decree 

• Utilize the Integrated Model rather than the Rialto-Colton Model to 
understand impacts to SBBA and Riverside Basins that may result from 
changes in operation in Rialto Basin 

• Proposal lays out the key issues such as impacts to adjacent basins, 
maximizing production, establishing the operational yield, reducing stranded 
assets, etc. 

• Partnered with Balleau Groundwater for data review and third-party 
hydrology review 

•  Johnson Yeh, the project manager, is a professional hydrogeologist 

•  Firm has wide experience in groundwater modeling, basin adjudication, safe 
yield analysis, GMP’s and GSP’s 

• Plans to update groundwater elevation data, well log reports, pumping and 
water demand records, and water quality data through 2020 

• Significant modeling proposed to develop Operational Yield, Evaluate 
Management Tools, and Evaluate the Potential for Stranded Assets, 
Alternative Recharge Locations, and Cyclic Storage Potential 

• Seven (7) model runs budgeted 

CONS • Scope exceeds the RFP’s Scope of Work and overall goals. 

 

Proposal from: Geosyntec 

Total Proposal Cost (Non-Optional Work): $212,513 

Total Proposal Cost (with Optional Work): $212,513 

 

PROS • In business since 1983; employee-owned corporation of over 1,500 
professionals and support personnel with 89 offices across the U.S. 13 
offices in California. Nearest office in Ontario, Pasadena, San Diego, Long 
Beach and Costa Mesa 

• Understanding that the scope of the GMP is limited to Rialto Basin, the 
alluvial part of Rialto-Colton Basin as defined by Bulletin 118 and include 
the section known as the “No Man’s Land” 

• Modeling will use existing Rialto Groundwater Model, and data gaps will be  
identified and filled to develop recharge and discharge scenarios 

2.9.a

Packet Pg. 84



• Development of groundwater management tools and groundwater 
accounting system 

• Experience with preparing GMP’s and GSP’s primarily in Northern 
California 

• Project Manager, Tara Rolfe, a professional hydrogeologist has over 10 years 
working in the Chino Basin on various groundwater management projects 

• Optional work proposed is for a database and web dashboard ($74,579) 

CONS • GMP will depend on existing Rialto Groundwater Model, but proposal does 
not address how the data gaps identified in the model will be resolved in 
order to perform recharge and extraction scenarios; Task 2A propose to use 
existing model as-is and modify extraction and recharge only in the scenario 
simulations 

• Does not specify number of model runs 

• Least amount of experience specifically in the Rialto Basin compared to 
Stetson and GeoScience. 

 

Proposal from: Stetson Engineers 

Total Proposal Cost (Non-Optional Work): $176,600 

Total Proposal Cost (with Optional Work): $197,600 

 

PROS • Expert in water resources engineering, including groundwater basin 
management 

• Been in business since 1957; nearby offices in Covina and Carlsbad 

• Firm was retained by one of the parties to resolve the legal and pumping 
disputes before settlement was reached in 2018, and Stetson developed the 
framework for a GMP for all parties 

• Project Manager, Stephen Johnson, a registered engineer, has experience 
working in the Rialto Basin and nearby basins 

• Four (4) model runs budgeted using the existing Rialto Model 

• “Straight to the point” approach 

• Has some familiarity with the Rialto-Colton Basin 

• Streamlined project approach 

• Has been highly successfully providing engineering and hydrogeological 
services in the Main San Gabriel Basin for many years, services which have 
included evaluating basin conditions, preparing annual reports, and 
recommending safe operating yields 

• Optional work proposed is for Task for Stakeholder and Legal Coordination 
and Engagement ($10,768) and Data Gap Evaluation ($10,036) 

CONS • Not mentioned how data gaps will be resolved and what impacts they might 
have on the project 

 

2.9.a

Packet Pg. 85



EXHIBIT B 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 86



 

September 29, 2021 
 

Mr. Brian Dickenson  
City of Colton 
650 N La Cadena Dr. 
Colton, CA 92324 

Mr. Tom Crowley   
City of Rialto 
150 S. Palm Avenue 
Rialto, CA 92376 
 

Mr. Cris Fealy 
Fontana Water Company 
15966 Arrow Route 
Fontana, CA 92335 

Mr. Van Jew 
West Valley Water District 
855 W Baseline Rd. 
Rialto, CA 92376 
 
 

Subject: Proposal for Preparation Rialto Basin Groundwater Management 
Plan  

 
Gentlemen:  
 
  Stetson Engineers Inc. (Stetson) is pleased to submit this proposal to the Rialto 
Basin Groundwater Council to develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan. 
 
  Stetson specializes in the management and development of water resources and 
has been providing groundwater management services for decades. Using widely accepted 
water industry standards and relying on extensive, successful past experience in groundwater 
management, Stetson will develop a Groundwater Management Plan to ensure long-term 
groundwater sustainability in the Rialto Groundwater Basin.  
 
  Stetson has been involved in the Rialto Basin and No Man’s Land for several 
decades and thoroughly understands the stakeholders, the positions taken, the 1961 Decree, 
the resource value, and the alternative solutions for evaluation and consideration. For this 
assignment, Stetson commits to representing the best interest of all the parties and 
stakeholders in the RBGC. 
 
  This proposal is valid for 90 days. Please do not hesitate to contact me, or Jeff 
Helsley, at 626-967-6202 if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you for this opportunity 
to assist with the development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan. 
 
        
 
       Sincerely,  
 
        
       Steve Johnson 
       President/CEO/CFO 
       Stetson Engineers Inc.  
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 87



 

 
PROPOSAL 

 
TO 

 

RIALTO BASIN 
GROUNDWATER COUNCIL 

 
FOR 

 

RIALTO BASIN 
GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
SUBMITTED TO: 

  
BRIAN DICKENSON: CITY OF COLTON 

TOM CROWLEY: CITY OF RIALTO 
CRIS FEALY: FONTANA WATER COMPANY 
VAN JEW: WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2021

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 88



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  2 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

 PAGE NO. 
 
1. BACKGROUND OF FIRM ............................................................................... 3 

2. STATEMENT OF PROJECT UNDERSTANDING .................................................. 4 

3. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ............................................................................ 5 

4. QUALIFICATIONS ........................................................................................ 5 

5. SCOPE OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED .......................................................... 7 

6. REFERENCES .......................................................................................... 12 

7.  PROJECT SCHEDULE ............................................................................... 14 

8.  PROJECT COST ...................................................................................... 16 

9.  AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY ......................................................................... 19 

10.  ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT/INSURANCE PROVISIONS ............................ 19 

   
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
   
ATTACHMENT A KEY STAFF RESUMES 
ATTACHMENT B FEE SCHEDULE 
ATTACHMENT C PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
   AGREEMENT 
 
    
 
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 89



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  3 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

1. BACKGROUND OF FIRM  
 

Integrating Engineering with  
Water Resources for Over 60 Years 

 
Stetson Engineers Inc. (Stetson) specializes in 
management and development of water resources. 
The firm consults to federal, state, and local 
agencies; Native American Tribes; community 
groups; and private clients throughout the western 
United States. 
 
Stetson specializes in all phases of water resources 
engineering including groundwater basin 
management; hydrogeological studies of 
groundwater basins; groundwater flow modeling; 
water well design and development; water system 
evaluations; water facility design and construction 
management for complete distribution systems, 
pipelines, reservoir storage facilities, pumping 
stations, and water treatment facilities; water quality 
evaluations; water distribution system hydraulic 
modeling; water district engineering services; 
financial planning and analysis; grant support 
services; and project administration.   
 
BUILDING ON EXCELLENCE 
 
The firm was established by Thomas M. Stetson in 
1957 as Thomas M. Stetson Civil and Consulting 
Engineers. In 1977, the Company was incorporated 
as Stetson Engineers Inc.  Mr. Stetson’s handpicked 
successors have maintained the founder’s focus on 
quality services and long-term relationships with a 
solid client base. We now staff offices in Covina, 
Carlsbad, and San Rafael, California; Centennial, 
Colorado; and Mesa, Arizona.  For over six decades, 
Stetson has provided creative solutions to water 
resources issues, considering and applying state-of-
the-art or unique methods in addition to traditional 
approaches. Stetson has moved to the forefront of 
mid-sized consultants specializing in planning, water 
resources, and problem solving.  Stetson’s services 
include the preparation of groundwater management 
plans; watershed sanitary surveys; specifications, 
construction drawings, and contract documents; 
water system master plans; feasibility studies; water 
supply evaluations; urban water management plans; 
computer modeling of water systems and 
groundwater basins; and grant and loan applications. 

Municipal Engineering 

 Watershed Sanitary Surveys 
 Water Distribution System Design 
 & Construction Mgmt. 
 Water Distribution System Modeling 

 Water System Master Plans 

 Recycled Water Systems 

 Storm Water System Analysis 

 Water Treatment Facilities 

 Wastewater Systems 

Groundwater Resources 

 Groundwater Modeling 

 Watermaster Services 

 Basin Investigations 

 Groundwater Development 

 Groundwater Management Plans 

 Water Wells/Planning, Design, Construction 

 Wellhead Protection Plans 

 Artificial Recharge Studies 

 Water Quality Assessments 

 Safe Yield Studies 
 Groundwater Cleanup and 
 Aquifer Restoration 
 Geophysical Surveys 

Water Systems Management 

 Economic Feasibility 

 Operational Surveys 

 Rate Design/Analysis 

 System Appraisals and Valuations 

Environmental Engineering 

 Wetland/Riparian Hydrology 

 Impact Analysis/Restoration 
 Environmental Assessments and Impact  
 Studies 
 Geomorphic Analysis 

 Fluvial Geomorphology 

Water Rights 

 Federal Reserved Water Rights Studies 

 Basin and River Adjudications 

 Water Right Valuations and Transfers 

 Legal and Institutional Support 

 Expert Witness Testimony 

Surface Water Resources 

 River Basin and Watershed Studies 

 Natural Flow Determinations 

 Reservoir Operations and System Modeling 

 Hydropower Investigations 

  

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 90



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  4 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

LOCATION AND CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Office Location and Address:  
861 S Village Oaks Drive 
Covina, CA 91724 
 
Contact Person:  
Jeff Helsley, P.E. 
Phone: 626-967-6202 
Email: jeffh@stetsonengineers.com 
 
 
 

2. STATEMENT OF PROJECT UNDERSTANDING  
 

Water rights and groundwater extractions in the Rialto Basin have been historically contested, 
including a dispute that resulted in the 1961 Decree and more recently a settlement agreement 
reached in 2018. The Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (RBGC) was formed to coordinate and 
implement groundwater management activities throughout the Rialto Basin to preserve 
groundwater as an important water supply source.  
 
The key to success will be to implement a coordinated strategy of extraction and recharge 
activities so groundwater levels in the Rialto Basin can be sustainably managed without overdraft 
conditions occurring. Using widely accepted water industry standards and relying on extensive, 
successful past experience in groundwater management, Stetson will develop a Groundwater 
Management Plan to ensure long-term groundwater sustainability in the Rialto Groundwater Basin 
with the goal of improving and mitigating low groundwater levels and other negative impacts. The 
Groundwater Management Plan will require an understanding of the basin hydrogeology and 
water budget, resulting in the establishment of management actions including extraction and 
replenishment protocols. It is anticipated San Bernardino Municipal Water District/Geoscience’s 
existing groundwater model of the basin will be a key tool for developing the plan. 
 
Water supply reliability is increasingly important. Accordingly, a key issue related to implementing 
the Groundwater Management Plan will be ensuring the Groundwater Management Plan is 
sufficiently adaptive to ensure long-term applicability while efficiently maximizing all water 
supplies available and not causing stranded assets, including during periods of drought. 
Additionally, the Groundwater Management Plan must utilize a cost effective and cooperative 
approach in order to respect the interests of all stakeholders which rely on the Rialto Basin for 
their water supply. 
 
Stetson (Mr. Johnson) was retained by one of the parties to help resolve the legal and pumping 
disputes before settlement was reached in 2018. As part of this assignment, Stetson developed 
the framework for a regional groundwater management plan for all the parties. Stetson developed 
this management plan framework with a cooperative approach while considering the interests and 
concerns of all of all parties. Stetson would like to believe this work was instrumental in resolving 
the disputes and bringing together the current Rialto Basin Groundwater Council.  
 
Stetson has been involved in the Rialto Basin and No Man’s Land for several decades and 
thoroughly understands the stakeholders, the positions taken, the 1961 Decree’s lack of clarity 
and ineffective provisions, the resource value, and the alternative solutions for evaluation and 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 91



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  5 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

consideration. For this assignment, Stetson commits to representing the best interest of all the 
parties and stakeholders in the RBGC.  
 
 

3. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART  
 
Stetson has in-depth local experience in the broad range of issues needed to successfully develop 
a groundwater management plan for the Rialto Basin Groundwater Council.  Mr. Stephen B. 
Johnson, P.E. will serve as Principal-in-Charge and Mr. Jeff D. Helsley, P.E. will serve as the 
main contact and Project Manager for the Groundwater Management Plan.   Mr. Stephen Reich, 
P.G., C.H.G., P.E. will serve as the hydrogeologist. No subconsultants will be utilized for the 
development of the Plan. Stetson will coordinate with GeoScience regarding the transfer and use 
of the operating groundwater model of the Rialto Basin. An organizational chart of key personnel 
with names and titles is provided below.   
 

 
 
 

4. QUALIFICATIONS  
 
Stetson has decades of experience in groundwater management and has prepared and 
implemented numerous groundwater management plans for other basins. In addition, Stetson 
has direct previous experience with water rights and water supply issues in the region. 
Consequently, Stetson’s Project Team possesses comprehensive capability for development of 
the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan. Stetson’s Project Team includes strong 
managers and experienced engineers with groundwater management experience.  
 
Stetson is uniquely qualified to prepare this Groundwater Management Plan due to past 
experience providing ongoing litigation and mediation technical support regarding Rialto Basin 
management and operations prior to a settlement being reached. Stetson has had previous 
discussions with key parties regarding options and alternatives for sustainable groundwater 
management in the Rialto Basin, including developing the initial framework of the Groundwater 

Stephen Johnson, PE
Principal in Charge

Jeff Helsley, PE
Project Manager

Stephen Reich, 
PG, CHG, PE

Hydrogeologist

Tom Ma, PhD, 
PE
Groundwater 

Modeler

Jenny Savron

Project 
Engineer

Heather 
Steele, PE

Project 
Engineer

Noah 
Wasserman

GIS 
Specialist

Karen Brunelle

Admin 
Support

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 92



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  6 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

Management Plan included in the Request for Proposals. Stetson also participated in the third-
party review of the Geoscience groundwater model.  
 
In addition to Stetson’s direct experience with the Rialto Basin, Stetson performs watermaster 
services for the Main San Gabriel Basin and the Raymond Basin. These services include 
establishing an annual operating safe yield, managing cyclic storage accounts of imported water 
for groundwater replenishment, and managing groundwater extractions. This relevant experience 
will directly contribute to the success of the Groundwater Management Plan for the Rialto Basin.  
 
Resumes of the Project Team including pertinent experience, academic credentials, and 
professional certifications and memberships, are provided in Attachment A. Qualifications of key 
Stetson personnel for this Project are discussed below. Additional qualified Stetson support staff 
may also contribute to the development of the Groundwater Management Plan. 
 
STEPHEN B. JOHNSON, P.E.                                 PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE 
Mr. Johnson, President and a Principal of Stetson Engineers Inc., is the Principal-in-Charge of 
the Covina office and has over 44 years of experience.  Mr. Johnson supervises, directs or 
performs in a wide variety of projects.  Mr. Johnson has been involved in a multitude of studies 
and projects and maintains close contact with all active clients, attending meetings regularly for 
the public clients. He has been involved in numerous supplemental water requirement studies, 
alternative water supply studies, groundwater management studies, and project feasibility 
studies. Mr. Johnson works directly as Engineer for the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster, 
where he develops the operating safe yield recommendation every year, and as the Water 
Resources Manager for the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, where he was 
instrumental in developing the sustainable yield of the basin and the management actions that 
are being implemented. 
 
JEFFREY D. HELSLEY, P.E.                                       PROJECT MANAGER 
Mr. Helsley has over 39 years of experience in water resource management in Southern 
California.  Mr. Helsley was formerly the District Engineer and Assistant General Manager of the 
Water Replenishment District of Southern California, where he was responsible for the 
development and implementation of programs to enhance groundwater recharge, improve 
groundwater basin management, and protect groundwater quality. Mr. Helsley has supervised the 
development of numerous groundwater management plans and has extensive experience in 
water supply projects with unique knowledge of water supply, water quality, and groundwater 
management issues. Mr. Helsley led Stetson’s technical team in the development of the 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority and the 
Alternative Groundwater Management Plan for the City of La Habra, and he advises the Morongo 
Band of Mission Indians on sustainable groundwater issues in the San Gorgonio Subbasin and 
the San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority on sustainable groundwater issues in the Upper San 
Luis Rey Groundwater Basin in San Diego County. 
 
STEPHEN REICH, P.G., C.H.G., P.E.                                      HYDROGEOLOGIST 
Mr. Reich is a geologist, hydrogeologist, and engineer with over 32 years of experience in water 
resource management.  Mr. Reich has led technical teams for both litigation and settlement 
purposes for issues related to water supply, water quality, wastewater, and water rights disputes.  
Mr. Reich has extensive knowledge of developing and managing large water projects in California 
and the southwestern U.S.  His responsibilities have included developing basin management 
plans for groundwater and surface water resources in legally and environmentally constrained 
basins. 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 93



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  7 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

TAINSHING (TOM) MA, PH.D., P.E.                                                                               GROUNDWATER MODELER 
Mr. Ma has over 21 years of experience in groundwater management and numerical modeling. 
He is experienced in MODFLOW groundwater flow models and has developed and calibrated 
flow models for multiple groundwater basins including the San Gabriel Basin and Anza-Terwilliger 
Basin.  
 
JENNY SAVRON                                                                                                                   PROJECT ENGINEER 
Ms. Savron has over 18 years of experience in water resource engineering and has prepared 
numerous water supply studies and assessments. Ms. Savron has extensive knowledge of 
groundwater management and performs Watermaster support services for the Main San Gabriel 
Basin Watermaster and Raymond Basin Management Board including preparing the annual 
Operating Safe Yield report. 
 
HEATHER STEELE, P.E.                                                                                                               PROJECT ENGINEER 
Ms. Steele has over 7 years of experience in water resources engineering and groundwater 
management. She has prepared multiple groundwater management plans including the 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority and the 
Alternative Groundwater Management Plan for the City of La Habra, in compliance with the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.  
 
NOAH WASSERMAN                                                  GIS SPECIALIST 
Mr. Wasserman has been involved in GIS mapping and spatial analysis, including map/figure 
production and layout, analysis of vector and raster data (including aerial images), data 
management, online mapping and data applications, etc.  He has worked extensively on 
present/historic irrigation aerial photography interpretation and image georeferencing.  Mr. 
Wasserman is proficient in ArcGIS 10.2.2 and has received GIS Professional (GISP) certification.  
 
KAREN BRUNELLE                                                  ADMIN SUPPORT 
Ms. Brunelle has over 14 years of experience and is responsible for the coordination and oversight 
of all administrative duties in Stetson’s Covina office. 
 
 

5. SCOPE OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED  
 

Stetson’s Project Team recognizes the critical need for comprehensive groundwater management 
in the Rialto Basin to sustain groundwater supplies for current and future beneficial uses. Mr. Jeff 
Helsley will be assigned as the Project Manager and will act as the primary contact. The section 
below is organized by Scope of Services, Deliverables, and Optional Work. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Stetson will fulfill the following tasks as part of our Scope of Work to develop the Groundwater 
Management Plan: 
 
Task 1 – Review RBGC Documents  
 
Stetson is currently familiar with several important RBGC documents including the 2018 
Settlement Agreement and 2019 Framework Agreement. In addition, Stetson is familiar with the 
1961 Decree, Watermaster reports, and numerous other geological studies including DWR 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 94



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  8 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

bulletins, USGS reports, and other studies. Stetson will also do a literature review of other 
scientific and engineering studies conducted in the Basin. 
  
Stetson staff will coordinate with RBGC TAC members and the Western-San Bernardino 
Watermaster to collect recent available hydrogeologic data from the Rialto Basin. Much of the 
historical data may have already been collected and used as part of the development of the 
groundwater model and Stetson’s prior work. This task is critical for comprehensive understanding 
of the historical understanding of the basin prior to developing the Groundwater Management 
Plan.  

 
Task 2 – Develop Groundwater Management Plan 
 
In accordance with the outline prepared by the RBGC Technical Advisory Committee (RBGC 
TAC) and included as Attachment 3 of the RFP (herein referred to as the “Outline”), Stetson will 
develop a comprehensive Groundwater Management Plan to be used as the management 
framework for the Rialto Basin. Stetson will utilize the Geoscience model and work with the RBGC 
TAC to analyze and develop the elements of the Groundwater Management Plan. The 
Groundwater Management Plan will follow the adopted outline unless otherwise approved or 
amended by the RBGC TAC. Individual sections will be provided to the RBGC TAC for review 
and input during the development of the Groundwater Management Plan. The subtasks required 
to develop the Groundwater Management Plan are discussed below.  
 

Subtask 2a – Prepare Introduction Section 
 
This section will introduce the Groundwater Management Plan and will provide relevant 
background and history. The purpose and goal of the Groundwater Management Plan will be 
stated. State laws, including the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), and their 
applicability to the Rialto Basin will be discussed. 
 
Stetson will provide background on groundwater management activities in the Rialto Basin 
including summarizing the 1961 decree and the 2018 Settlement Agreement, and the history of 
the RBGC. The extent of the region covered under the Groundwater Management Plan and 
jurisdictions will be defined, as well as discussion regarding the inclusion of No Man’s Land in the 
Groundwater Management Plan. A list of definitions used in the report will also be provided. 
 
The existing GeoScience calibrated numerical model of the Rialto Basin will be used to develop 
the Groundwater Management Plan. Relevant observations, findings, recommendations 
regarding the model will be documented and provided to the TAC. Up to a maximum of four model 
runs will be performed to simulate baseline conditions into the future and managed conditions. 
Based upon a review of historical data, numerical model simulations, and potential 
implementation of basin management alternatives, the natural safe yield will be determined and 
a safe yield analysis will be conducted to determine whether an “Operating Safe Yield” or “Fixed 
Safe Yield” will best suit the Rialto Basin. The safe yield analysis will also include an evaluation 
of cyclic storage potential in the Rialto Basin for storage of pre-purchased imported water.  
Currently, the Rialto Decree is based on a “Fixed Safe Yield” in that there is a limit to the quantity 
which can be produced each year.  However, the Rialto Decree did not consider the potential 
impacts of replenishment with untreated imported water.  An Operating Safe Yield would allow 
some flexibility to the amount that may be produced each year based on hydrology. 
 
In addition, the model will be used to evaluate the current monitoring network to determine if a 
new index well regime is necessary, with groundwater levels at specific groundwater wells acting 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 95



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  9 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

as a proxy for determining the safe yield of the entire groundwater basin. The results of the 
evaluation from the model will be checked against historical water levels and extractions for 
verification. Existing and potential replenishment facilities will be evaluated to support 
groundwater replenishment with imported water.   
 
It is recommended the analysis and studies conducted to fulfil the requirements of A.2.e. of the 
Outline (discussed in the preceding two paragraphs) be removed from the Introduction and 
instead discussed in the Decree section of the Groundwater Management Plan.  

 
Subtask 2b – Prepare Decree Section 
 

The Decree Section will include the declaration of current hydrologic and hydrogeologic conditions 
in the Rialto Basin. A hydrogeologic conceptual model will provide a written description and visual 
representation of the Rialto Basin. The numerical model will be used to determine water budget 
of all inflows, outflows, and groundwater in storage. The water budget will be used to evaluate if 
overdraft conditions exist or are likely to exist with projected pumping. The results of the Safe 
Yield analysis (discussed previously) will be presented. Groundwater rights will be summarized 
and documented. 
 
As discussed previously, it is recommended the analyses of the safe yield, groundwater 
replenishment facilities, and the index well regime be included in this Section.  

 
 
Subtask 2c – Prepare Violations and Remedies Section 
 

Unsustainable conditions exist if excess production and/or inadequate natural replenishment of 
the Rialto Basin occurs, which will lead to undesirable results such as lowering of groundwater 
levels, loss of groundwater in storage, and degraded water quality (among other undesirable 
conditions). If left unmanaged, unsustainable conditions will ultimately lead to the loss of beneficial 
uses of the Rialto Basin. 
 
This section will discuss undesirable results that are occurring or are likely to occur without 
sustainable management of the Rialto Basin. Violations to the Groundwater Management Plan 
will be discussed which may include excessive production, or disputes regarding the new index 
wells or credit for replenishment. Stetson will focus on remedies to violations resulting in excess 
production or inadequate replenishment that encourage or facilitate addressing the resulting 
impact of the violation and supporting the goals of the Groundwater Management Plan, such as 
fees for overproduction that may be used for replenishment water or other needed actions, which 
might include supporting demand management measures. 
 
Stetson will evaluate demand management measures, including conservation practices, that 
would be feasible in the region to reduce reliance on groundwater from the Rialto Basin and 
potentially reduce the volume required to replenish the Rialto Basin. The task would include a 
review of all existing demand management measures implemented by entities with overlying land 
use jurisdiction over the Rialto Basin. Recommendations for basin-wide conservation practices 
will be provided.    
 
Supplemental water options will be analyzed to document sources of supplemental water, 
availability of imported water and stormwater for groundwater replenishment, and physical, 
environmental, and legal constraints.  
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 96



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  10 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

Subtask 2d – Prepare Management Committee Section 
 

In this Section, the organization and duties of the Management Committee will be discussed 
including the following:  

 Quantification and nomination of committee members 
 Term of committee members 
 Quorum requirements 
 Committee organization including meeting schedule, document management of minutes, 

public participation requirements 
 Powers and Duties including collecting data collection, managing groundwater production 

reports, administering assessments, and purchasing imported water 
 
Stetson will provide recommendations and advisement to the RBGC and RBGC TAC members 
regarding experience with successful groundwater basin Management Committees. It is intended 
this Section will be prepared after coordination with the RBGC and RBGC TAC.  
 

Subtask 2e – Prepare Groundwater Management Plan Tools Section 
 

The management actions and functions of the RBGC will be discussed in this Section. These 
management actions will be the tools the RBGC will utilize to ensure the Rialto Basin is 
sustainably managed for long-term continued beneficial use. 
 
In order to accurately monitor potential overdraft conditions, groundwater extractions will be 
reported to the RGBC. Similarly, the RBGC will maintain records of pumping rights to document 
any leases, purchases, and carryover of unused groundwater production rights.  
 
The Groundwater Management Plan will document the process for preparing Annual Reports. 
Annual Reports will include the following data:  

 Groundwater Extractions 
 Groundwater Levels 
 Groundwater Replenishment/Recharge 
 Status of the fulfillment of Settlement Agreement terms including the assessments and 

balance of required recharge 
 
Current and proposed assessments will be discussed including proposed amount, term, and 
purpose. (It should be noted, assessments will likely be required to be adopted separately from 
the Groundwater Management Plan.) 
 
It is anticipated, the water budget and safe yield analysis will determine that supplemental water 
will be required in the Rialto Basin for sustainable management of groundwater levels. 
Consequently, this Section will also include the protocols for procuring supplemental water for 
groundwater replenishment as wells and the management and maintenance of recharge facilities 
for long-term viability. The protocols for banking water will also be discussed in the Section.   
 
Additional management actions may be included in the Groundwater Management Plan, as 
approved by the RBGC TAC, depending on the results of the analyses conducted as part of the 
development of the Decree Section and the results of the numerical modeling simulations. For 
example, the adoption of conservation policies and the implementation of cyclic storage accounts 
may be recommended as management tools.  

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 97



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  11 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

Subtask 2f – Prepare Other Considerations Section 
 
Stetson will coordinate with the RBGC TAC to document other requirements as noted in the 
Outline including contractual and legal statements regarding the term of the Groundwater 
Management Plan and the relationship with the Settlement Agreement.  
 
 
Task 3 – Project Management 
 
Stetson will perform project management duties for the development of the Groundwater 
Management Plan including, but not limited to, coordination with staff and RBGC TAC 
representatives via the following:  

 Emails 
 Telephone Calls 
 Zoom Meetings 
 In-Person Meetings (if directed and authorized) 

 
 
Task 4 – Attend Meetings 
 
Stetson will attend as-needed Zoom meetings with the RBGC TAC for the following purposes:  

 Coordinate with TAC members on management tools and modeling results 
 Provide updates to TAC members regarding status and progress of Groundwater 

Management Plan 
 Discuss technical challenges that may arise during the preparation of the Groundwater 

Management Plan and possible solutions 
 Discuss comments on the review draft of the Groundwater Management Plan before 

finalizing the report 
 
In addition, Stetson will attend one RBGC meeting to present the Groundwater Management Plan 
to the council and members of the public.  
 
If selected, it is recommended that Stetson attend a kick-off meeting to formally introduce the 
project. Understanding there is a court adjudication in place that is not acceptable to all 
Stakeholders, as part of Stetson’s first work assignment, it is proposed to conduct an initial 
assessment of each parties’ issues, needs, and positions to implement a successful Rialto Basin 
Groundwater Management Plan. The initial task should help set up the framework for the initial 
draft Groundwater Management Plan. 

 
 

LIST OF DELIVERABLES 
 
The following is a list of deliverables for the development of the Groundwater Management Plan: 
 

 Summary of Review and Recommendations for Groundwater Numerical Model (if 
required) 

 Groundwater Management Plan Final Detailed Outline 
 Review Draft Groundwater Management Plan 
 Final Groundwater Management Plan (including applicable figures, tables, and 

appendices) 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 98



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  12 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

 PowerPoint Presentation for the RBGC Council 
 
Depending on authorization of any optional work discussed below, additional deliverables may be 
required.  
 
 
 
OPTIONAL WORK 

 
Optional Task 1: Stakeholder and Legal Coordination and Engagement 
 
Stetson will coordinate with RBGC TAC members regarding stakeholder engagement and 
outreach during the preparation of the Groundwater Management Plan in order to inform the 
public and receive public input. Stetson will prepare outreach materials with technical content, as 
necessary, that could include the following:  

 Presentations 
 Fact Sheets 
 Responses to Comments/Questions 
 Frequently Asked Questions 
 Other Outreach Materials  

 
Additionally, Stetson will coordinate with legal counsel on the legal implications of the 
Groundwater Management Plan and legal requirements for implementation.    
 
Optional Task 2: Data Gap Evaluation 
 
Hydrogeological data sets available for the Rialto Basin will be reviewed for completeness and 
compliance and analyzed for data gaps, including monitoring locations and frequency of 
measurements. The water level and water quality monitoring programs will be reviewed. 
Additionally, the potential need for and proposed location for additional aquifer performance tests 
will be analyzed. Stetson will make recommendations for improving and modifying the existing 
monitoring network, if necessary. A Technical Memorandum summarizing the data gaps and 
steps required to fill the gaps and achieve a better understanding of the basin will be prepared. 
 
 

6. REFERENCES 
 
Stetson has prepared numerous groundwater studies and groundwater management plans 
including the development and utilization of groundwater flow models. Provided below are five 
references in relation Stetson’s groundwater management expertise:  
 

1. Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 
Mr. Keith Lemieux, General Counsel  
500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 
Phone: 805-764-5452 
Email: klemieux@omlolaw.com 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 99



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  13 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

Project(s) Description: Preparation and implementation of a comprehensive 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan in compliance with SGMA. Preparation of Annual 
Groundwater Reports.  
Contract Duration: 2017 - Current 
Contract Value: Current annual budget is approximately $1,600,000.  
 

2. Main San Gabriel Valley Watermaster 
Mr. Tony Zampiello 
725 N Azusa Avenue 
Azusa, CA 91702 
Phone: 626-815-1300 
Email: tony@watermaster.org 
 
Project(s) Description: Development and implementation of the groundwater 
management structure for the adjudicated San Gabriel Groundwater Basin. Development 
of a Salt and Nutrient Management Plan. Development of Operating Safe Yield Annual 
Reports.  
Contract Duration: 1973 - Current 
Contract Value: Current annual budget is approximately $1,100,000.  
 

3. City of La Habra 
Mr. Elias Saykali 
621 W Lambert Road 
La Habra, CA 90631 
Phone: 562-383-4170 
Email: esaykali@lahabraca.gov 
 
Project(s) Description: Preparation of a Groundwater Management Plan for the La 
Habra Groundwater Basin. Preparation of an Alternative Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
and Annual Groundwater Reports in compliance with SGMA. 
Contract Duration: 2013 to Current 
Contract Value: Current budget of approximately $43,000 for updating the Alternative 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan.  
 
 

4. San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority 
Mr. Bob Pelcyger, Special Counsel 
PO Box 428 
Pauma Valley, CA 92061 
Phone: 760-742-1903 
Email: bob@rspelcyger.com 
 
Project(s) Description: Advisement on sustainable groundwater management issues. 
Support of water rights litigation settlement negotiations and, subsequently, support of 
implementation of the settlement. 
Contract Duration: 2001-Current 
Contract Value: Current annual budget is approximately $182,000. 

 
5. Morongo Band of Mission Indians 

Mr. John Covington 
47350 Foothill Road 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 100



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  14 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

Banning, CA 92220 
Phone: 951-755-5270 
Email: jcovington@morongo-nsn.gov 
 
Project(s) Description: Advisement on sustainable groundwater management issues. 
Developed various water resource, groundwater, and water rights reports.  
Contract Duration: 2016-2019 
Contract Value: Approximately $185,000.  

 
 

7.  PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
Stetson’s proposed Project Schedule for the Groundwater Management Plan can be found on the 
following page.  
 
As part of the preliminary project schedule, Stetson has assumed a starting date of November 
15, 2021 and that a draft Groundwater Management Plan will be provided to the RBGC TAC in 
December 2022.  (These dates are provided for planning purposes and are intended to be 
finalized at the kick-off meeting.) The proposed project schedule is based on Stetson’s past 
experience with preparing Groundwater Management Plans for other agencies. Schedule 
milestones may be modified if agreed upon with the RBGC TAC.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 101



ID Task Name Start Finish
0 Develop Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan Mon 11/15/21 Fri 3/10/23
1 Kick Off Coordination Meeting Mon 11/15/21 Mon 11/15/21

2 Task 1: Review Existing Documents Mon 11/15/21 Mon 2/14/22

3 Task 2: Develop Groundwater Management Plan Tue 2/15/22 Fri 3/10/23

4 Develop Introduction Section (Including Modeling and Safe Yield Analyses) Tue 2/15/22 Fri 7/29/22

5 Develop Decree Section Tue 2/15/22 Fri 7/29/22

6 Develop Violations/Remedies Section Mon 8/1/22 Wed 9/28/22

7 Develop Management Committee Section Thu 9/29/22 Mon 10/31/22

8 Develop Management Tools Section Thu 9/29/22 Wed 11/30/22

9 Develop Other Considerations Section Thu 9/29/22 Mon 10/31/22

10 Prepare Complete Draft Groundwater Management Plan Thu 12/1/22 Fri 12/23/22

11 Provide Draft Groundwater Management Plan to RBGC TAC for Review Fri 12/23/22 Fri 12/23/22

12 RBGC TAC Review Mon 12/26/22 Mon 1/23/23

13 Incorporate TAC comments and finalize Draft Tue 1/24/23 Fri 3/10/23

14 Submit Final Groundwater Management Plan Fri 3/10/23 Fri 3/10/23

15 Task 3: Project Management Mon 11/15/21 Fri 3/10/23

16 Task 4: Attend Meetings Mon 11/15/21 Fri 3/10/23

17 Optional Task 1: Stakeholder and Legal Coordination and Engagement Tue 2/15/22 Fri 3/10/23

18 Optional Task 2: Data Gap Evaluation Mon 3/14/22 Fri 7/29/22

11/15

12/23

3/10

2021 2022 2023

Task

Critical Task

Milestone

Summary

Rolled Up Task

Rolled Up Critical Task

Rolled Up Milestone

Rolled Up Progress

Split

External Tasks

Project Summary

Group By Summary

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Critical

Critical Split

Baseline

Baseline Milestone

Baseline Summary

Progress

Deadline

RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL
Preliminary Groundwater Management Plan Schedule

September 29, 2021

Page 1

Notes: 
Schedule subject to change pending
consultation with RBGC TAC. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 102



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  16 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

8.  PROJECT COST 
 
Stetson’s standard current fee schedule is provided in Attachment B. The fee schedule includes 
hourly rate for each personnel category, and any other additional charges to complete the 
services of this project. A detailed cost estimate by personnel classification and hours for each of 
the four main tasks plus additional optional work is provided below. Additionally, a cost estimate 
breakdown of Task 2 (Develop Groundwater Management Plan) is provided.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 103



$176,600 

$21,100 

   

Staff Name Role Hourly Rate Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Subtotal: Hrs Subtotal: Cost

Stephen B. Johnson Project Principal 237 3 $711 68 $16,116 16 $3,792 18 $4,266 10 $2,370 3 $711 118 $27,966
Jeff Helsley Project Manager 206 6 $1,236 108 $22,248 22 $4,532 20 $4,120 12 $2,472 10 $2,060 178 $36,668
Steve Reich Hydrogeologist 237 2 $474 30 $7,110 0 $0 5 $1,185 0 $0 5 $1,185 42 $9,954
Tom Ma Groundwater Modeler 191 0 $0 192 $36,672 12 $2,292 0 $0 5 $955 5 $955 214 $40,874
Jenny Savron Project Engineer 149 6 $894 121 $18,029 12 $1,788 12 $1,788 10 $1,490 15 $2,235 176 $26,224
Heather Steele Project Engineer 128 12 $1,536 234 $29,952 30 $3,840 30 $3,840 20 $2,560 20 $2,560 346 $44,288
Noah Wasserman GIS Manager 122 0 $0 30 $3,660 0 $0 0 $0 3 $366 0 $0 33 $4,026
Administrative Staff 111 0 $0 35 $3,885 10 $1,110 8 $888 5 $555 3 $333 61 $6,771

Subtotal $4,851 $137,672 $17,354 $16,087 $10,768 $10,039 $196,771 Labor Total
$196,771

Expenses* $0 $400 $200 $0 $200 $0 $800 Expense Total
$800

Total 29 $4,851 818 $138,072 102 $17,554 93 $16,087 65 $10,968 61 $10,039 $197,571
Grand Total

$197,600

Notes:
* Reimbursable expenses include reproduction costs, mileage, computer charges, telephone and other expenses billed at cost on Fee Schedule.

Task 2

STETSON ENGINEERS INC.
PROJECT BUDGET AND STAFF ALLOCATION

RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL
GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

STETSON PROPOSAL

 Required Tasks 

 Optional Tasks Groundwater Management Plan Overall Budget
Required Tasks Optional Tasks

Totals

Task 1

Develop 
Groundwater 

Management Plan

Task 4 Optional Task 1

Review of 
Documents

Meetings
Stakeholder and 

Legal Coordination 
and Engagement

Task 3

Project 
Management

Optional Task 2

Data Gap Evaluation

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 104



$138,100 

   

Staff Name Role Hourly Rate Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Hrs Cost Subtotal: Hrs Subtotal: Cost

Stephen B. Johnson Project Principal 237 30 $7,110 10 $2,370 8 $1,896 10 $2,370 10 $2,370 0 $0 68 $16,116
Jeff Helsley Project Manager 206 40 $8,240 13 $2,678 12 $2,472 20 $4,120 15 $3,090 8 $1,648 108 $22,248
Steve Reich Hydrogeologist 237 18 $4,266 8 $1,896 4 $948 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 30 $7,110
Tom Ma Groundwater Modeler 191 165 $31,515 15 $2,865 12 $2,292 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 192 $36,672
Jenny Savron Project Engineer 149 45 $6,705 15 $2,235 14 $2,086 12 $1,788 25 $3,725 10 $1,490 121 $18,029
Heather Steele Project Engineer 128 90 $11,520 22 $2,816 32 $4,096 35 $4,480 40 $5,120 15 $1,920 234 $29,952
Noah Wasserman GIS Manager 122 0 $0 30 $3,660 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 30 $3,660
Administrative Staff 111 0 $0 10 $1,110 10 $1,110 10 $1,110 5 $555 0 $0 35 $3,885

Subtotal $69,356 $19,630 $14,900 $13,868 $14,860 $5,058 $137,672 Labor Total
$137,672

Expenses* $0 $200 $200 $0 $0 $0 $400 Expense Total
$400

Total 388 $69,356 123 $19,830 92 $15,100 87 $13,868 95 $14,860 33 $5,058 $138,072
Grand Total

$138,100

Notes:
* Reimbursable expenses include reproduction costs, mileage, computer charges, telephone and other expenses billed at cost on Fee Schedule.
** Per the Outline, modeling and analyses are included in the Introduction. It is recommended that these elements be removed from the Introduction and instead be included in the Decree Section. It is 
assumed the model will be used to simulate baseline conditions and three additional modeling scenarios. 

Other Considerations Totals

Introduction** 
(Including Modeling, 
Safe Yield Analysis, 

Recharge Areas, 
Cyclic Storage) 

Decree (Hydrologic 
Conditions, Water 

Rights)

Violations / 
Remedies 

(Supplemental 
Water, 

Conservation)

Management 
Committee

Management Plan 
Tools

 Task 2:  

Task 2: Groundwater Management Plan Budget Breakdown

Section 1 Section 2 Section 3 Section 4 Section 5 Section 6

STETSON PROPOSAL

STETSON ENGINEERS INC.
PROJECT BUDGET AND STAFF ALLOCATION

RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL
GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 105



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
  19 
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

9.  AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY 
 
If selected, Steve Johnson, President of Stetson Engineers Inc, will be the authorized signatory 
to execute the professional services agreement. This proposal is valid for 90 days.  
 
 

10.  ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT/INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
 
Stetson’s proposed modifications to the professional services agreement and insurance 
provisions are provided in Attachment C.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 106



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
   
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESUMES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 107



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

Name & Title: 
Steve Johnson, P.E., Corporate President/CEO and 
Managing Principal 

Project Assignment: 
Principal Engineer 

Years of Experience with Firm 
44 

Years of Experience With Other Firms 
0 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
B.S. Civil Engineering / 1977 / California Polytechnic 
University, Pomona 

Registrations / Certifications: 
Civil Engineer No. 32396, California 1981 

Experience Record 

Mr. Johnson is Corporate President/CEO and Managing Principal of the Covina office of Stetson Engineers.  Mr. 
Johnson is responsible for all engineering operations performed by the firm’s southern California office, in Covina, 
California.  Mr. Johnson’s extremely broad experience covers the southern California work for well over a quarter 
century.  As a Managing Principal, Mr. Johnson is responsible for all corporate management functions and 
professional engineering support services.  Mr. Johnson has represented Stetson for over 40 years, continuous. 

Mr. Johnson is a designated expert for purposes of water system and water rights evaluation and appraisal.  This 
includes qualification in U.S. Federal Court as an expert under the Daubert rules of qualification.  He has provided 
expert witness testimony on water system/water rights condemnation actions, groundwater contamination cases, 
and flood damage evaluations and assessments.  Mr. Johnson’s expertise has supported numerous water 
systems and water rights transactions and settlements.  He has also provided expert witness testimony of the 
impacts and decision-making associated with water supply contamination, before the California Public Utilities 
Commission, Administration Law Judge. 

Mr. Johnson is the designated “Project Engineer” for implementing cleanup of the largest groundwater 
contamination site in the nation, under the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Superfund Program.  Under 
this assignment, Mr. Johnson coordinates with the U.S. EPA, six different water purveyors, the Main San Gabriel 
Basin Watermaster, the San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority, and numerous Responsible Parties and their 
engineering/legal representatives.  This assignment has a current value of $250 to $300 million and will produce 
over 35,000 acre-feet of treated, potable groundwater annually.  Mr. Johnson’s responsibilities include all phases 
of project planning, financing, coordination, regulatory compliance, design, contract solicitation, construction 
management, operations, and performance monitoring for contamination plume control and cleanup. 

As a predecessor to this assignment, Mr. Johnson supervised the planning, design, construction, operations, and 
regulatory approval of the first groundwater treatment facility in the United States to successfully treat for 
Perchlorate and NDMA for potable consumption.  This facility was also the first groundwater treatment facility to 
be permitted for drinking water supply under the California Department of Health Services Policy 97-005 for 
impaired water supplies.   

Mr. Johnson represents several prominent water agencies as “Engineer” or “Water Resources Manager”.  These 
agencies include the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster, the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water 
District, the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, and the 
San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority.  Typical assignments include safe yield studies, groundwater 
contamination characterization and remediation, design, construction management, rate assessment, water 
supply studies, and reports to the board. 

Since the early 1980s, Mr. Johnson has been heavily involved with engineering solutions to contamination of 
drinking water supplies.  This work involves a wide range of experience and expertise, including site and regional 
characterization of soil and groundwater contamination, hydrogeologic studies, groundwater basin modeling, 
development of cleanup and water supply plans, remediation studies, development and full implementation of 
treatment projects, and coordination with all regulatory agencies.  The contaminants of concern include volatile 
organic compounds (VOCs), Perchlorate, NDMA, 1-4-dioxane, Chromium and others.  This work has been 
performed in full cooperation with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the State Department of Toxic 
Substance Control, the Department of Health Services, the State Water Resources Control Board, and the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 108



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 2 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

 
Steve Johnson, Principal Engineer 
(Continued) 

The following projects are representative of Mr. Johnson's experience: 

City of Los Angeles, Department of Water and Power.  Supplemental Water Study. 

City of Los Angeles, Department of Water and Power.  Hoover Dam Power Contracts. 

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

• Supervision of District Engineering Duties 

• Area Wide Water Quality Monitoring Plan 

• AB 1803 Water Quality Monitoring Plan 

• AB 797 Water Conservation Plan 

• Feasibility Studies - Use of Reclaimed Water 

• Supervision of EPA Superfund Sub-Contract 

• Drought Studies 

• Puente Hills Landfill Investigation 

• District Mapping 

• Reclaimed Water Study 

• Direct Use Project 

• Indirect Reuse Replenishment Project 

San Gabriel River Watermaster.  Named one of the three Watermasters in 2011 

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority.  

• Supervision of Water Resources Manager Duties 

• Development and Implementation of Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

City of Bakersfield 

• Design of Turnout Structure - Kern River 

• Design of Turnout Structure - Canal 

• Water System Master Plan 

• Review of New Development Plans 

• Design of Box Culvert 

• Acquisition of New Facilities 

• Water System Operations Study 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 

• Design of Reservoir Renovation 

• Design of Lake Cachuma Intake Facility 

• Design of Well Fields (6.0 cfs, 4.0 cfs and 1.73 cfs) 

• Design of Booster Station 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 109



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 3 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

Steve Johnson, Principal Engineer 
(Continued) 

• Administration of State Loan and Grant 

• Supervision of Cathodic Protection 

• Design of Well No. 15 Pumping Equipment  

• Lake Cachuma Intake Maintenance 

• Zone III Reservoir Design 

• Cachuma Pipeline Rehabilitation 

• SWP Facilities Design 

East Pasadena Water Company  Design of Water Main Extensions for Fire Service. 

Kaiser Steel  Valuation of Water Related Holdings at Fontana Plant. 

City of Solvang 

• Design of Wells No. 7 and 8 Water Supply 

San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

• Feasibility Study Hydroelectric Generation Stations 

• Continuing Developer Interaction Responsibilities 

• Supervision of Periodic Pipeline As-Built Updates 

• Feasibility Study and Acquisition for Turnout Structure 

• Transmission Pipeline Rehabilitation Project 

• State Water Project Entitlement Report 

• Urban Water Management Plans 

• Pipeline Extension Project 

City of Industry  Master Plan of Development 

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

• Supervision of Engineering Duties 

• Basin Water Quality Studies 

• Basin Modeling 

• Enforcement of Pumping Control 

• Operable Unit Cleanup Plans 

• BPOU Cleanup Project 

• Full Compliance Permitting 

Puente Basin Watermaster  Supervision of Engineering Duties 

Buellton Community Services District 

• Water System Design 

• Sewer System Design 

City of Torrance  Feasibility Study on Hydroelectric Generation 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 110



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 4 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

Steve Johnson, Principal Engineer 
(Continued) 

Mr. Riley Metz  Site Drainage Study and Improvement 

Mr. Redmond  Flood Damage Study 

Boy Scouts of America  Flood Damage Study 

Rapid Transit District  Waste Discharge Study 

Mr. Lapin  Flood Damage Study 

U.S. Department of Navy, Camp Pendleton 

• Water System Study 

• Water System Design 

City of Claremont  Representative on Proposed Quarry Development 

Cabazon Water Company Valuation Study 

HLM Water System  Valuation Study 

Citizens Utilities Company  Valuation of Jackson Water Works 

County of San Bernardino  Safe Yield Study 

Walsh v. State of California  Flood Damage Study 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District  Subagency Report 

Morongo Band of Mission Indians  Ongoing Engineering Studies 

La Quinta Water System  Valuation Study 

City of Ontario  Flood Damage Study 

Serrano Park Homeowners Association  Flood Plain Improvements 

California Department of Fish and Game  Valuation of Water Rights at Indian Joe Spring 

Sunnymead Ranch Lake Reconstruction 

City of Livermore and California Water Service  Trade of Service Areas – Arbitration 

Sparkletts Water  Water Supply Study 

Cancun Racquet Club  Subsidence Evaluation 

East Highlands Ranch  Water Rights and Consultation Work 

Covina Irrigating Company Valuation 

Hartman Farms (Ohio)  Coordination of basin recharge with rock and sand operations 

Turner Ranches Valuation of Sanitary System 

City of Barstow 

• Water Rights 

• Mohave River Water Quality Evaluations 

• Contaminant Investigations 

City of Glendora  Conjunctive Use Study 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 111



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 5 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

Steve Johnson, Principal Engineer 
(Continued) 

Lewis Homes Management Corp  Water Resources and Supply Studies 

City of Oceanside Water Resources Study 

City of Upland Water Rights Evaluation 

San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority 

• Consulting Services 

• Arrow Well Project 

• Big Dalton Project 

• Monrovia Project 

City of Bullhead City, Wastewater Treatment Plant Evaluation 

Azusa Valley Water Company Valuation 

American Water Works.  Well Design 

City of Covina.  Valuation of Covina Irrigating Company 

Suburban Water Systems.  Valuation of Facilities 

City of Whittier Urban Water Plans 

Lewis Homes, Monrovia Nursery Water Resources 

Beverly Acres Mutual Water User's Association Valuation 

Southern California Water Company, Staff Projects 

City of Oceanside - Water Resources Study 

Prado Dam Flood Damage - Perrizo 

Chino Basin Watermaster - Engineering 

Santa Margarita Water District - Appraisal 

San Gabriel Valley Water Co. v. Sanitation Districts 

Tri-Cities/Camp Pendleton - Economic Evaluation of Conjunctive Use Water Supply Project 

Three Valleys Water District - General Engineering 

San Gabriel River Water Committee - General Engineering 

City of Beverly Hills - Water Distribution System Analysis 

Valley County Water District - Urban Water Management Plan 

Valley County Water District - General Engineering 

Montebello Land and Water Company 

City of Oceanside - Water Rights and System Modeling 

City of Oxnard - Water Quality 

Raymond Basin - Perchlorate Study 

Star Kist Foods - Water Rights Evaluation 

Orange County Water District - Prado Basin Constructed Wetlands 

East Highlands Ranch - Water Supply 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 112



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 6 of 6 

1_Steve Johnson-Box21 

RESUMES 

Steve Johnson, Principal Engineer 
(Continued) 

Elsinore Water District Well Interference 

City of Perris 

LPVCWD Perchlorate/NDMA Facility 

Tejon Ranch Water/Sanitation 

City of San Diego Studies 

DHS Permitting - Policy 97-005 

SEMOU Cleanup Plans 

SCWC SEMOU Water 

San Jacinto-Hemet Groundwater Management Plan 

Baldwin Park Operable Unit – Groundwater Cleanup Project 

San Gabriel Valley Water Company (SGVWC) – General Rate Case Filing Before the Public Utilities 
Commission for SGVWC’s Fontana Water Company Division 

People vs. Rosemead 

CalTrans vs. San Antonio Lakes Partners, et al. 

State of New Mexico, et al. vs. General Electric company 

American States Water Company et al. vs. State of California et al., & Aerojet-General Corporation, et al. 

Suburban Water Systems Rate Case before the Public Utilities Commission 

Paulus Engineering, Inc. vs. Ridge Development, LLC 

Summit Water Holdings, LLC/Harper Lake Basin 

Villages of Avalon Community Association vs. Perris Public Utility Authority 

People of the State of California and the City of San Diego vs. Kinder Morgan Energy Partners 

Tahoe City Public Utility Districts vs. Tahoe Park Water Company; Lake Forest Water Company 

 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 113



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 3 
2_Jeff Helsley Box 21 

RESUME 

Name & Title: 
Jeff Helsley, P.E., Supervising Engineer 

Project Assignment: 
Project Manager 

Years of Experience with Firm 
22 

Years of Experience With Other Firms 
17 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
M.S. Environmental Engineering / 1982 / University of 
Southern California, Los Angeles (USC) 
B.S. Civil Engineering / 1981 / California State University, 
Los Angeles (CSULA) 

Registrations / Certifications: 
Civil Engineer No. 039599, California, 1985 

Experience Record 

Mr. Helsley joined Stetson Engineers, Inc. in 1999 as project manager for water rights quantification and valuation 
studies, alternative water supply studies, water resource management studies, water facilities design including 
site improvements for drainage and access, and groundwater recharge feasibility studies including sand and 
gravel pits in the San Gabriel Valley. 

His experience includes employment with the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works in the 
Hydraulic/Water Conservation Division.  As a Supervising Civil Engineer I in the Planning Unit, he was 
responsible for studies to develop improvements to the County’s injection barriers to prevent seawater intrusion, 
and studies of groundwater recharge optimization. 

Mr. Helsley was also formerly the District Engineer and Assistant General Manager of the Water Replenishment 
District of Southern California, where he was responsible for the development and implementation of programs to 
enhance groundwater recharge, improve groundwater basin management, and protect groundwater quality. 

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

Chino Pipeline and Facilities Improvements Project 

 

• Well-site review, permitting and design including a drainage study and retention basin design 

• Well construction oversight 

• Pump testing and station design 

• Nitrate Removal Treatment Plant Design 

• Design for three separate pipelines 

• Assistance in pipeline permitting 

• Preparation of specifications and bid documents 

San Luis Rey Indian Water Rights Dispute, San Diego County 

Antelope Valley Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Study 

San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 30” Pipeline Realignment 

City of Pomona Water Pipeline Replacement Design 

Water Supply Assessments 

 

• The Shops at Santa Anita, Arcadia, California 

• Copa de Oro Development, Rosemond, California 

• Newhall County Water District, Santa Clarita Valley, California 

• Uptown Specific Plan, Whittier, California  

• Monrovia Nursery, Azusa/Glendora, California 

• West Main Street Master Plan, Alhambra, California 

• Valley Vision Specific Plan, San Gabriel, California 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 114



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 2 of 3 
2_Jeff Helsley Box 21 

RESUME 

 
Jeff Helsley, Project Engineer 
(Continued) 

City of Monterey Park Perchlorate Treatment System Procurement 

City of Glendale Wellhead Treatment Feasibility Study and Design 

Wellhead Treatment Systems – San Marino Service Area, Feasibility and Options Analysis Report 

Water System Master Plans 

• City of Covina 

• Pahrump, Nevada, included the Water System, the Sewage Collection System and Lift Stations 

• Fontana Water Company 

• San Gabriel Valley Water Company, Los Angeles County Division 

City of San Luis Obispo Groundwater Development Project 

Review of Recycled Water Use, Forest Hills Memorial Park, Covina Hills 

Water Supply Feasibility Studies 

• Sierra Bella Development, Lucerne Valley, California 

• Sierra Lakes Development, Santa Clarita Valley, California 

• Rolling Meadows Development, Tejon Ranch, California 

• East Highlands Ranch, Upland, California 

• Larsen Ranch, Antelope Valley, California 

East Raymond Basin Water Resources Plan 

Rancho Cordova Perchlorate Contamination Litigation Support 

Groundwater Supply Development Cost Study, Laredo, Texas 

Groundwater Yield Review, Burleson County, Texas 

Wrightwood Groundwater Study 

Rincon Groundwater Study 

Torrez Martinez Water Feasibility Study 

Spring Creek Booster Station Design 

Water Rights Appraisal – Hearst Ranch 

Antelope Valley Water Rights Adjudication 

LAFCO Municipal Water Service Review, Santa Clarita Valley 

Review of Proposal Antelope Valley Water Bank 

Arrow Well Wellhead Treatment Design 

Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (LACDPW) Alamitos Barrier Project - Seawater Barrier 

• Deficiency/Feasibility Study 

• Injection Well Design 

• Injection Well Construction 

LACDPW Dominguez Gap Barrier - Seawater Barrier, Deficiency/Feasibility Study 

 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 115



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 3 of 3 
2_Jeff Helsley Box 21 

RESUME 

Jeff Helsley, Project Engineer 
(Continued) 

LACDPW West Coast Barrier Project - Seawater Barrier 

• Geophysical Exploration 

• Deficiency/Feasibility Study 

Landfill Gas Mitigation Measures 

County Solid Waste Management Plan 

Montebello Forebay Groundwater Recharge Study 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Modifications 

Injection Well Maintenance Study 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 116



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 4 
3_STEPHEN REICH CV4(2021) 

RESUMES 

Name & Title:  

Stephen Reich, Principal 

Project Assignment: 

Hydrogeologist 

Years of Experience with Firm: 

30 

Years of Experience with Other Firms: 

2 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 

M.S. / 1989 / Geophysical Engineering,  
Colorado School of Mines, Golden, Colorado 
B.S. / 1985 / Geophysical Engineering,  
Colorado School of Mines, Golden, Colorado 

Registrations / Certifications: 

Civil Engineer No.C58713, California 

Professional Geologist No. 9712, California 

Certified Hydrogeologist No. 1085, California 

Experience Record 

Mr. Reich provides technical and administrative expertise required to manage multi-faceted water resource 
projects that require in-depth knowledge of water rights, environmental requirements, regulatory issues, and civil 
engineering solutions.  Mr. Reich has led technical teams for both litigation and settlement purposes for issues 
related to water supply, water quality, wastewater, and water rights disputes.  His responsibilities have included 
developing basin management plans for groundwater and surface water resources in legally and environmentally 
constrained basins.  In 2017, Mr. Reich developed a comprehensive adaptive management plan that met the 
requirements of the project proponents, the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, the National Marine Fisheries 
Service, and other state and local regulators.  The plan was developed through extensive consultation with 
various organizations through the NEPA and ESA Section 7 consultation process over a period of 3 years.  
Quantitative threshold values were established for various triggers so pre-established mitigation measures would 
be implemented, if necessary.  The result of his effort is a geographical web-based system that provides database 
management and decision-making processes tied to meeting physical, environmental, and legal constraints.  
Monthly reports are currently being assimilated into annual reports to assure constraints identified in two 
Biological Opinions for the project are met, as well as meeting state water rights reporting requirements. Similarly, 
in 2015 and 2016, Mr. Reich led the City of San Juan Capistrano in developing a Groundwater Management Plan 
to balance the use of their surface and groundwater resources while meeting environmental and physical 
constraints.  Results from his efforts are used to meet state regulatory requirements for monitoring and reporting. 

As sole arbitrator between LADWP and Inyo County, regarding groundwater pumping in Owens Valley, Mr. Reich 
balanced legal, physical, and environmental requirements to settle a pumping dispute between Inyo County and 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power.   Mr. Reich currently leading a team of engineers and biologists to 
determine in-stream flow requirements for southern Steelhead in southern California; the result which will be used 
as a basis of designing and operating a federal project.  His expertise in hydrology, water quality, geomorphology, 
civil engineering, economics, state and federal water supply issues, and environmental concerns provides a wide 
range of experience for the successful completion of both small and large scale water development projects.   

Mr. Reich has extensive knowledge of developing and managing large water projects in California and the 
southwestern U.S.  Working with federal and local water agencies, he has participated in developing large water 
supply projects.  Mr. Reich also brings experience in working with regulators and federal agencies in developing 
water supply projects that satisfy U.S. Fish and Wildlife, National Marines Fisheries Service, Army Corps of 
Engineers, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and RWQCB basin management requirements.   
 

Stetson Engineers Inc.  

Conjunctive Use Groundwater Project 

As lead engineer, designer, and project manager for a $52 million project, Mr. Reich developed a conjunctive 
use project, based on MODFLOW groundwater model, which utilizes surface flow during winter-time rainfall 
events to recharge a groundwater aquifer for subsequent extraction during peak summer demand months.  Mr. 
Reich was responsible for the design of the diversion facility, conveyance systems, and recharge facilities to 
divert water from the Santa Margarita River.  Mr. Reich oversaw the development of field investigations, 
including the construction of monitoring and production wells, to support the creation of a numerical groundwater 
model.  Working with the Bureau of Reclamation and the United States Navy, Mr. Reich played a key role in the 
development of legislative approval of the project passed by the United States congress in public law PL 111-11 
to support settlement of U.S. v Fallbrook PUD et al.   

 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 117



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 2 of 4 
3_STEPHEN REICH CV4(2021) 

RESUMES 

Stephen Reich, Principal  
(Continued) 

As author and project manager, directed all engineering, hydrologic, hydrogeologic, environmental tasks involved 
in the completion of the Santa Margarita River Recharge and Recovery Enhancement Program.  This project 
combined the complex engineering and environmental studies required to maximize the ground-water production 
from a ground-water basin without harming the 16 endangered species that live within the riparian corridor and 
associated estuary of the Santa Margarita River.  He recently participated in the completion of the environmental 
documentation and issuance of the Record of Decision associated with this project. 
 
Basin Management 

Mr. Reich has developed and implemented basin management and adaptive management programs for multiple 
basins located throughout California and the southwest U.S.  His responsibilities included working with various 
federal and non-federal stakeholders to establish goals and project constraints.  Between 2010 and 2015, Mr. 
Reich developed a sustainable yield model for the Temecula Groundwater Basin that met streamflow and 
groundwater constraints.  Mr. Reich has performed sustainable yield studies in the Santa Margarita Basin to 
meet operational, legal, and environmental requirements for various clients so operating criteria can be 
established.  His duties included establishing pumping schedules, identifying monitoring requirements, 
developing web-based databases, and producing monthly and annual reports to meet environmental and legal 
requirements.  

 
Water Rights Negotiations 

Technical lead for the United States and the Marine Corps Camp Pendleton in the settlement of one of the 
longest running (90+ years) water rights disputes in California.  Using technical studies prepared by experts in 
numerous fields, developed the technical portion of a settlement agreement that allowed for the restoration of 
streamflow to satisfy both ecological demands and municipal demands.  A MODFLOW ground-water model, a 
hydrologic model, and the classification of the riparian and biological habitat were just a few of the numerous 
studies that were used to establish the basis for settlement of a complex river system.  The negotiated 
agreement acknowledges the beneficial use of water for human consumption and ecological demands. 

 
Water Treatment 

Mr. Reich was responsible for the design, construction, and operation of a 1,000 gallon per minute Liquid 
Granular Activated Carbon (LGAC) treatment facility to remove volatile organic carbon compounds from 
groundwater.    The purpose of the facility was to test for the removal of VOCs in the presence of high total 
organic carbons that could reduce the efficacy of the treatment process.  The results of the LGAC facility have 
been used to establish long-term management goals for the continued use of groundwater from wells in a VOC 
contaminated aquifer. 
 
Groundwater Development Along Coastal Zones 

Mr. Reich has led investigations regarding the development of groundwater from aquifers adjacent to the Pacific 
Ocean.  Using numerical groundwater models and hydrogeologic principles, Mr. Reich has designed barriers to 
saltwater intrusion through the use of injecting reclaimed wastewater.  These projects have allowed for an 
increase in the sustainable yield of groundwater aquifers located along coastal zones. 
 
Reclaimed Wastewater 

Mr. Reich has performed numerous investigations to develop projects that use highly treated wastewater 
effluent.  A 36-acre constructed treatment wetland in southern California was designed to “polish” wastewater for 
disposal through groundwater recharge.  Mr. Reich also investigated the use of existing injection wells near Las 
Pulgas, California and the designed new injection wells near Oceanside to dispose of reclaimed wastewater in 
the transition zone that exists in aquifers between the fresh water and saltwater barrier.  
 
Environmental and Fisheries 

Mr. Reich recently completed a study in 2016 that identified minimum streamflow requirements for migration 
passage of southern steelhead trout in a southern California river.  Working jointly with fisheries biologists, Mr. 
Reich and his team conducted in-stream surveys, performed hydraulic analysis, calculated hydrologic 
requirements, and developed management scenarios to support fish passage.  Riparian and estuarine habitat 
requirements that supported fish passage were also investigated as part of the study. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 118



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 3 of 4 
3_STEPHEN REICH CV4(2021) 

RESUMES 

Stephen Reich, Principal  
(Continued) 
 
 
Arbitrator 

Currently serving as the sole arbitrator of a ground-water pumping dispute between the Los Angeles Department 
of Water and Power and Inyo County.  The dispute is based on the interpretation of legal and technical 
agreements between the two parties regarding the amount of ground water that may be pumped from the Owens 
Valley, California.  Review of complicated reports that discuss the impact of pumping on ground-water hydrology 
and ecological and biological maintenance.   
 
Mr. Reich arbitrated a dispute between Irvine Ranch Water District and Sorrano Water District regarding the 
operation of a water supply lake in southern California.  Mr. Reich interpreted legal and technical agreements 
that allocated the division of natural and imported water supplies to each party.  The result of this work led to an 
operations model that semi-annually records and accounts for the disposition of water from the lake.   
 
Dam Site Investigations 

As a member of the Stetson technical team consulting the Ute Indian Tribe in Utah, responsible for the gathering 
and interpreting geological data relevant to determining the location of a future dam site.  Responsibilities 
included identifying and describing geologic hazards at thirteen potential dam sites both on and off the 
Reservation. 
 
 
Water Quality Oversight 

Working together with The Nature Conservancy and San Diego State University riparian ecologists, biologists, 
and hydrologists, led efforts in monitoring the “ecological health” of a river.  The purpose of these efforts has 
been to monitor the health of river while at the same time meeting the municipal water demands of downstream 
water rights holders.  Other studies involved with this task include the oversight of geomorphology and hydraulic 
studies associated with the characterization of a river. 
 
 
Watershed Studies 

• As project manager, oversee all hydrologic and hydrogeologic tasks relating to the adjudication of the Santa 
Margarita River Watershed.  As the lead engineering firm for the U.S. Department of Justice, work directly 
with the U.S. Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, various Indian Reservations, the federal Watermaster, 
the U.S. Geological Survey, and Rancho California Water District personnel to develop solutions relating to 
all water resources in the Santa Margarita River Watershed. 
(U.S. Department of Justice, Santa Margarita River Watershed, 1993 - ongoing). 

• Analyzed numerous well logs in Riverside and San Diego Counties.  Analysis of these data sets was used to 
delineate between underflow and percolating ground water under unconfined or confined conditions as well 
as determining hydrogeologic characteristics of the aquifers  
(U.S. Department of Justice, Southern California Ground-water Studies, 1993). 

• Designed an integrated geophysical survey in the San Pedro River Basin in Arizona to delineate between 
underflow and percolating ground water.  Using various DC electrical techniques as well as bore hole data, 
defined the lateral boundaries of the San Pedro River stream system  
(U.S. Department of Justice, San Pedro River Basin, 1994). 

 
Water Rights Studies 

As a member of the Stetson technical team consulting the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe, prepared documents on 
irrigation and land use status using aerial photographs and historic documents.  Additionally involved with a 
cooperative effort between the Tribe, the U.S. Department of Justice, and the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in 
identifying the transfer of water rights.  Coordinated GIS data and other databases with relevance to legal and 
illegal irrigated lands. 
(Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe, Pyramid Lake Land Use Study, 1992 - present). 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 119



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 4 of 4 
3_STEPHEN REICH CV4(2021) 

RESUMES 

Stephen Reich, Principal  
(Continued) 
 
 
Municipal Water Systems Analysis 

Participating as a member of a Technical Committee, Mr. Reich worked directly with private developers and the 
Contra Costa Water District in analyzing AB1600 buy-in charges for new customers.  As an expert witness, Mr. 
Reich has testified on the use and division of raw and treated water infrastructure by new and existing 
customers, including pipe network systems, reservoir, pumping plant, and canal structures.  He has coordinated 
data acquisition of available documents and maps in order to perform hydraulic, civil, and economic analyses to 
support cost allocation of facilities. 
 
Mr. Reich has authored Urban Water Management, Capital Improvement, Water Supply Plans and other 
supporting documents to support various water districts throughout California.  Responsibilities have included 
supervising pipe network models, economic rate models, water rights, and water supply tasks that support the 
development of these plans.  Additional responsibilities have included participation in presentations to 
water/wastewater boards and technical involvement in negotiation discussions.   
 
 
Expert Witness Experience 

Mr. Reich has provided expert witness testimony in numerous state and federal cases involving water rights and 
watershed analysis. Mr. Reich has also provided testimony in state hearings in support of water rights 
applications and changes. His clients have included the Unites States Department of Justice, Indian Tribes, 
Municipal water agencies, mutual water companies, and private developers.  
 
 
Water Wells/Drilling Expertise 

• Supervised mud rotary, reverse rotary, air drilling, and sonic drilling of numerous monitoring and production 
wells throughout California, Utah, and Arizona.  Designed and developed nested wells for monitoring vertical 
groundwater gradients from multiple aquifers. 

• Responsible for the drilling and completion of a 1,300-foot water well on the Pechanga Indian Reservation, 
CA including the geological and geophysical logging of the well, determination of the screened interval, and 
pump testing of the well. 
(U.S. Department of Justice, Pechanga Reservation Ground-water Study, 1996). 

• Responsible for the design, acquisition and interpretation of a seismic refraction survey to determine the 
suitability of a shallow ground-water supply on the Shivwitz Indian Reservation in Southwestern Utah.  
Additionally, five shallow bore-holes were drilled and incorporated in the interpretation of the final results. 
(U.S. Department of Justice, Shivwitz Reservation Ground-water Study, 1995). 

• Designed and implemented both geophysical and hydrogeologic studies for the Southern California Water 
Company (SCWC).  Working directly with their chief hydrogeologist, coordinated both field and office studies 
concerned with the design and location of new water wells within numerous ground-water basins throughout 
California.  Additionally, analyzed some of SCWC’s existing water wells in Edna Valley and Barstow for the 
determination of surface water influences and their pertinence to drinking water standards. 
(SCWC Water Well Studies, 1993-94) 

 
Prior Experience 

As an independent consultant, specialized in electrical methods applied to oil fields.  Responsibilities included 
the design, implementation, processing, interpretation and presentation of transient electromagnetic data, as well 
as recommendations to the personnel responsible for choosing well site locations.  While with the Western 
Geophysical Company of Houston, Texas, supervised 120-person field crews in Turkey for the acquisition of 
reflection and refraction seismic data.  During this time in Turkey, drilled and logged over 200 shallow exploration 
holes.  In London, England, processed and interpreted a three-dimensional survey used for the development of 
an existing oil field. Applied electromagnetic techniques to define alluvial and bedrock structures outside both Ely 
and Carlin, Nevada. Performed studies for theoretical modeling of electromagnetic data and its applications and 
supervised data acquisition for deep structural gas studies.  Also worked as an on-site geologist for Exlog Inc. 
during the exploration of a 13,000-foot well in the Bering Sea. 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 120



 

Tainshing Ma Box20 Page 1 of 2 

RESUME 

Name & Title: 
Tainshing Ma, Ph.D., P.E., Supervisor II 

Project Assignment: 
Groundwater Modeler 

Years of Experience with Firm:   
6 

Years of Experience With Other Firms: 
15 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
Ph.D. / 1996 / Civil Engineering / University of Kansas 
M.S. / 1991 / Civil Engineering / University of Kansas 
B.S. / 1984 / Harbor and River Engineering / National Taiwan 
Ocean University 

Registrations / Certifications: 
Washington Professional Civil Engineer No. 36220 
40 Hour Hazardous Waste Operations (HAZWOPER) 
Red Cross CPR Training 

Select Experience 

2014 – Present, Stetson Engineers, Inc. 

Project Manager – San Gabriel Basin Replenishment Work, CA 

• Dr. Ma is responsible for conducting quantitative and qualitative investigations on the impacts of 
recycled and imported replenishment water to the Main San Gabriel Basin, providing technical 
supports and reviews of multiple remedial investigations at EPA superfund sites within the Main San 
Gabriel Basin, including the Puente Valley Operable Unit, the Baldwin Park Operable Unit, and the 
South El Monte Operable Unit.  

Project Manager – Water Quality Protection Plan in the Montebello Forebay of the Central Basin, CA 

• Stetson Engineers was retained by the Pico Rivera Water Authority to prepare an engineering report of a 
water quality protection plan. Dr. Ma is responsible for evaluating the performance of the upgradient EPA 
Whittier Narrows Operable Unit, reviewing water quality data and numerical modeling investigations, 
performing water quality analysis of the Montebello Forebay region, and providing engineering 

recommendations for long term sustainable groundwater supply.  

Technical Support – MODFLOW Simulations of the Anza-Terwilliger Basins in the central Santa Margarita 
River Watershed, CA 

• Dr. Ma provided technical supports using MODFLOW flow model to determine groundwater supply for 
use by the Cahuilla Indian Reservation for irrigation. Main tasks include 1) Converting MODFLOW 96 to 
MODFLOW 2005, 2) Model updating, 3) Model calibration, and 4) Model future management simulations.  

 

Other Experiences and Qualifications: 

 
E2 Consulting Engineers, Riverside, CA, Project Hydrogeologist                      
Multiple EPA Region 9 projects. Duties include RI/FS, subcontractor supervision, plan and coordinates, technical 
analysis for assigned projects and field support in sample sampling, well installation, borehole logging and site 
health & safety. 

• Data analysis and capture zone of Muscoy-Newmark Superfund Site. 

• Remedial investigation of Omega Chemical Superfund Site Operable Unit. 

• Site inspection of Stringfellow Superfund Site. 

• Remedial investigation/Feasibility Study of San Gabriel Valley Superfund Site – Puente Valley Operable. 

• Remedial investigation/Feasibility Study of Area 3 Superfund Site. 

• Montrose/Del Amo Dual-Site Groundwater Simulation for Remedial Design. 
 
LA Department of Water and Power  

• Overseeing drilling contractors to perform well installations, soil core sampling, simuprobe grounewater 
sampling and well development for the San Fernando Basin groundwater system improvement study. 

• Perform baseline groundwater sampling for the groundwater system improvement study. 

• Groundwater replenishment treatment pilot study. 
 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company’s (PG&E’s) Groundwater Remediation of Hinkley and Topock 
Compressor Stations.  

• Coordination and oversight of groundwater sampling and well installation. 

• Perform of deployment of transducers & data retrieval and lysimeter soil water sampling. 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 121



 

Tainshing Ma Box20 Page 2 of 2 

RESUME 

Tainshing Ma, Ph.D., P.E., Sr. Engineer 

Continued 

 
Savci Environmental Technologies, L.L.C., Littleton, Colorado, Sr. Water Resources Engineer  

• Mining groundwater investigation, aquifer testing, data analysis, and technical reports. 

• Groundwater Sulfate Dilution Study – Aquifer testing, sampling data analysis and site characterization to 
evaluate the potential impact of groundwater quality due to installation of interception wells near Bisbee 
Arizona.   

 
S.S. Papadopulos & Associates, Inc., Boulder, Colorado, Sr. Groundwater Hydrologist    

• Surface/ground water interaction investigations, water supply study, groundwater flow and transport 
numerical modeling and data analysis. 

• Water Supply Study in the Middle Rio Grande, New Mexico – Quantitative and probabilistic approaches to 
address the conjunctive-use of groundwater and surface water supply available to the Middle Rio Grande 
Basin under the constraints of the Rio Grande Compact. A probabilistic water budget is developed for the 
stream system. Groundwater conditions are linked to the stream flow system using the numerical 
groundwater model. Project was conducted under U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (COE), Albuquerque 
Division, and was jointly funded by the COE and the New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission (ISC).    

• Riparian Study of the San Joaquin River in California – To identify and prioritize information regarding 
surface flow needed to sustain riparian vegetation along specific reaches along a 150-mile stretch of the 
San Joaquin River from Friant Dam to the Merced River. Project was conducted for the San Joaquin 
River Riparian habitat Restoration Program under contract with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. 

• Riparian Restoration in the Middle Rio Grande Basin – Shallow riparian groundwater elevations and their 
fluctuations in response to environmental and operational factors are being characterized along the Rio 
Grande in reaches.  Focuses of this study are 1) quantification of water supply needs for habitat 
restoration projects; 2) assessments of the reliability of flows at specific locations; and 3) identification of 
locations for habitat restoration projects where shallow groundwater conditions are favorable for project 
sustainability and maintenance.   

Northwest Florida Water Management District, Havana, Florida, Associate Hydrologist   

• Main duties include development and application of a GIS-based Ground Water Risk Analysis System for 
Florida northwest groundwater management, streamflow reduction investigation of the Apalachicola-
Chattahoochee-Flint River Basin, aquifer testing and oversight of groundwater sampling and monitoring 
installation in the Florida Panhandle. 

• Development of a GIS-based Ground Water Risk Analysis System – An ArcView extension to implement 
a risk analysis system was developed to evaluate the likelihood of groundwater contamination and 
applied to Escambia County, Florida. Project was supported by EPA and administered by the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection. 

 

 

Pollution Prevention Engineering, Inc., Charlotte, North Carolina, Project Engineer 

• Soil and groundwater environmental site assessment and storm water permitting & management.  
 
Kansas Geological Survey, Lawrence, Kanas, Postdoctoral Researcher 
 
 
 
 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 122



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 2 
 

RESUMES 

Name & Title: 
Jenny Savron, E.I.T., Senior II Engineer 

Project Assignment: 
Project Engineer 

Years of Experience with Firm 
18 

Years of Experience with Other Firms 
 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
B.S. Environmental Engineering / 2002 / University of 
California, Irvine 
 

Registrations / Certifications: 
E.I.T. No. 116828, State of California, June 2003 

Experience Record 

Ms. Savron has experience in water resource engineering including urban water management plans, water 
system master plans, water supply plans, hydrologic studies, water rights and supply evaluation, and water quality 
studies.  Ms. Savron has experience preparing Watermaster Section 28 permit applications and also preparing 
staff reports on behalf of Watermaster on permit application review. 

Develop Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster Section 28 Permit Applications: 

• City of Covina 

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

• Participate in the development and implementation of the annual Five-Year Water Quality and Supply Plan. 

• Prepare the Annual Report, which reviews each year's activities, water rights history and water use. 

• Develop staff reports for Section 28 reviewing potential impacts on groundwater contamination as a result of 
drilling new wells, destroying wells and constructing new treatment facilities. 

• Prepare the annual Operating Safe Yield report. 

• Prepare the annual Three-Year Purchased Water Plan. 

• Supervise the meter testing program. 

Develop Urban Water Management Plans: 

• Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

• City of Bakersfield  

• City of Whittier 

• City of San Jacinto 

• City of South Pasadena  

• City of Downey 

Develop Integrated Resources Plan: 

• Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

San Gabriel River Watermaster 

• Prepare an Annual Report identifying usable surface flow, unusable outflow and subsurface flow across 
Whittier   Narrows 

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District  

• Develop projections of future supplemental water requirements. 

Develop Water System Master Plan and Sewer Master Plan 

• City of San Jacinto 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 123



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 2 of 2 
 

RESUMES 

Develop Water Supply Assessments 

• San Gabriel County Water District 

• City of South Pasadena 

• City of Monrovia 

 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 124



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 1 
6_Heather Steele-Box21 

RESUMES 

Name & Title: 
Heather Steele, P.E., Senior Associate 

Project Assignment: 
Project Engineer 

Years of Experience with Firm 
7 

Years of Experience with Other Firms 
0 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
B.S. Civil Engineering / 2010 / California State Polytechnic 
University, Pomona 
M.S. Water Resources Engineering / 2013 / University of 
Stuttgart, Germany 

Registrations / Certifications: 
E.I.T. No. 139551, State of California, July 16, 2010  
P.E. No. 87237, State of California, June 1, 2017 

Experience Record 

Ms. Steele has experience in water resource engineering including water supply plans, groundwater basin 
management, environmental compliance, water rights evaluations, water system master plans, hydrologic studies, 
water quality studies, and grant writing. 

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 

• Prepared grant funding applications under Proposition 1 

• Developed a comprehensive Groundwater Sustainability Plan for Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin in 
compliance with the requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. 

• Prepared Annual Reports. 

City of La Habra 

• Prepared alternative Groundwater Sustainability Plan for Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
compliance.  

• Prepared Annual Reports. 

Morongo Band of Mission Indians 

• Evaluated water rights under the Practicably Irrigable Acreage standard. 

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

• Prepared Feasibility Study to evaluate recycled water treatment alternatives.   

• Developed Title 22 Engineering Report for an indirect potable reuse recycled water project. 

• Developed CEQA Initial Study and NEPA Environmental Assessment for an indirect potable reuse recycled 
water project. 

• Prepared Urban Water Management Plans.  

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

• Developed Salt and Nutrient Management Plan including determining basin assimilative capacity and 
conducting antidegradation analyses. 

• Developed program-level CEQA environmental compliance document.  

Raymond Basin Watermaster 

• Developed Salt and Nutrient Management Plan including determining basin assimilative capacity and 
conducting antidegradation analyses. 

• Developed program-level CEQA environmental compliance document.  

City of Glendora 

• Prepared comprehensive water system Master Plan. 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

• Analyzed opportunities and constraints for the use of treated groundwater to reduce imported water demands. 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 125



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 1 

RESUMES 

Name & Title:  

Noah Wasserman, GISP, GIS Manager 

Project Assignment: 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Manager 

Years of Experience with Firm:     

14 

Years of Experience With Other Firms: 

3 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 

M.A./ 2009 / Geography / San Francisco State University 

B.A. / 2001 / Urban Studies and Planning / University of 
California, San Diego 

Registrations / Certifications: 

Geographic Information Systems Professional 
(GISP) / May 2015 

Experience Record 
 
Mr. Wasserman has been working with GIS since 2000. At Stetson Engineers, Mr. Wasserman has focused on GIS mapping 
and spatial analysis.  Typical tasks include (but are not limited to) map/figure production and layout, analysis of vector and 
raster data (including aerial images), data management, online mapping and data applications, field data collection, etc.  He 
has worked extensively on present/historic irrigation aerial photography interpretation and image georeferencing as they relate 
to Stetson projects.   
 
2007 – Present, Stetson Engineers, Inc. 
 
GIS and spatial analyst technician and manager, support water resources management projects across the American West. 
Provide technical support and project design to project engineers on irrigation, water rights and resource management projects 
in addition to map/figure layout production, and online mapping and data applications.   
 
 
Previous Experience 
GIS Consultant for Intersect, LLC, San Jose, CA   
Mr. Wasserman provided GIS and cartographic support for international materials sampling project. Typical tasks included 
preparation and analysis of country scale spatial data as well as map/figure production.  Created and edited map layouts from 
collected data for project reporting and planning purposes. 
 
Master’s Degree Program, Environmental Resource Management, at San Francisco State University, CA 
Mr. Wasserman’s course work included several GIS classes specific to resource management as well as instruction in remote 
sensing and analysis techniques.  GIS projects included (but were not limited to) analysis of historic serpentine grasslands 
within San Francisco’s Presidio, a report and examples on how GIS tools could be utilized to help assess and guide 
rebuild/redesign efforts in post-hurricane-Katrina New Orleans, and analysis of vegetation changes in alpine and subalpine 
communities of the Sierra Nevada Mountains, which was completed as a Master’s Thesis titled Vegetation Change Trends in 
Yosemite National Park Over the Last Century (1890-2008).   
 
GIS Intern for Telesis Corporation, San Diego, CA  
Worked with ArcView software to organize source data and conducted test mapping for various community projects including 
San Diego crime mapping and PG&E streetlight maintenance projects. 
 
Bachelor’s Degree Program at University of California, San Diego, CA 
As part of the UCSD’s Urban Studies and Planning department core curriculum, Mr. Wasserman’s first exposure to GIS was 
on the ESRI ArcView 3.x suite.  Since then, he has had experience working with a number of spatial analysis software 
packages including ArcGIS (ArcMap 10.x), QGIS, and Erdas Imagine 9.x. As an undergraduate, he interned for the Telesis 
Corporation and completed a senior research project which utilized GIS tools to analyze regional socio-economics and various 
educational indicators of local San Diego high schools as they related to achievement gaps and access to higher education.  
In 2003, Mr. Wasserman helped research, manage data, and produce the joint Conservation International and United Nations 
Environment Programme publication Tourism and Biodiversity: Mapping Tourism’s Global Footprint.  The accompanying 
ArcExplorer and data CD was designed and developed by Mr. Wasserman.  

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 126



 

Stetson Engineers Inc. Page 1 of 1 
8_Karen Brunelle-Box21 

RESUMES 

Name & Title: 
Karen Brunelle, Associate III 

Project Assignment: 
Office Manager – Covina, CA  

Years of Experience with Firm 
13 

Years of Experience with Other Firms 
1 

Education:  Degree(s) / Year / Specialization: 
B.A. Behavioral Sciences / 2006 / California State 
Polytechnic University, Pomona 

Registrations / Certifications: 
 

Experience Record 

Mrs. Brunelle has been employed by Stetson Engineers Inc. since 2008. As Covina’s Office Manager, her 
responsibilities include the coordination and oversight of all administrative duties in Stetson’s Covina office, 
including but not limited to: 

• Covina office payroll and timesheets.  

• Reconciliation of Covina office monthly accounting reports (reproduction, postage, petty cash, etc.)  

• Processing and coordination of Covina office client invoicing, and accounts payable.  

• Managing and ordering Covina office supplies.  

• Logging and distribution of daily mail.  

• Support staff to project engineers/project managers on administrative aspects of technical reports, 
requests for proposals, meeting scheduling/coordination, data entry, preparation and maintenance of 
project budgets, annual reports, client follow up, etc.  

• Oversight of general Covina day to day operations.  

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 127



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
   
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 128



 

 

Standard Billing Rate Schedule 

Professional Fees 
 

Principal  $237.00  Per Hour 

Special Project Director  $237.00  Per Hour 

Project Manager, Senior  $206.00  Per Hour 

Supervisor I  $206.00  Per Hour 

Supervising Soil Scientist  $191.00  Per Hour 

Supervisor II  $191.00  Per Hour 

Supervisor III  $185.00  Per Hour 

Senior I  $165.00  Per Hour 

Senior II  $149.00  Per Hour 

Senior III  $134.00  Per Hour 

Construction Manager  $134.00  Per Hour 

Construction Manager / Oversight  $118.00  Per Hour 

Senior Construction Inspector  $118.00  Per Hour 

Senior Field Geologist  $134.00  Per Hour 

Senior Associate  $128.00  Per Hour 

Associate I  $122.00  Per Hour 

Associate II  $116.00  Per Hour 

Associate III  $111.00  Per Hour 

Associate Soil Scientist  $111.00  Per Hour 

Senior Assistant  $103.00  Per Hour 

Assistant I    $98.00  Per Hour 

Assistant II    $93.00  Per Hour 

Assistant Soil Scientist    $93.00  Per Hour 

Assistant III    $88.00  Per Hour 

GIS Manager  $122.00  Per Hour 

GIS Specialist I   $101.00  Per Hour 

GIS Specialist II    $91.00  Per Hour 

Technical Illustrator    $88.00  Per Hour 

AutoCAD Technician    $88.00  Per Hour 

Soil Technician    $77.00  Per Hour 

Aide I    $72.00  Per Hour 

Aide II    $62.00  Per Hour 

Aide III    $57.00  Per Hour 

Project Coordinator I  $134.00  Per Hour 

Project Coordinator II    $98.00  Per Hour 

Project Coordinator III    $88.00  Per Hour 

Contract Management  $103.00  Per Hour 

Administrative I    $72.00  Per Hour 

Administrative II    $67.00  Per Hour 

Administrative III    $62.00  Per Hour 

 

Effective January 1, 2019 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 129



 

 

 

 

Direct Expense Rates 

 

    

 Expense Description Billing Rate 

  Fax $0.30 / Page 

  Mileage     $* / Mile 

  Reproduction: Black & White (In-House) $0.15 / Page 

  Reproduction: Color - 8.5" x 11" (In-House) $0.89 / Page 

  Reproduction: Color - 11" x 17" (In-House) $1.89 / Page 

  Plotter Reproduction (In-House)   $1.50 / Sq. Ft. 

  Specialty Computer Expense (In-House)     $15.00 / Hour 

   4x4 Truck with Drill Rig   $150.00 / Day 

  Survey Equipment   $120.00 / Day 

 

 

Notes: 

1) * Mileage is billed at the current IRS approved mileage rate and may be subject to change. 

2) Subcontractor services will be charged at cost plus 10% administration fee. 

3) All other project reimbursable expenses (i.e., telephone, commercial transportation, meals, lodging, 

postage, outside reproduction, etc.) will be billed at cost. 

4) Testimony fees are 150% of standard rates and apply to depositions, court time and time spent on stand-by 

at attorney's request. Travel time and preparation time is charged at standard rates.  Stetson Engineers Inc. 

authorizes only staff at associate classification or higher to testify as expert witnesses. 

 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 130



RIALTO BASIN GROUNDWATER COUNCIL  STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 
Proposal for Development of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
   
Submitted: September 29, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 131



 

 

West Valley Water District 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
With 

___  _____________________ 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 132



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

          Page 
 
 

Section 1.     Term of Agreement ..........................................................................1 
 
Section 2.     Scope and Performance of Services ................................................1 
 
Section 3.     Additional Services and Changes in Services ..................................3 
 
Section 4.     Familiarity with Services and Site .....................................................3 
 
Section 5.     Compensation and Payment ............................................................4 
 
Section 6.     Required Documentation prior to Performance ................................4 
 
Section 7.     Project Documents ...........................................................................5 
 
Section 8.     Consultant’s Books and Records .....................................................5 
 
Section 9.     Status of Consultant .........................................................................6 
 
Section 10.   Compliance with Applicable Laws ....................................................7 
 
Section 11.   Conflicts of Interest ...........................................................................7 
 
Section 12.   Confidential Information; Release of Information ..............................7 
 
Section 13.   Indemnification .................................................................................8 
 
Section 14.   Insurance ..........................................................................................9 
 
Section 15.   Assignment .......................................................................................9 
 
Section 16.   Termination of Agreement ................................................................9 
 
Section 17.   Notices ........................................................................................... 10 
 
Section 18.   General Provisions ......................................................................... 11 
 
Exhibit “A” Task Order 
 
Exhibit “B” Key Personnel 
 
Exhibit “C” Insurance 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 133



1 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (“Agreement”) effective as 
of this _____ day of ________, 2021 (“Effective Date”) is by and between West 
Valley Water District (“District”) and ___________________(“Consultant”).  The 
District and Consultant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and 
individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of setting 
forth the terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall provide certain services 
to District. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Term of Agreement.   

(a) Subject to subsection (b) below, the term of this Agreement will be 
for a period of one (1) year commencing on the Effective Date and 
terminating one (1) year after the Effective Date.   

(b) This Agreement shall renew automatically for continuous one (1) 
year periods for no more than two (2) additional years, unless either Party, 
prior to the end of the existing one (1) year period, delivers written notice to 
the other Party, that the Agreement shall not be extended. 

 

Section 2. Scope and Performance of Services. 

2.1 (a) District may, from time to time, by written instructions from the 
general manager or assistant general manager of the District (“Authorized 
Representative”) issue task orders (“Task Orders”) to the Consultant.  The 
Task Order shall be in such form and content as shall be set forth on Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.  The Task 
Order shall set forth: (i) the scope of services to be performed by 
Consultant; (ii) the compensation to be paid to Consultant; and (iii) the time 
to complete the Task Order.  The provisions of this Agreement shall apply 
to all such Task Orders. 

 (b) For each Task Order, Consultant shall confer, as requested, with 
District representatives to review progress of work elements, adherence to 
work schedule, coordination of work, scheduling of review and resolution of 
problems which may develop. 

2.2 Consultant will furnish all of the labor, technical, administrative, professional 
and other personnel, all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 134



2 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

vehicles, transportation, office space and facilities, and all tests, testing and 
analyses, calculation, and all other means whatsoever, except as otherwise 
expressly specified in this Agreement, necessary or proper to perform and 
complete the services required of Consultant under this Agreement. 

2.3 Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its 
behalf and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of 
services under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
by this reference incorporated herein (“Key Personnel”).  

2.4 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, 
experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the services 
required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional 
manner. Notwithstanding Section 3 below, in the event Consultant utilizes 
the services of subcontractors or sub-consultants, Consultant assumes sole 
and complete responsibility for the performance of the  subcontractor or 
sub-consultant to the specifications provided hereunder for Consultant’s 
work, and no adjustment will be made to Consultant’s requirements under 
this Agreement for timely completion of services, complete performance of 
services, or delivery of products or deliverables in a timely fashion, and no 
adjustment will be made to performance deadlines, or compensation due to 
Consultant, due to or arising from issues Consultant may have with any 
subcontractor or sub-consultant.  Consultant will at all times faithfully, 
competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
services described in this Agreement.  In meeting its obligations under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted 
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services 
similar to those required of Consultant under this Agreement. 

 Consultant warrants it will perform its engineering and design under 
the Task Order, as more particularly described in Exhibit A ("Task Order") 
in accordance with the current standards of care and diligence normally 
practiced by recognized engineering and design firms in performing 
services of a similar nature. Further, Consultant warrants that the 
engineering and design performed has been performed in accordance with 
the then current standards of care and diligence normally practiced by 
recognized engineering and design firms in performing services of a similar 
nature. If within one (1) year after substantial completion of the engineering 
and design work it is shown that there is an error in that work as a result of 
the Consultant’s failure to meet those standards and the District has notified 
the Consultant in writing of any such error within that period, Consultant 
shall re-perform such engineering and design work within the original scope 
of such services, as may be necessary to remedy such error. All costs 
incurred by Consultant in performing such corrective services shall be the 
sole responsibility of the Consultant and such costs shall not be 
reimbursable in any way. 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 135



3 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

Section 3. Additional Services and Changes in Services 

3.1 Consultant will not be compensated for any services rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of 
those set forth in the Task Orders, unless such additional services are 
authorized in advance and in writing by District. 

3.2 If Consultant believes that additional services are needed to complete a 
Task Order, Consultant will provide the Authorized Representative with 
written notification describing the proposed additional services, the reasons 
for such services, and a detailed proposal regarding cost. 

3.3 District may order changes to a Task Order, consisting of additions, 
deletions, or other revisions, and the compensation to be paid Consultant 
will be adjusted accordingly.  All such changes must be authorized in 
writing, and executed by Consultant and District.  The cost or credit to 
District resulting from changes in a Task Order will be determined by the 
written agreement between the Parties. 

 

Section 4. Familiarity with Services and Site. 

4.1 By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant shall, 
prior to undertaking a Task Order: 

(a) investigate and consider the services to be performed; 

(b) carefully consider how and within what time frame the services 
should be performed;  

(c) understand the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending 
performance of the services under a Task Order; and 

(d) possesses all licenses required under local, state or federal law to 
perform the services contemplated by a Task Order, and maintain all 
required licenses during the performance of such Task Order. 

4.2 If services involve work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant 
has or will investigate the site and will be fully acquainted with the conditions 
there existing, before commencing its services under a Task Order.  Should 
Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions that may materially 
affect the performance of services, Consultant will immediately inform 
District of such fact and will not proceed except at Consultant’s own risk 
until written instructions are received from the District. 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 136



4 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

Section 5. Compensation and Payment. 

5.1 Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, District agrees to pay 
Consultant the amounts shown in a Task Order. 

5.2 Each month during the existence of a Task Order, Consultant shall furnish 
District with an original invoice for all services performed and expenses 
incurred during the preceding month in accordance with the fee schedule 
set forth in the Task Order.  The invoice must detail charges by the following 
categories: labor (by subcategory), reimbursable costs, subcontractor 
contracts and miscellaneous expenses.  The invoice must list, as 
applicable, the hours worked and hourly rates for each personnel category, 
the tasks performed, the percentage of the task completed during the billing 
period, the cumulative percentage completed for each task, and the total 
cost of the services. 

5.3 District will independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to 
determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in 
compliance with this Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses 
are disputed, the invoice will be approved and paid.  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by District, the original invoice will be 
returned by District to Consultant for correction and resubmission. 

5.4 Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Consultant that are  disputed by District, District will use its best efforts to 
cause Consultant to be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant’s 
invoice. 

5.5 No payment or partial payment to Consultant shall constitute acceptance of 
any work completed by Consultant or waive any claims by the District for 
any reason whatsoever.  

 

Section 6. Required Documentation Prior to Performance. 

6.1 Consultant will not perform any services under this Agreement until: 

      (a)    Consultant furnishes proof of insurance (“Insurance”) as required 
under Exhibit “C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein; and 

(b)  Consultant provides District with a Taxpayer Identification Number.   

6.2 The District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receiving written authorization to proceed for each 
Task Order, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at 
Consultant’s own risk. 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 137



5 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

Section 7. Project Documents. 

7.1 All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, 
surveys, reports, data, notes, computer programs, files and other 
documents (collectively, “Project Documents”) prepared, developed or 
discovered by Consultant in the course of providing services under this 
Agreement will become the sole property of District and may be used, 
reused or otherwise disposed of by District without the permission of 
Consultant.  Consultant will take such steps as are necessary to perfect or 
protect the ownership interest of District in such Project Documents.  Upon 
completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
turn over to District all such original Project Documents in its possession; 
provided, however, that Consultant may retain copies of Project 
Documents.   

7.2 Except as necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement, 
no Project Documents prepared under this Agreement, will be released by 
Consultant to any other person or entity without District’s prior written 
approval.  All press releases, including graphic display information to be 
published, must be approved and distributed solely by District, unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by District. 

 

Section 8. Consultant’s Books and Records. 

8.1 Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Consultant’s performance of services under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of 
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or 
records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and 
disbursements charged to District under this Agreement.  Any and all such 
documents or records must be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and must be sufficiently complete and 
detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by 
Consultant under this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records 
must be maintained for three (3) years following the final payment for each 
Task Order. 

8.2 Any and all records or documents required to be maintained by this section 
must be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon written request by District or its designated 
representatives.  Copies of such documents or records must be provided 
directly to District for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do 
so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such 
documents and records must be made available at Consultant’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 

Suggested

  Consultant. the
 to exposrue legal or liability without and risk sole District's the at be shall Agreement this by
 intended purposes the within not Documents Project the of use such Any Addition: 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 138

hwerner
Line



6 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

8.3 Where District has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained by this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Consultant’s business, District may, by written 
request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to a 
person or entity mutually agreed upon and that such documents and 
records thereafter be maintained by such person or entity at Consultant’s 
expense.  Access to such documents and records shall be granted to 
District, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized 
representatives. 

 

Section 9. Status of Consultant. 

9.1 Consultant is and will at all times remain a wholly independent contractor 
and not an officer or employee of District.  Consultant has no authority to 
bind District in any manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any 
kind on behalf of or against District, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise 
expressly conferred in writing by District. 

9.2 The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant will at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Neither District, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, 
officials, employees or agents of District, will have control over the conduct 
of Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, subcontractors or sub-
consultants, employees or agents, except as provided in this Agreement.  
Consultant warrants that it will not at any time or in any manner represent 
that Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents are in 
any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of District. 

9.3 Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents, 
will obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which 
may otherwise accrue to District’s employees.  Consultant expressly waives 
any claim to any such rights or benefits. 

 

Section 10. Compliance with Applicable Laws. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during 
the term of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 139



7 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

Section 11. Conflicts of Interest. 

Consultant covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal nor 
employee of its firm, has or will acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, that would 
conflict in any manner with the interests of District or that would in any way hinder 
Consultant’s performance of services under this Agreement.  Consultant further 
covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal or employee of its firm 
will make, participate in the making, or in any way attempt to use the position of 
Consultant to influence any decision of the District in which Consultant knows or 
has reason to know that Consultant, or any officer, principal or employee of 
Consultant has a financial interest as defined in Government Code section 87103. 

 

Section 12. Confidential Information; Release of Information. 

12.1 All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement will be considered confidential to the full 
extent permitted by law, unless such information is in the public domain or 
already known to Consultant.  Consultant shall not release or disclose any 
such information or work product to persons or entities other than District 
without prior written authorization from an Authorized Representative, 
except as may be required by law. 

12.2 Consultant, its officers, employees, or agents, shall not, without prior written 
authorization from an Authorized Representative or unless requested by the 
District counsel, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, 
testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information 
concerning the work performed under this Agreement.  Response to a 
subpoena or court order will not be considered “voluntary” provided 
Consultant gives District notice of such court order or subpoena.  

12.3 If Consultant, or any officer, employee, or agent of Consultant, provides any 
information or work product (including Project Documents) in violation of 
this Agreement, then District shall have the right to reimbursement and 
indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, including 
attorneys’ fees related to any unauthorized disclosure by consultant or, 
caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant’s conduct. 

12.4 Consultant shall promptly notify District should, Consultant, its officers, 
employees, or agents be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, 
notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any 
party regarding this Agreement and the services performed under this 
Agreement.  District retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent 
Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. 
Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with District and to provide District with 
the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 140



8 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

Consultant.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply 
or mean the right by District to control, direct, or rewrite such response. 

 

Section 13. Indemnification. 
 

Consultant covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, any 
injury suffered as a result of Consultant’s services shall be the sole responsibility 
of Consultant and its successors and assigns and District shall not be liable to 
Consultant, or any other person or persons whatsoever for any such injury, loss or 
damage to persons or property unless caused by the negligence or intentional acts 
of District or its Representatives (as solely defined below).  Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold District, its officers, directors and Representatives 
(“District Indemnitees”) harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 
liabilities, debts, demands, suits, actions, causes of action, obligations, 
proceedings, damages, judgments, liens and expenses of whatever nature, 
including attorneys’ fees and disbursements (collectively, “Claims”) which may be 
made against the District Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with (a) the 
retention by District of Consultant’s services; (b) the performance of or failure to 
perform, the work covered by this Agreement which is caused or occasioned by 
any act, action, neglect on the part of Consultant, or its Representatives, in the 
performance of this Agreement and the work to be done under this Agreement; (c) 
the death and/or injury to any person or damage to any property (real or personal) 
and/or economic loss which may be caused or is claimed to have been caused, by 
the negligence, act or omission of Consultant or its Representatives or its or their 
property; (d) any violation or alleged violation by Consultant of any law or 
regulation now or hereafter enacted; and (e) any breach by Consultant of its 
obligations under this Agreement.  The foregoing indemnity shall not apply to the 
extent any such Claims are ultimately established by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to have been caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
District Indemnitees or any of them.  District shall make all decisions with respect 
to its representation in any legal proceeding concerning this section.  If Consultant 
fails to do so, District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to defend the same 
and charge all of the direct or incidental Claims of such defense, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs, to Consultant and to recover the same from Consultant.  
The term “Representatives” shall mean employees, representatives, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or any other persons directly or indirectly employed by 
any one of the foregoing or reasonably under the control of any of the foregoing or 
for whose acts any of the foregoing may be liable. 
 

Section 14. Insurance. 

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of 
this Agreement the Insurance coverages listed in Exhibit “C.”  All Insurance policies  

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 141



9 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

shall be subject to approval by District as to form and content.  These requirements 
are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by an Authorized 
Representative.   

 

Section 15. Assignment. 

15.1 The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  District has an interest in the qualifications of and capability 
of the persons and entities that will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed 
upon Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant may not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance 
of any of Consultant’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of District.  The District can withhold its 
approval/consent in its sole and absolute discretion.  Any attempted 
assignment will be null and void, and will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling District to any and all remedies at law or in equity, 
including summary termination of this Agreement. 

15.2 Consultant must obtain District’s prior written approval before utilizing any 
subcontractors to perform any services under this Agreement, which 
approval may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion.  This 
written approval must include the identity of the subcontractor and the terms 
of compensation.  Approval by District does not imply any agreement to or 
endorsement by the District as to the competency or capability of any 
proposed subcontractor or sub-consultant, and District reserves any and all 
rights against both Consultant and such subcontractor or sub-consultant , 
for any failure to perform or other breach of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement, or the standards of performance defined herein, and no waiver 
is intended or to be implied by District’s approval of any subcontractor or 
sub-consultant.  

 

Section 16. Termination of Agreement. 

16.1 District may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
written notice of termination to Consultant.  In the event such notice is given, 
Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress.   

16.2 Upon termination of this Agreement, all property belonging exclusively to 
District which is in Consultant’s possession must be returned to District.  
Consultant shall promptly deliver to District a final invoice for all outstanding 
services performed and expenses incurred by Consultant as of the date of 
termination.  Compensation for work in progress not based on an hourly 
rate will be prorated based on the percentage of work completed as of the 
date of termination. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 142



10 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

16.3 Consultant acknowledges District’s right to terminate this Agreement as 
provided in this section, and hereby waives any and all claims for damages 
that might otherwise arise from District’s termination of this Agreement. 

 

Section 17. Notices. 

17.1 All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
will be deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective 
address as follows: 

To District:   West Valley Water District 
855 West Base Line Road 
P. O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA   92377 
Attention:  Shamindra Manbahal 
Interim General Manager 

 
(Tel.) 909-875-1804 
(Fax) 909-875-1849 

 
To Consultant: Vendor Name________ 

Address 
Phone Number 
Email 
 
 
 

** Please send all invoices by: 
 
Email: apinvoices@wvwd.org  
 
  or 
 
Mail:  West Valley Water District 
 Accounts Payable 
 P.O. Box 920 
 Rialto, CA 92377 
 

 

17.2 Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or 
transmitted by facsimile.  If the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given 
three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first class delivery, or upon delivery if 
using a major courier service with tracking capabilities. 

Suggested   Deletion. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 143

mailto:apinvoices@wvwd.org
hwerner
Line

hwerner
Line



11 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

17.3 Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other 
Party in compliance with this section. 

 

Section 18. General Provisions. 

18.1 Authority to Execute. Each Party represents and warrants that all 
necessary action has been taken by such Party to authorize the 
undersigned to execute this Agreement and to bind it to the performance of 
its obligations hereunder. 

18.2 Binding Effect.  Subject to Section 15, this Agreement is binding upon the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the Parties, 
including any subcontractors or sub-consultants of Consultant.  

18.3 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits “A” 
through “C,” is the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the 
Parties with respect to the matters addressed in this Agreement and 
supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, 
between Consultant and District prior to the execution of this Agreement.   

18.4 Modification of Agreement.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement will be valid unless made in writing and approved by Consultant 
and approved in writing by the Board of Directors of the District, or in writing 
by the General Manager, if such power has been delegated to General 
Manager.  The Parties agree that this requirement for written modifications 
cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver will be void. 

18.5 Facsimile Signatures.  Amendments to this Agreement will be considered 
executed when the signature of a Party is delivered by facsimile 
transmission.  Such facsimile signature will have the same effect as an 
original signature. 

18.6 Waiver.  Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or 
covenant of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other term, 
condition, or covenant.  Waiver by any Party of any breach of the provisions 
of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other provision, or a 
waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this 
Agreement.  Acceptance by District of any services by Consultant will not 
constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

18.7 Interpretation.  This Agreement will be interpreted, construed and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  Each Party has 
had the opportunity to review this Agreement with legal counsel.  The 
Agreement will be construed simply, as a whole, and in accordance with its 
fair meaning, and without resort to rules regarding draftsmanship.  It will not 
be interpreted strictly for or against either Party. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 144



12 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

18.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the Parties shall: (a) promptly negotiate a substitute for 
the provisions which shall to the greatest extent legally permissible, effect 
the intent of the Parties in the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, and 
(b) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement as may be necessary in addition to and in 
conjunction with subsection (a) above to give effect to the intent of the 
Parties without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision.  To the extent 
the Parties are unable to negotiate such changes, substitutions or additions 
as set forth in the preceding sentence, and the intent of the Parties with 
respect to the essential terms of the Agreement may be carried out without 
the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions, the balance of this 
Agreement shall not be affected, and this Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions did not exist. 

18.9 Venue.   The Parties agree any action or proceeding to enforce or relating 
to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the federal court located 
in Riverside County, California or state court located in San Bernardino 
County, California and the Parties hereto consent to the exercise of 
personal jurisdiction over them by such courts for purposes of any such 
action or proceeding. 

18.10 Disputes.  If any disputes should arise between the Parties concerning the 
work to be done under this Agreement, the payments to be made, or the 
manner of accomplishment of the work, Consultant shall nevertheless 
proceed to perform the work as directed by District pending settlement of 
the dispute. 

18.11 Cooperation.  Consultant shall cooperate in the performance of work with 
District and all other agents. 

18.12 Time of Essence.  Time shall be of the essence as to all dates and times 
of performance contained in this Agreement. 

18.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed and delivered in any 
number of counter parts, each of which, when signed and delivered, shall 
be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 145



13 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 
executed effective as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 
By ______________________________________    

Channing Hawkins, President 

 
 
By ______________________________________    

Shamindra, Manbahal, Interim General Manager 
 
 
 
By_______________________________________ 
 Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC 
 
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
           Robert Tafoya 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
________________________________ 
 
 
By       
 
Name       
 
Its       

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 146



14 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

TASK ORDER 
  

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 147



15 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

 

TASK ORDER NO. __1___ 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this ____   day of __________ , 2021 
by and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
(“District”) and _____________________ (“Consultant”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. On or about _________________, 2021 District and Consultant executed that 
certain Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task 
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the 
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not 
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in 
writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order.  As such, the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 148



16 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 
_____________________________________  
Channing Hawkins, President 

 
_____________________________________  
Shamindra Manbahal, Interim General 
Manager 
 

 
 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary   
  
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
Vendor Name Here   ____________________ 
 
 
By        

 
Name        

 
Its        

 
 
 
 

By        
 

Name        
 

Its        
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 149



17 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

        EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__              
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 150



18 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__ 
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
 
 
 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 151



19 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__ 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
  

 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 152



20 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT B 

KEY PERSONNEL  

Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its behalf 
and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of services under 
this Agreement are: 

 

_______________________ 

 
 
 

  

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 153



21 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE 

 
  

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 154



22 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

INSURANCE 

 
A. General Requirements.  Before commencing the performance of services under 

this Agreement, and at all other times this Agreement is effective, Consultant must 
procure and maintain the following types of insurance with coverage limits 
complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth below: 

 
  Type of Insurance   Limits (combined single) 
 
  Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 
  Business Automobile Liability  $1,000,000   
  Professional Liability   $1,000,000   
  Workers Compensation   Statutory Requirement  
 
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance.  The amount of insurance set forth 

above must be a combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage for the policy coverage.  The insurance must be on 
an “occurrence” not a “claims made” basis. 

 
C. Business Automobile Insurance.  Automobile coverage must be written on forms 

subject to the written approval of District. 
 
D. Professional Liability Insurance.  This coverage must be on an “occurrence” 

basis, including coverage for contractual liability.  The Professional Liability 
Insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims 
based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement.  

E. Workers Compensation.  Consultant must have a State of California approved 
policy form providing the statutory benefits required by law with employer’s liability 
limits of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for all covered losses, or Consultant 
must provide evidence of an approved self-insurance program. 

F. Additional Insureds.  Each Commercial General Liability Insurance policy and 
Business Auto Insurance policy must provide that the District, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers are “additional insureds” under the terms of the 
policy, and must provide that an act or omission of one the insureds will not reduce 
or avoid coverage to the other insureds. 

G. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions applicable to the insurance policies required under this Agreement must 
be declared to and approved by District.  In no event may any required insurance 
policy have a deductible, self-insured retention or other similar policy provision in 
excess of $50,000 without prior written approval by District in its sole discretion.  
At the option of District, either the insurer will reduce or eliminate such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions with respect to the District’s additional insureds or 
Consultant will procure a bond guaranteeing payment of any losses, damages, 
expenses, costs or settlements up to the amount of such deductibles or self-
insured retentions. 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 155



23 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

H. Primary Insurance.  Each of the insurance policies maintained by Consultant 
under this Agreement must state that such insurance will be deemed “primary” so 
that any insurance that may be carried by District will be deemed excess to that of 
Consultant.  This endorsement must be reflected on forms as determined by 
District.   

I. Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing any 
services under this Agreement, Consultant must file with the District certificates of 
insurance and endorsements evidencing the existence of all insurance required by 
this Agreement, along with such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies 
as may reasonably be required by District.  These certificates of insurance and 
endorsements must be in a form approved by the Legal Counsel.  Consultant must 
maintain current certificates and endorsements on file with District during the term 
of this Agreement reflecting the existence of all required insurance.  Each of the 
certificates must expressly provide that no material change in the policy, or 
termination thereof, will be effective except upon 30 days’ prior written notice to 
District by certified mail, return receipt requested.  The delivery to District of any 
certificates of insurance or endorsements that do not comply with the requirements 
of this Agreement will not waive the District’s right to require compliance. 

J. Insurance Rating.  All insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under 
this Agreement must be issued by companies licensed by or admitted to conduct 
insurance business in the State of California by the California Department of 
Insurance and must have a rating of A or better and Class VII or better by the latest 
edition of A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide. 

K. Aggregate Limits.  The aggregate limits for each insurance policy required under 
this Agreement must apply separately and solely to the services performed under 
this Agreement.  If the required policies do not have an endorsement providing that 
the aggregate limit applies separately to the services being performed, or if 
defense costs are included in the aggregate limit, then the required aggregate 
limits must be increased to an amount satisfactory to District. 

L. Waiver of Subrogation Rights.  Consultant and each insurer providing any 
insurance required by this Agreement must waive all rights of subrogation against 
District, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, and each insurer 
must issue a certificate to the District evidencing this waiver of subrogation rights. 
 

M. Failure to Maintain Required Insurance.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to 
obtain and maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, District may obtain 
such coverage at Consultant’s expense and deduct the cost of such insurance 
from payments due to Consultant under this Agreement or may terminate the 
Agreement. 

N. Effect of Coverage.  The existence of the required insurance coverage under this 
Agreement shall not be deemed to satisfy or limit Consultant’s indemnity 
obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant acknowledges that the insurance 
coverage and policy limits set forth in this Agreement constitute the minimum 
coverage and policy limits required.  Any insurance proceeds available to District 

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 156



24 
       Rev. 12/17/19 Master Copy 

in excess of the limits and coverage required by this Agreement, and which is 
applicable to a given loss, must be made available to District to compensate it for 
such losses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

2.9.b

Packet Pg. 157



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
HD04, LLC. (“Developer”) is the owner of land located directly north and south of Duncan Canyon 
Road, west of Citrus Avenue and east of Lytle Creek Road in the City of Fontana, known as 
Ventana (“Development”), as shown in Exhibit A.  The Developer is required to install two (2) large 
water meter assemblies within a dedicated open space area to provide for domestic water service. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
West Valley Water District (“District”) must accept a Grant of Easement for water facility 
construction, inspection, maintenance, replacement, and removal within the Development to 
construct the water facilities needed for the Development.  Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the 
proposed Grant of Easement, showing the full extent of the easements within the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact to the District. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A GRANT OF EASEMENT FROM HD04, LLC FOR 
VENTANA PA 6 

2.10

Packet Pg. 158



 
 
 
BP;ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Aerial Map 

2. Exhibit B - Grant of Easement 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

2.10

Packet Pg. 159



EXHIBIT A 

2.10.a

Packet Pg. 160



Ex
h

ib
it
 A

Th
e

V
e

n
ta

n
a

1
5 

FR
W

Y
2

1
0

FR
W

Y

1
0

FR
W

Y

2
1

5
FR

W
Y

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

A
R

EA

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

A
R

EA

D
u

n
ca

n
 C

an
yo

n
 R

o
ad

Citrus Ave

In
te

rs
ta

te
1

5
 F

re
ew

ay

Ly
tl

e 
C

re
ek

 R
d

2.10.a

Packet Pg. 161



EXHIBIT B 

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 162



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 920
RIALTO, CA 92377-0920

ATTENTION: GENERAL MANAGER
 
THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE SIGNED 
IN THE PRSENCE OF NOTARY &
NOTARIZED
 

No Recording Fee required Pursuant to Government Code Section 27383
APN: 0226-075-045

GRANT OF EASEMENT

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged HD04, LLC, a New 
Mexico Limited Liability Company (“GRANTOR”) does hereby grant to WEST VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT, a county water district, its successors and assigns (“GRANTEE”) a perpetual non-exclusive 
easement and right of way to construct, enlarge, reconstruct, remove and replace, operate, inspect, maintain, 
repair, improve and relocate for pipelines for the transmission of water, connections, devises and 
appurtenances in, on, over, under, upon, along, through and across the property hereinafter described, together 
with reasonable right of access to and from said easement for purposes of exercising the rights granted in said 
easement. 

Said easement shall be in, under, over, and across that certain property situated in the County of San 
Bernardino, State of California, described as follows:

(SEE EXHIBITS “A” & “B” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF)

The foregoing easement shall include:

(a) The temporary use of such adjacent land of Grantor as is necessary to install the facilities provided for 
under the term of the easement granted herein; and
 

(b) The right to enter upon and pass and repass over and along said strip or strips of land, and to deposit 
tools, implements and other materials thereon by Grantee, its officers, agents and employees, and by 
persons under contract to construct said pipeline or pipelines, and their employees, whenever 
necessary for the purpose of exercising the rights herein granted. 

Grantor retains the right to the use of the land described herein except as to any use in derogation of the 
easement contained herein, and specifically agrees that no trees shall be planted thereon and, no buildings or 
other structures of any kind will be placed, constructed, or maintained over the real property described herein. 
Any work by Grantor, or any one working through or under Grantor, affecting the surface or subsurface of the 
ground subject to this easement shall be performed only after giving written notice by certified mail, postage 
paid, addressed to Grantee as its business office setting forth the proposed changes in detail. Such notice is to 
be given to the Grantee at least thirty (30) business days prior to commencement of such work and is subject 
to approval by Grantee.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the surface of the ground with respect to the distance 
from the ground surface to the top of any pipes, as of the date of this easement, shall not be changed by any 
party other than Grantee, if it results in:

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 163



(a) “Cutting or removing the soil which leave less than thirty (30) inches of soil over the top of any pipe; 
and

(b) “Hauling” in of soil or “filling” which will leave more than ten (10) feet of soil over the top of any 
pipe.

It is understood that the permanent easements and the rights of way above described shall be acquired subject 
to the rights of the Grantor, Grantor’s successors, heir and assigns, to use the surface of the real property 
within the boundaries of such easements and rights of way.  It is understood that any use of the surface rights 
by Grantor, and Grantor’s successors, heirs and assigns, shall be deemed a continuing permissive use allowed 
by Grantee, its successors, heirs and assigns, and each successor-in-interest of the Grantor, by acceptance of a 
conveyance of said property or interest therein admits and agrees that any such use is a continuing permissive 
use.  It is understood that each and every right and privilege hereby granted is free and alienable. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that this Grant of Easement shall not be construed 
as a Grant of fee title. 

Grantee, its successors and assigns, shall restore, or cause to be restored, the surface or subsurface of the real 
property hereinabove described to the condition said property was in as of the time of performance of any 
enlargement, construction, reconstruction, removal and replacement, operation, inspection, maintenance, 
repair, improvement and relocation, and such restoration shall be performed with due diligence and dispatch. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, this instrument has been executed the  day of , 2021.

GRANTOR(S): HDO4, LLC, a New Mexico Limited Liability Company

BY: 

NAME: 

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 164



ALL CAPACITY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF ____________________________________

On _______________________, before me, 
____________________________________________________, 
                                                                                                                   (Name and title of the officer)

personally appeared________________________________________________________________who 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity (ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf 
of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature_____________________________________________

(SEAL)

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 165



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT EASEMENT

EXHIBIT A - Page 1 of 2
M:\Mapping\1655-004\Legals\Water Easements\1655-004 Water Esmt.docx

THOSE CERTAIN PARCELS OF LAND LYING WITHIN PARCEL 1 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 
20327, IN THE CITY OF FONTANA, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP FILED IN BOOK _____, PAGES ____ THROUGH ___, OF PARCEL 
MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS:

PARCEL 1

BEING A 10.00 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND, THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF WHICH IS 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE EASTERLY TERMINUS OF THAT CERTAIN COURSE SHOWN ON 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL 1 AS HAVING A BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 
89°21’51” EAST 261.30 FEET;

THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, SOUTH 89°21’51” WEST 97.25 FEET TO THE TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, SOUTH 89°21'51" WEST, 24.00 FEET;

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 240 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

PARCEL 2

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHERLY TERMINUS OF THAT CERTAIN COURSE SHOWN ON 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID PARCEL 1 AS HAVING A BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 
00°35’58” EAST 144.20 FEET, SAID TERMINUS BEING THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT 
CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 177.00 FEET;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE AND CURVE, 30.40 FEET THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09°50’26” TO TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE AND CURVE 24.02 FEET, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07°46'32";

THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 74°59'23" WEST, 10.26 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 15°00'37" WEST, 24.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 74°59'23" EAST, 10.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 243 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS.

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 166



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT EASEMENT

EXHIBIT A - Page 2 of 2
M:\Mapping\1655-004\Legals\Water Easements\1655-004 Water Esmt.docx

AS SHOWN ON EXHIBIT B, ATTACHED HERETO AND BY THIS REFERENCE MADE A PART 
HEREOF.

THIS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED BY ME, OR UNDER MY DIRECTION, IN 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYORS’ ACT.

KURT R. TROXELL, P.L.S. 7854
DATE PREPARED:  11/15/2021

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 167

Cindy Shambeck
Kurt's Signature



www.fuscoe.com
tel 949.474.1960     fax 949.474.5315

Irvine, California 92606
16795 Von Karman, Suite 100

N G IE N E E R I N G

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 168

Cindy Shambeck
Kurt's Signature



www.fuscoe.com
tel 949.474.1960     fax 949.474.5315

Irvine, California 92606
16795 Von Karman, Suite 100

N G IE N E E R I N G

2.10.b

Packet Pg. 169



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff is preparing the Bid Documents for Water Main Replacement, and request Construction 
Management and Inspection Services for the Interstate 10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement 
Project (“I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement”).  The I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange 
Improvement Project is required by the San Bernardino County Transportation Authority 
(“SBCTA”) and San Bernardino County, in cooperation with the California Department of 
Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, to improve the I-10/Cedar Avenue 
interchange in the unincorporated community of Bloomington.  The proposed project will widen 
the Cedar Avenue Overcrossing Bridge (“Cedar Avenue Bridge OC”), Union Pacific Railroad 
(“UPRR”)/Cedar Avenue Overhead Bridge (“Cedar Avenue Bridge OH”), Cedar Avenue, and 
modify the existing entrance and exit ramps to improve the turning maneuverability and storage 
capacity. The widening of the I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project is of critical 
importance to SBCTA and WVWD to reduce traffic congestion at the interchange. 
 
WVWD’s water facilities are located within SBCTA’s proposed improvements along Cedar Avenue 
between Bloomington Avenue and Orange Street. Approximately 2,600 linear feet of 12-inch water 
main and 1,300 linear feet of 8-inch water main will need to be replaced.  On the Cedar Avenue 
Bridge OC and OH, the 8-inch water main is in a 16-inch steel casing and the 12-inch water main is 
in a 20-inch steel casing and as part of the bridge widening project, will need to be replaced.  
WVWD has prior rights and has existing agreements with the State of California.  This Project will 
be funded by SBCTA and will be required to coordinate all Work with SBCTA for review and 
approval.  A Caltrans permit and a UPRR permit will be required.  Work requires relocating the 
existing water main, meters, valves, and a fire hydrant.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On October 15, 2020, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Michael Baker International, Inc. (“MBI”) for the Development of Construction Bid 
Documents for Water Main Replacement, Construction Management, and Inspection Services for 
the I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project.   
 
On November 19, 2021, MBI submitted a proposal for additional design services required to modify 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: I-10 CEDAR AVENUE INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT: 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AMENDMENT NO. 3 

2.11

Packet Pg. 170



the plans as requested by SBCTA to the final, 100% signed plans and cost option for the Project not 
included in their original contract.  The additional design services for Phase2/3 include revisions to 
review and address design comments, cost opinion, check-set, reissue the plans and cost opinion, 
coordination meetings, and post-final comments and coordination.  Attached as Exhibit A is a copy 
of Task Order No. 1 Amendment No. 3, which includes the proposal received by MBI to modify 
the plans to cover the cost for the additional work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The cost to perform the additional design services for the I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange 
Improvement Project as proposed by MBI is $14,940.00.  This item is included in the Fiscal Year 
2021/22 Capital Improvement Budget under the W19055 I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Project.  
The funds will be reimbursed to WVWD once the Utility Agreement is executed with SBCTA.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
RG;ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Task Order No. 1 Amendment No. 3 with Michael Baker International 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

2.11

Packet Pg. 171



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 172



1 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1  
 

Development of Construction Bid Documents for Water Main Replacement, 
Construction Management, and Inspection Services 

This Amendment No. 3 (“Amendment”) is executed this 16th day of December, 
2021, by and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of 
California (“District”) and Michael Baker International (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

 

A. On or about October 15th , 2020, District and Consultant executed that certain 
Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Amendments from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this 
Amendment for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the 
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not 
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in 
writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Amendment.  As such, the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 173



2 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 

 
By __________________________________  
Channing Hawkins, President 

 
 
By __________________________________  
Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager   
 
 
By __________________________________  
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC 

 
 
 
By ___________________________________ 
Robert Tafoya 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL 
 
 
By        

 

Name        
 

Its        

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 174



3 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1  
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Scope: 
 

1. Additional design services per the attached letter proposal dated November 
19, 2021. The letter and supporting documents are incorporated by reference 
to this Amendment. 

  

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 175



 

 

 

 

November 19, 2021          JN 181262 

 

Ms. Rosa M. Gutierrez, PE 

West Valley Water District 

855 W Base Line Road 

PO Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Subject: Amendment No. 3 for Task Order No. 1, I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvements, Project 

No. W19055 

 

Dear Ms. Gutierrez, 

 

The focus of this letter is for your approval of Amendment No. 3 for Michael Baker’s additional design 

services relating to the Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvements.  These work items are for 

modifications requested by San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) to the final, 100% 

signed plans and cost opinion for the Project Phase 2/3 final submittal. 

 

The drawings were completed, signed, and submitted with all review comments addressed, dated July 8, 

2021. A final cost opinion was provided with the final Drawings. On November 4, 2021, Michael Baker 

attended a review meeting at the request of SBCTA. During the meeting, SBCTA presented and discussed 

comments and changes that they want to be reflected in the Drawings and in the cost opinion. Post-final 

revisions to the final plans and cost opinion to accommodate preferences of SBCTA are not included in 

the current contract.  

 

This Contract amendment includes additional scope and fee for Post-final revisions and resubmittal of 

the final signed Phase 2/3 Drawings and cost opinion. 

 

Scope of Work: 

• Provide revisions for comments not associated with milestone submittal reviews during the 

months of August through October 2021.  

• Michael Baker will review and address the comments to the plans and cost opinion for the 

Phase 2/3 documents. 

• Michael Baker will provide a check-set of Phase 2/3 plans to SBTCA to verify the revisions are 

acceptable. 

• Michael Bater will reissue the signed Phase 2/3 plans and cost opinion. 

• Four (4) hours of coordination time for meetings, calls, etc. is included. 

• An additional four (4) hours of Project Management and twenty (20) hours of engineering are 

included to address any further comments that SBTCA or Caltrans may provide on the Phase 2/3 

final submittal, or to be used if post-final comments are provided to the Phase 1 submittal. 

 

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 176



Ms. Bertha Perez, PE  November 19, 2021 
West Valley Water District 
Page 2 

 

 

The detailed breakdown of each work item including hourly rates is provided in the fee table below. 

 

 

 

Should you have any questions, please contact me directly by phone at: (951) 506-2086; or via e-mail: 

miles.costanza@mbakerintl.com.  

        

 

 

 

 

Miles Costanza, PE 

 

 

 

 

 

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 177



4 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1  
 

COMPENSATION 
 
 

The fee estimated for additional scope and design services is $14,940.00. 
 

TASK NUMBER TASK DESCRIPTION COST 
1 Comment Revisions $3,860.00 
2 Address Comments & Submit Check Set $3,860.00 
3 Re-Issue Final Drawings $1,380.00 
4 Agency Coordination $880.00 
5 Future Coordination Allowance $4,960.00 

 Total Cost $14,940.00 
 
  

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 178



5 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1  
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
  

Schedule to be determined by District staff. 

 

2.11.a

Packet Pg. 179



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Pressure Zone 7 is north of Pressure Zone 6 in West Valley Water District’s (“District”) North 
System.  Storage is provided by R7-1, R7-2, R7-3, and R7-4 Reservoirs on Lytle Creek Road.  There 
is no source of supply within Pressure Zone 7.  Water is boosted from the Lower Pressure Zones 4, 
5, and 6.   
 
Currently there is one existing pump station, Pump Station 7-1, boosting water supplies to the upper 
pressure zone.  Pump Station 7-2 is needed to supply future demands and provide redundancy in the 
event the other pump station is out of service for maintenance or repair.  Staff is proposing to 
design Pump Station 7-2 (PS7-2) in preparation for the increased development that is projected to 
occur in Pressure Zone 7. 
 
On January 24, 2018 the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Michael Baker International, Inc. (“MBI”) to prepare the design for PS7-2. Since 
their contract was established, MBI has successfully conducted the scope of work and provided 
deliverables as stated in the contract. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The project has been delayed due to Southern California Edison (“SCE”) issues related to the 
service connection, new meter installation, and coordination with the District. Now that the 
coordination and the meter agreement discussion with SCE is complete, the District has requested a 
proposal from MBI to complete the final design. The proposal includes completing the hundred 
percent (100%) design and updating project specifications for PS7-2. Attached as Exhibit A is a 
copy of Task Order No. 3, which includes the proposal received by MBI to modify the plans to 
cover the cost for the additional work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
This project is included in the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Capital Improvement Budget under the W18021 
Pump Station 7-2 project. This change order will increase the contract amount by $35,895.00.   
 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: TASK ORDER NO. 3 WITH MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
FOR DESIGN OF PUMP STATION 7-2 

2.12

Packet Pg. 180



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
MB:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

2.12

Packet Pg. 181



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 182



1 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 

Engineering Services for the Design of Zone 7-2 Pump Station 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this 16th day of December, 2021, by 
and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
(“District”) and Michael Baker International (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

 

A. On or about October 15th , 2020, District and Consultant executed that certain 
Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Amendments from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this 
Amendment for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the 
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not 
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in 
writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Amendment.  As such, the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 183



2 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 

 
By __________________________________  
Channing Hawkins, President 

 
 
By __________________________________  
Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager   
 
 
By __________________________________  
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC 

 
 
 
By ___________________________________ 
Robert Tafoya 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL 
 
 
By        

 

Name        
 

Its        

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 184



3 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Scope: 
 

1. Additional design services per the attached letter proposal dated December 
1, 2021. The letter and supporting documents are incorporated by reference 
to this Task Order. 

  

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 185



 

 

 

December 1, 2021         JN 165353 

 

Mr. Marco Bravo 

West Valley Water District 

855 W Base Line Road 

PO Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Subject: Final Design for Zone 7-2 Pump Station 

 

Dear Mr. Bravo: 

 
Michael Baker completed and submitted the 90% design package of Pump Station 7-2 to West Valley 
Water District in March of 2021. The 90% design was a continuation of the 60% design submittal was 
provided in May of 2019. The project has been delayed intermittently for extended durations of time 
since the design began in January 2018. These delays have primarily been due to SCE service entrance 
issues and District coordination with SCE to allow for a second meter. Now that the coordination and 
agreement discussion with SCE is complete, the District has indicated they are ready for Michael Baker 
to complete the final design.  
 
The current contract amount has approximately $11,000 in funding remaining. Original fees associated 
with the final design were reallocated to perform modifications to the 60% design to accommodate 
changes, including a generator and fuel system, made at the request of WVWD. Because of this, 
additional funding will be needed to complete the 100% Design.  
 
Michal Baker also recommends updating the 90% specifications with the final design. The Specification 
document was originally received for this project in 2017. During February of 2021, revised District 
specifications were received for a separate project with the understanding that these would also apply 
to the Pump Station 7-2 project. However, the general specifications had already been completed and 
redevelopment of the front-end specifications would require additional scope.  
 
Additionally, manufacturer and vendor coordination and review were performed in 2018 and 2019 and 
could now be outdated. Cost estimates based on vendor quotes could also be outdated and should be 
revised. 
 
Michael Baker also has presented the 60% and 90% specifications, with the exception of the electrical 
specifications, based on the District’s example standards for a similar pump station as decided at the 
initiation of the project. However, these specifications are not in CSI standard formats, and we feel that 
the District would be better served to revise the Technical Divisions to be in the standard CSI three-part 
format when the specifications are finalized. This could be done during the revision of the front-end 
documents presented by the District for efficiency. Revised specifications would avoid the District from 
issuing a specification document at the time of bid that is potentially several years old, and in a non-
standard format, that could be difficult for contractors to understand, verify and bid. An updated 

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 186



Pump Station 7-2 Design Services  December 1, 2021 
Mr. Marco Bravo   
West Valley Water District 
Page 2 

 

specification document will help keep the bids competitive and ultimately help to deliver a better 
project to the District. 
 

ITEM FEE STATUS 

Original Contract Price $169,839.00 Executed Original Contract 

Amendment 1: Structural & 
Electrical Changes 

$39,303.00 Executed 

Amendment 2: SCE Coordination & 
Control 

$15,795.00 Executed 

Current Contract Amount $224,937.00 ($11,009.00 Remaining) 

 

AMENDMENT 3 TASKS FEE 

Complete Final Design $27,895.00 

Specification Revisions $8,000.00 

Amendment 3 Total $35,895.00 

Proposed Contract Amount $260,832.00 

 

Should you have any questions, please contact me directly by phone at: (480) 600-1479; or via e-mail: 

Miles.Costanza@mbakerintl.com.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Miles Costanza, P.E. 

Project Manager   

 

 

 

 

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 187



4 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 3  
 

COMPENSATION 
 
 

The fee estimated for additional scope and design services is $35,895.00. 
 

TASK NUMBER TASK DESCRIPTION COST 

1 Complete Final Design $27,895.00 

2 Specification Revisions $8,000.00 

 Total Cost $35,895.00 

 
  

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 188



5 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 3/13/19 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
  

Schedule to be determined by District staff. 

 

2.12.a

Packet Pg. 189



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
MV AMCV, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of land located on Cedar Avenue and Manzanita 
Street in the unincorporated community of Bloomington, known as Tract 20294 Cedar Villas 
(“Development”). The Development is a private community containing 22 residential lots requiring 
water services. In developing this land, the Developer is required to construct a new water main 
within the tract to allow for new domestic, fire and irrigation connections. The Developer is 
requesting to record an easement on Tract Map 20294 for the new water facilities. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-
Installed Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”) to 
locate the water facilities within private property and supply water to the Development.  This 
Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the Developer in constructing facilities, including 
insurance, indemnification and bonding requirements as well as conveyance and acceptance of the 
water system by the District.  Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the Water System Infrastructure 
Installation and Conveyance Agreement for this development which also includes the location of the 
Development. 
 
The District must accept Tract Map 20294 to record an easement for the water facility construction, 
inspection, maintenance, replacement and removal within the Development to construct the water 
facilities needed for the Development.  Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the Tract Map 20294, 
showing the full extent of the easements within the project.  
   
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact to the District.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE INSTALLATION 
AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT AND AN EASEMENT WITH MV 
AMCV, LLC FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR VILLAS 

2.13

Packet Pg. 190



approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
BP;ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with MV 
AMCV, LLC 

2. Exhibit B - Tract 20294 Easement 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/08/21 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

2.13

Packet Pg. 191



EXHIBIT A 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 192



1 

D22013 

WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE 

INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is 
entered into and effective as of December 16, 2021, by and between MV AMCV, LLC 
(“Developer”), and WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”) who agree as follows: 

  The Developer is the owner of certain land described as TRACT 20294 and as more fully 
(or further) shown on Exhibit "A".  In developing this land, the Developer is desirous of obtaining 
a public water supply adequate for domestic uses and public fire protection purposes and is 
desirous of integrating that water system into the District’s public water system. 

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties 
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants, 
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and 
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".  

 In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. DESIGN 

 1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's own expense, the water 
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR 

VILLAS, as approved and provided at a later date attached herein as Exhibit "B" and in 
accordance with District-approved design standards and specifications, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

 1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
California, and in accordance with the District's most recent Rules and Regulations (the “Rules 
and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard Drawings 
herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all City, County of 
San Bernardino, State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and 
other legal requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and 
property (all of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein 
at times as “Legal Requirements”). 

 1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose of 
ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and 
specifications.  The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all 
the plans and specifications. 

 1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential, 
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, and any available 
plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer. 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 193



2 

D22013 

 1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of 
the plans and specifications.  The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water 
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer. 

2. CONSTRUCTION 

 2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water 
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, and all Legal 
Requirements. 

 2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within ninety (90) calendar days 
from the date of this Agreement and shall be completed within one (1) year from the estimated 
construction start date. 

 2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is 
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager”) may extend the time for 
completion of the water system installation.  Any such extension may be granted without the 
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on the 
bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement.  The General Manager shall be the sole 
and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an 
extension. 

 2.4. The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a preconstruction 
meeting with the District at the District's headquarters no less than five (5) working days prior to 
commencement of construction. 

 2.5. No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required 
curbs and gutters. 

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

 3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it 
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of 
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.   

 3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations, shall be 
performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved by the District and 
is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of "C-34" Pipeline or 
Class "A" General Engineering.  A copy of the contract between Developer and the selected pre-
approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District for review and 
approval.  

 3.3. Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's 
expense.  Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private 
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's own expense prior to construction. 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 194



3 

D22013 

 3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's own expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection. 

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 4.1. The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall be 
applicable to this Agreement.  These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set forth 
in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified requirements 
herein shall prevail. 

 4.2. Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following 
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time of 
Agreement submittal:  Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall 
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d) 
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under this 
heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any contractor 
or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until all insurance 
required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained. 

   a. General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either 
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance (“General 
Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit 
of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and property 
damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by 
endorsement.  The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for 
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury – 
With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted. 

   b. Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its 
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance 
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles providing 
the following minimum limits of liability:  Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 million per 
accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance”). 

   c. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor 
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory 
minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable 
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”).  Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be endorsed 
to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District. 

   d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary when 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 195



4 

D22013 

combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General Liability 
Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.   

 4.3. The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to all 
of the following conditions: 

   a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the 
lines of insurance specified.  The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a 
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating 
Guide. 

   b. Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements in 
a single policy or multiple policies.  Any such additional policies written as excess insurance shall 
not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy. 

   c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium 
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of 
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to 
participate in any such loss.  If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and 
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost 
provisions were not applicable. 

   d. Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have 
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a 
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in 
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein. 

   e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the 
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely to 
this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims arising 
against Developer.  These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the policy. 

 4.4. Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following: 

   a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, and 
engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but only 
with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District in 
connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional insureds in 
connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations and save for 
any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District. 

   b. No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the 
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation or 
reduction in coverage. 

   c. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by 
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.   

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 196



5 

D22013 

5. BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

 5.1. Developer shall provide a Contractor’s proposal based on the District approved water 
system plans.  The Developer will provide a Contractor’s proposal and will be submitted to the 
District for review and approval at a later date (Exhibit “C”), and shall be used as the basis for 
bonding requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the 
Developer and approved for construction by the District.  

 5.2. Performance Bond:  The Contractor’s proposal from the Developer for the WATER 

IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR VILLAS, is TBD –DEVELOPER 

WILL PROVIDE BOND AMOUNT AT A LATER DATE – DOLLARS and 00/100 ($0.00). 
Developer shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the Developer's faithful performance of this 
Agreement and all of its terms and conditions. The Developer shall provide the District with a 
performance bond from a surety institution licensed by the State of California and authorized to do 
and doing business in said State, valid and renewable until such improvements are accepted by the 
District.  The performance bond shall be in the amount of DEVELOPER WILL PROVIDE 

BOND AMOUNT AT A LATER DATE – TBD – DOLLARS and 00/100 ($0.00) equal to 100 
percent of the approved Developer’s estimate. 

 5.3. Warranty Bond:  The Developer’s pre-approved contractor shall furnish a two-year 
warranty bond for all work completed in accordance with the approved plans. The approved plans 
will be provided at a later date (Exhibit "B"). Before District's acceptance of the completed water 
facilities and appurtenances, such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens 
and encumbrances and free from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The 
two-year warranty shall be a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water 
facilities by the District. 

6. MATERIALS 

 6.1. The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become 
an extension of the distribution system of the District.  All materials used must conform to District 
specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable Legal Requirements.   

7. NOTICES 

 7.1. All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by 
registered mail, postage prepaid. 

 

 

 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 197



6 

D22013 

 7.2. Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows: 

   WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   Post Office Box 920 
   Rialto, CA  92377 
   RE: WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR VILLAS 
 
 7.3. Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows: 
 
   DEVELOPER NAME: MV AMCV, LLC 
   ATTN TO:  STEVEN LANDIS   
   PO BOX 9559 
   ALTA LOMA, CA 91701 
   RE: WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR VILLAS 
 
 7.4. Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows: 
   TRISURA INSURANCE COMPANY 
   26 PLAZA SQUARE 
   SUITE 200 
   ORANGE, CA 92866 
   RE: WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR TRACT 20294 CEDAR VILLAS 
 
 7.5. Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to the 
other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 

 7.6. The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours 
advance notice of request for inspection or testing.  

 7.7. The District is closed on the holidays listed in Exhibit “D”. 

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM 

FACILITIES 

 8.1. Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts provided 
herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the Agreement 
shall be signed by Developer and the District.  The District shall return an original copy of the 
signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the water 
system facilities. 

9. INSPECTION 

 9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and testing 
is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are in 
compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the   
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District 
requirements.  Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole responsibility 
for the safety and management of the project. 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 198



7 

D22013 

 9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for 
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in 
preparation.  Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District 
shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the 
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any and 
all employees.  Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may order 
the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened danger 
or hazard to any and all employees at the work site.  Furthermore, Developer acknowledges the 
provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that employers shall 
furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all employees 
working therein.  In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition that presents an 
actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, the District is 
hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition. 

 9.3. All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the 
District at Developer's expense.  In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for 
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during 
fabrication at Developer's expense. 

 9.4. All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to 
District standards and specifications. 

 9.5. The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous 
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice, without any liability 
whatsoever to the District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, 
or the District approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a 
satisfactory and workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in 
the event the materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications.  

 9.6. Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under this 
Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District.  Approval by the District, 
however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any guarantees, 
warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications or of this Agreement.  All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements.  Developer shall pay actual costs for 
inspections. 

10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION 

 10.1. All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District standards 
and Legal Requirements. 

 

 

 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 199



8 

D22013 

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES 

 11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any 
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or 
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said 
facilities or water meters or water services. 

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION 

 12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required 
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including As-Built 
drawings. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION 

 13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the District 
and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless from any 
and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every kind and 
character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, court costs, 
attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor of any party, 
including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal injuries, 
including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of the 
District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character 
occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the 
obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save and except 
claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of the District or 
the District's agents and employees.  Developer shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of Developer even if 
the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent.  Developer agrees to, and shall 
defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, and engineers from any 
suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, by reason 
of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows: 

   a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer 
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance 
by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance policies 
described in this Agreement. 

   b. That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all 
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by 
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or 
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for 
damages. 

 This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 200



9 

D22013 

solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third 
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder. 

 13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are, 
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

 14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under 
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or 
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this Agreement, 
fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, 
Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or reconstruct 
any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure.  Should Developer 
fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies of the 
situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair, 
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make 
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to 
the District the actual cost of such repairs. 

15.  COSTS AND FEES 

 15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District. 
All fees and deposits, shall be paid in full prior to the execution of this Agreement and before 
construction can take place. 

 15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and acceptance 
of the water system. 

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM 

 16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans 
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to the 
District. 

 16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish 
an irrevocable letter of credit to the District or a warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of 
Developer’s estimate) for a period of two years as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-
built drawings with contractor redlines and AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, labor, 
equipment, and materials, water system cost breakouts, compaction test report signed and sealed 
by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with San Bernardino County 
Recorder, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water facilities and 
unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers,  Upon compliance 
with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the conveyance 
agreement accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein.  Title to 
the ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District.  The 
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 201



10 

D22013 

development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and 
Regulations. 

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE 

  17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed 
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have 
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be 
required.  Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT 

 18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part 
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any 
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer 
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit of 
Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's insolvency, 
or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, should 
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General Manager or the General 
Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and Developer's surety of breach of 
this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of Developer. 

 18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over 
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the 
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the 
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not 
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election, 
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any other 
method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and 
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned District 
thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession of, and 
utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to 
Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore. 

19. SUCCESSORS BOUND 

 19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties 
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns. 

 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 202



11 

D22013 

 20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver 
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of 
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

  

 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:           Date:    
  Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 
 
 

 DEVELOPER:  

 MV AMCV, LLC 

 A California Limited Liability Company 

 

  

 

  

 By:           Date:    
  Steven Landis 
  Authorized Agent 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 203



Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 204



Ex
h

ib
it
 A

Tr
ac

t 
2

0
2

9
4
 C

e
d

ar
 V

ill
as

1
5 

FR
W

Y
2

1
0

FR
W

Y

1
0

FR
W

Y

2
1

5
FR

W
Y

Sa
n
 B

er
n

ar
d

in
o
 A

ve

Cedar Ave

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

A
R

EA

M
an

za
n

it
a 

St

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 205



Exhibit B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 206



2.13.a

Packet Pg. 207



2.13.a

Packet Pg. 208



2.13.a

Packet Pg. 209



2.13.a

Packet Pg. 210



Exhibit C
(to be provided at later date) 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 211



Exhibit D 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 212



 

2021 HOLIDAY LIST 
 

FRIDAY, JANUARY 1     NEW YEAR’S DAY 
MONDAY, JANUARY 18     MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 15     PRESIDENT’S DAY 
TUESDAY, MAY 25     MEMORIAL DAY 
MONDAY, JULY 5      INDEPENDENCE DAY 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 6    LABOR DAY 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 11    VETERANS DAY (OBSERVED) 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 25    THANKSGIVING 
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 26     DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING 
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 23    CHRISTMAS EVE 
FRIDAY, DECEMBER 24     CHRISTMAS 
FRIDAY, DECEMBER 30     NEW YEAR’S EVE 
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 31    NEW YEAR’S DAY 
 
 

2.13.a

Packet Pg. 213



EXHIBIT B 

2.13.b

Packet Pg. 214



2.13.b

Packet Pg. 215



2.13.b

Packet Pg. 216



2.13.b

Packet Pg. 217



IVIE McNEILL WYATT 
PURCELL & DIGGS 

 
   
 

Bill to:   West Valley Water District 
   855 West Base Line Road 
   Rialto, California, 92376 

Invoice No: 745500
Dated: November 29, 2021 
File No:  8007005 
File Name:  Davis v WVWD

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

     Total Fees:   $3,355.00 

     Total Costs: 291.66    
$3,646.66 

2.14.a

Packet Pg. 218



IVIE McNEILL WYATT 
PURCELL & DIGGS 

 
   
 

Bill to:   West Valley Water District 
   855 West Base Line Road 
   Rialto, California, 92376 

Invoice No: 745501 
Dated: November 29, 2021
File No:  8007007 
File Name:  Romero v WVWD

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

     Total Fees:   $1,200.00

     Total Costs:      347.85  
 $1,547.85 

2.15.a

Packet Pg. 219



IVIE McNEILL WYATT 
PURCELL & DIGGS 

 
   
 

Bill to:   West Valley Water District 
   855 West Base Line Road 
   Rialto, California, 92376 

Invoice No: 745502 
Dated: November 30, 2021
File No:  8007008
File Name:  Loukeh v WVWD

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

     Total Fees:   $3,240.00

     Total Costs:    150.00  
 $3,240.00 

2.16.a

Packet Pg. 220



IVIE McNEILL WYATT 
PURCELL & DIGGS 

 
   
 

Bill to:   West Valley Water District 
   855 West Base Line Road 
   Rialto, California, 92376 

Invoice No: 745503
Dated: November 30, 2021 
File No:  8007008
File Name:  Loukeh v WVWD

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

     Total Fees:  $675.00

     Total Costs:      
  $675.00 

2.17.a

Packet Pg. 221



2.18.a

Packet Pg. 222



2.19.a

Packet Pg. 223



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
As you are aware, Channing Hawkins was appointed the President for one calendar year at the 
December 2, 2021 Board meeting.  However, the Board recommended that the appointment of Vice 
President be re-visited at the next Regularly Scheduled Board meeting.   
 
At a Special Board of Directors meeting held on Tuesday, October 20, 2020, the Board approved 
Resolution No. 2020-18 - Reform Plan which includes the Board of Directors Policies and 
Procedures Manual.  As stated in Section 7.4, “Annual Organizational Meeting, The Board of 
Directors shall hold an annual election at its first regular meeting in December.  At this meeting the 
Board will elect a Vice President from among its members to serve during the coming calendar 
year.” 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors elect a Vice President to serve during the upcoming 
calendar year. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL BOARD REORGANIZATION PER BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL, ADOPTED OCTOBER 20, 
2020, SECTION 7.4 ANNUAL REORGANIZATION MEETING. 

4.1

Packet Pg. 224



 
 
 
 
SM:pa 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 7.4 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
12/02/21 Board of Directors REFERRED TO BOARD   

4.1

Packet Pg. 225



4.1.a

Packet Pg. 226



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: December 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Due to the holiday closure and returning to work on Monday, January 3, 2022, which leaves very 
little time to prepare the Board agenda.  Staff is seeking direction to reschedule the January 6, 2022 
Board meeting to the following week as a Special Board meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SM:pa 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESCHEDULE THE JANUARY 6, 2022, BOARD MEETING. 

4.2

Packet Pg. 227


	Agenda Packet
	ROLL CALL
	Roll Call

	OPENING CEREMONIES
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Opening Prayer
	Call to Order
	Roll Call of Board Members

	ADOPT AGENDA
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	I. PRESENTATION
	II. CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. 2952 : Regular Board Meeting Minutes - November 18, 2021
	a. November 18, 2021 - Minutes

	2. 2957 : Regular Board Meeting Minutes - December 2, 2021
	a. December 2, 2021 - Minutes

	3. 2945 : November 2021 - Purchase Order Report
	Printout: 2945 : November 2021 - Purchase Order Report
	a. November 2021 Purchase Order Report

	4. 2948 : Treasurer's Report - November 2021
	Printout: 2948 : Treasurer's Report - November 2021
	a. 2022 November Treasurer Report

	5. 2950 : Cash Disbursements Report - November 2021
	Printout: 2950 : Cash Disbursements Report - November 2021
	a. 2021 November Cash Disbursements Board Report
	b. 2021 November Payroll Cash Disbursement Board Report

	6. 2951 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - November 2021
	Printout: 2951 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - November 2021
	a. 2021 November Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report

	7. 2958 : Young Settlement Agreement
	Printout: 2958 : Young Settlement Agreement
	a. Young - WVWD Settlement (Final) copy

	8. 2947 : Dispose of Old Surplus Items and Materials
	Printout: 2947 : Dispose of Old Surplus Items and Materials
	a. Exhibits for Surplus 2021 Staff Report

	9. 2941 : Consider Agreement for Professional Services to Develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
	Printout: 2941 : Consider Agreement for Professional Services to Develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
	a. EXHIBIT A- Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (RBGC) Technical Evaluation Committee’s Evaluation of the Proposals for the RBGC Groundwater Management Plan Project
	b. Exhibit B

	10. 2940 : Consider a Grant of Easement from HD04, LLC for Ventana PA 6
	Printout: 2940 : Consider a Grant of Easement from HD04, LLC for Ventana PA 6
	a. Exhibit A - Aerial Map
	b. Exhibit B - Grant of Easement

	11. 2943 : I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project: Professional Engineering Services Amendment No. 3
	Printout: 2943 : I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project: Professional Engineering Services Amendment No. 3
	a. Exhibit A - Task Order No. 1 Amendment No. 3 with Michael Baker International

	12. 2946 : Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International, Inc. for Design of Pump Station 7-2
	Printout: 2946 : Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International, Inc. for Design of Pump Station 7-2
	a. Exhibit A - Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International

	13. 2939 : Consider Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement and an Easement
	Printout: 2939 : Consider Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement and an Easement
	a. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with MV AMCV, LLC
	b. Exhibit B - Tract 20294 Easement

	14. 2953 : IMW Invoice No. 745500
	a. IMW Invoice 745500 Summary

	15. 2954 : IMW Invoice No. 745501
	a. IMW Invoice 745501 Summary

	16. 2955 : IMW Invoice No. 745502
	a. IMW Invoice 745502 Summary

	17. 2956 : IMW Invoice No. 745503
	a. IMW Invoice 745503 Summary

	18. 2949 : Reed & Davidson, LLP Inv. No. 42882-1
	a. Reed & Davidson, LLP Inv. No. 42882 Summary

	19. 2944 : Julia Sylva Inv No. 21-04
	a. Sylva Law Corp.Invoice No.21-4.date.11.30.21 - Summary


	III. PUBLIC HEARING
	IV. BUSINESS MATTERS
	1. 2934 : Annual Board Reorganization
	Printout: 2934 : Annual Board Reorganization
	a. 7.4

	2. 2959 : Reschedule the January 6, 2022, Board Meeting.
	Printout: 2959 : Reschedule the January 6, 2022, Board Meeting.


	V. REPORTS
	1. Board Members
	2. Legal Counsel
	3. General Manager

	VI. UPCOMING MEETINGS
	1. December 21, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408.
	2. December 23, 2021 through January 2, 2022, District Office CLOSED for the Holidays.
	3. January 4, 2022 - San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408.
	4. January 6, 2022 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters.
	5. January 10, 2022 - West Valley Water District Human Resources Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	6. January 11, 2022 – West Valley Water District Safety & Technology Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	7. January 12, 2022 - West Valley Water District Finance Committee Meeting at 1:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	8. January 12, 2022 - West Valley Water District Engineering, Operations & Planning Committee at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	9. January 13, 2022 – West Valley Water District External Affairs Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	10. January 17, 2022 – District office CLOSED in observance of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day.
	11. January 20, 2022 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters.
	12. January 25, 2022 - West Valley Water District Policy Review & Oversight Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.

	VII. CLOSED SESSION
	1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Three (3).

	ADJOURN

	Appendix
	2.1.a · November 18, 2021 - Minutes
	2.2.a · December 2, 2021 - Minutes
	2.3 · 2945 : November 2021 - Purchase Order Report
	2.3.a · November 2021 Purchase Order Report

	2.4 · 2948 : Treasurer's Report - November 2021
	2.4.a · 2022 November Treasurer Report

	2.5 · 2950 : Cash Disbursements Report - November 2021
	2.5.a · 2021 November Cash Disbursements Board Report
	2.5.b · 2021 November Payroll Cash Disbursement Board Report

	2.6 · 2951 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - November 2021
	2.6.a · 2021 November Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report

	2.7 · 2958 : Young Settlement Agreement
	2.7.a · Young - WVWD Settlement (Final) copy

	2.8 · 2947 : Dispose of Old Surplus Items and Materials
	2.8.a · Exhibits for Surplus 2021 Staff Report

	2.9 · 2941 : Consider Agreement for Professional Services to Develop the Rialto Basin Groundwater Management Plan
	2.9.a · EXHIBIT A- Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (RBGC) Technical Evaluation Committee’s Evaluation of the Proposals for the RBGC Groundwater Management Plan Project
	2.9.b · Exhibit B

	2.10 · 2940 : Consider a Grant of Easement from HD04, LLC for Ventana PA 6
	2.10.a · Exhibit A - Aerial Map
	2.10.b · Exhibit B - Grant of Easement

	2.11 · 2943 : I-10 Cedar Avenue Interchange Improvement Project: Professional Engineering Services Amendment No. 3
	2.11.a · Exhibit A - Task Order No. 1 Amendment No. 3 with Michael Baker International

	2.12 · 2946 : Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International, Inc. for Design of Pump Station 7-2
	2.12.a · Exhibit A - Task Order No. 3 with Michael Baker International

	2.13 · 2939 : Consider Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement and an Easement
	2.13.a · Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with MV AMCV, LLC
	2.13.b · Exhibit B - Tract 20294 Easement

	2.14.a · IMW Invoice 745500 Summary
	2.15.a · IMW Invoice 745501 Summary
	2.16.a · IMW Invoice 745502 Summary
	2.17.a · IMW Invoice 745503 Summary
	2.18.a · Reed & Davidson, LLP Inv. No. 42882 Summary
	2.19.a · Sylva Law Corp.Invoice No.21-4.date.11.30.21 - Summary
	4.1 · 2934 : Annual Board Reorganization
	4.1.a · 7.4

	4.2 · 2959 : Reschedule the January 6, 2022, Board Meeting.


